5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA
Health and Wellbeing Board

Date: Tuesday 18 October 2011

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber - Brockington

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Tim Brown, Democratic Services
Tel: 01432 260239
Email: tborown@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Tim Brown, Democratic Services
on 01432 260239 or e-mail tbrown@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of
the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Health and

Wellbeing Board

Membership

Chairman Councillor PM Morgan

Dr Sarah Aitken
Jacqui Bremner
Peter Brown
Chris Bull

Jo Davidson
Claire Keetch

Jo Newton

Dr Andy Watts
Martin Woodford

Cabinet Member — Health and Wellbeing

Interim Director of Public Health

Local Involvement Network

Herefordshire Business Board

Chief Executive Herefordshire Public Services
Director for People's Services

Third Sector Board

Chairman NHS Herefordshire (PCT) Board
Chair - Clinical Commissioning Group

Chief Executive - Wye Valley NHS Trust

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

What is a personal interest?

You have a personal interest in a matter if that
matter affects the well-being or financial position of
you, your relatives or people with whom you have a
close personal association more than it would
affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to
which the matter relates.

A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or
people with whom you have a close personal
association positively or negatively. If you or they
would stand to lose by the decision, you should
also declare it.

You also have a personal interest in a matter if it
relates to any interests, which you must register.

What do | need to do if | have a personal
interest?

You must declare it when you get to the item on the
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest’” or as
soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still
speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest.

If a matter affects a body to which you have been
appointed by the authority, or a body exercising
functions of a public nature, you only need declare
the interest if you are going to speak on the matter.

What is a prejudicial interest?

You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if;

a) a member of the public, who knows the
relevant facts, would reasonably think your
personal interest is so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest; and

b) the matter affects your financial interests or
relates to a licensing or regulatory matter;
and

c) the interest does not fall within one of the
exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of
the Code of Conduct.

What do | need to do if | have a prejudicial
interest?

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw
from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2)
of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public
are allowed to make representations, give evidence
or answer questions about that matter, you may
also make representations as if you were a
member of the public. However, you must withdraw
from the meeting once you have made your
representations and before any debate starts.




HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

10.

1.

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place
of a Member of the Committee.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interests of interest by Members in respect of
items on the Agenda.

MINUTES
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2011.
ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR COMMISSIONING

To present the 2011 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and State of
Herefordshire Reports, and provide an overview of the work being
undertaken across HPS to develop an overall Integrated Needs
Assessment.

HEREFORDSHIRE HEALTHCARE COMMISSIONERS - UPDATE

To provide an overview of the activities of the Herefordshire Health-Care
Commissioners in August and September 2011.

INTEGRATED NEEDS ASSESSMENT - ALCOHOL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
To consider the integrated needs assessment for alcohol.
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2011

To receive a presentation on the Director of Public Health Annual Report
2011.

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN
To receive a presentation on a Communications Plan.
HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD UPDATE AND WORK PROGRAMME

To provide an update on the current position with the development of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, including the revised Development
Framework, a proposed outline draft Work Plan for the next six months
which picks up the key development themes agreed by the Board and to set
out the next steps that will be addressed over the coming weeks.

FUTURE MEETINGS

The following meetings have been scheduled:

Tuesday 13 SEPTEMBER 2011 4.00 pm (Workshop)
Tuesday 18 OCTOBER 2011 2.00 pm

Tuesday 22 NOVEMBER 2011 4.00 pm (Workshop)
Tuesday 20 DECEMBER 2011 3.30 pm

Tuesday 17 JANUARY 2012 4.00 pm (Workshop)

18 OCTOBER 2011

Pages

73 -94

95-112



Tuesday 21 FEBRUARY 2012 2.00 pm

Tuesday 20 MARCH 2012 2.30 pm (Workshop) - (Note revised start time)
Tuesday 17 APRIL 2012 2.00 pm

Tuesday 15 MAY 2012 2.00 pm




The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

¢ Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately
every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with
Old Eign Hill. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the
circular car park at the front of the building. A check will be
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated
the building following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the
exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to
collect coats or other personal belongings.

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer

waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA).

%(:9 Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel
environmental label



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Health and Wellbeing Board held at
Council Chamber - Brockington on Tuesday 21 June 2011 at 2.00
pm

Present: Councillor PM Morgan (Chairman)

Dr S Aitken, Ms J Bremner, Mr P Brown, MrCJ Bull and Mrs J Newton

In attendance: None

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

The Board noted the appointment of Councillor PM Morgan, Cabinet Member — Health and
Wellbeing, as Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

2, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from J Burton, J Davidson, A Watts and M Woodford.
3. NAMED SUBSTITUTES
It was noted that Dr Aitken was representing J Davidson.
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.
5. MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2011 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Board was invited to note its terms of reference and to consider whether any changes
were required in the light of local and national developments.

An additional report had been circulated setting out an extract from the Government’s
response to the NHS Future Forum’s recommendations. This had been produced following a
national listening exercise on the proposals in the Health and Social Care Bill.

The Board noted the proposed changes to the Board’s remit and Membership and that a
report would be made to Council in due course.

7. OUTCOMES FROM STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP - 16 JUNE

The Board considered the outcomes from the Stakeholder workshop held on 16 June: Health
and Wellbeing in Herefordshire — working together for better outcomes.

A summary of the points raised at the workshop was circulated at the meeting.




The Deputy Chief Executive reported that almost all those who had completed the
evaluation forms had considered the event useful or very useful.

Key findings had included the view that whilst, inevitably, the first year of the Board’s
existence would be developmental there was a strong wish to undertake some tasks and
demonstrate tangible progress during 2011. A balance had to be struck between the
long term and short term aims.

He highlighted, as an example, the Healthy Hereford Workforce initiative designed to
deliver health messages to employees in both the public and private sectors.

The Board noted the outcomes from the Workshop, which would be used to shape the
Board’s development plan.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The Board discussed the development of Health and Wellbeing in Herefordshire and the
Board’s role in this work.

The Board reviewed the discussion paper on planning for health and wellbeing in
Herefordshire, enclosed with the agenda papers at page 19, which had been updated
since it had been presented to the Board in April. The brief to the external facilitator to
assist in the Board’s development was circulated; Inlogov (institute of Local Government
Studies) at the University of Birmingham had been appointed.

It was noted that the interim Director of Public Health and the external facilitator would
be updating the document and proposing a work programme to the next meeting. The
external facilitator had not been able to attend the meeting but would be asked to contact
all Board members to seek views on planning the next workshop based meeting in July.

The Chairman drew attention to the 10 key issues that had been suggested for
discussion at the workshop as set out at pages 22 and 23 of the agenda papers.

In discussion the following principal points were made:

e That the document would clearly need to be amended to reflect the Government’s
response to the NHS Future Forum’s recommendations. These strengthened the
Board’s role, in particular in relation to commissioning and broader system
management and also proposed increased public and patient involvement.

e The Board’s strategy should be underpinned by the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment. It was suggested that the title of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
needed to be made more user friendly if it was to resonate with the public.

e |t was important that the Board developed its role in parallel with and at the same
pace as the GP/Clinical Commissioning Group.

¢ The budget planning cycle was commencing and there might be an opportunity for
the Board and Commissioning Group to test how their roles might develop in some
areas.

e The draft legislation envisaged that the Board’s authority and influence would be
derived from the Council. The Board was nevertheless a partnership vehicle
through which the Council exercised its functions.



¢ A report would be made to the Board in the first instance on possible changes to its
membership.

¢ In developing an outline health and wellbeing strategy account would be taken of the
views expressed at the recent workshop on health and wellbeing in Herefordshire on
the need for some focused actions to be delivered in the short term that made a
demonstrable difference.

¢ Community engagement, section 9 of the discussion paper, had proved problematic
in Herefordshire to date and consideration should be given to engaging the public
about health and wellbeing priorities at an early stage. The need to change previous
approaches, innovate, and seek to involve those who had not to date engaged was
acknowledged. This was something that the external facilitator would explore.

e That aspects of section 12 of the discussion paper headed Organisational
Development might be broadened to reflect the need to engage with others to deliver
the desired outcomes.

o The engagement strategy should be cross-cutting. The possible link to localities and
the need to join up the various locality strategies of various organisations in the
County was highlighted.

o There was a need to ensure that there was clarity as to how the Board would fulffil its
role and translate intentions into health improvement. To date health improvement
work had not always delivered the desired improvements. The Board would
therefore need to develop different approaches. It was important to assert the
Board’s role in system management and to work closely with the GP/Clinical
Commissioning Group from the outset.

RESOLVED:
That (a) a work programme for the Board be reported to the next meeting;

(b) the discussion paper on planning for health and wellbeing in
Herefordshire be updated and reported to the next meeting; and

(c) areport be made to the Board on possible changes to Membership.

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND INTEGRATED NEEDS
ASSESSMENT PROCESS

The Board considered proposals to change and integrate needs analysis and
assessment to support the Board’s work and broader partnership priority setting.

The Interim Director of Public Health presented the report. She explained the proposed
incremental approach to developing and integrated needs assessment with the intention
of delivering a fully integrated “gold standard” Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
within three years. A new approach was needed to deliver the outcomes the Board
sought.

She emphasised the Board’s system leadership role and the need for the Board and the
GP/Clinical Commissioning Group to have a clear, shared understanding of needs and
priorities and how these could best be met.

It was noted that the JSNA was due to be refreshed in October 2011 with a more
fundamental revision planned for June 2012. The key messages in the refreshed



document would be largely unchanged. A report would be made to the Board’s next
meeting on the JSNA. Emerging issues would be brought to the Board’s attention.

It was agreed that it was important to ensure there was input into the commissioning
round for 2011/12.

RESOLVED:

That (a) progress and work around the Integrated Needs Assessment be
noted;

(b) the approach to the development of the Integrated Needs
Assessment over the next 12 months as set out in the report be
agreed;

(c) it be agreed that the Health and Wellbeing Board act as the Project
Board for the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment;

(d) a report on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment be made to the
next meeting.

10. HEALTH AND WELLBEING IN HEREFORDSHIRE INTRODUCTORY TRAINING

The Board was invited to note the introductory training on health and wellbeing that had
been offered and to support the use of a ladder of intervention as the core of the
approach to health and wellbeing introductory training.

The training had been designed to enable a better understanding of health and wellbeing
and help identify and remove barriers to tackle health improvement issues in
Herefordshire. A copy of the slides of a presentation delivering that training and
describing the ladder of intervention had been circulated separately with the agenda
papers.

RESOLVED: That the use of the ladder of intervention as the core of the approach
to health and wellbeing introductory training in Herefordshire be
supported.

11. FUTURE MEETINGS

The Board noted the list of scheduled meetings.

The meeting ended at 3.20 pm CHAIRMAN



AGENDA ITEM 5

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
DATE: 18 OCTOBER 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: | ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR
COMMISSIONING
REPORT BY: DR ALISON TALBOT-SMITH

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
To present the 2011 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and State of Herefordshire Reports, and

provide an overview of the work being undertaken across HPS to develop an overall Integrated Needs
Assessment.

Recommendation(s)
THAT THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD:
(a) note the 2011 JSNA key points and recommendations document;
(b) note the 2011 State of Herefordshire key findings report;

(c) note the plans to develop an Integrated Needs Assessment (INA).
Key Points Summary

e The 2011 JSNA has been produced using research and analysis undertaken across HPS
throughout the year. More detail can be found on the JSNA webpages at
www.Herefordshire.gov.uk/JSNA, along with the summary document provided as the 2011
Key Points and Recommendations (see Appendix 1).

e The State of Herefordshire (SOH) report has been refreshed for 2011, and the summary
provided as Appendix 2.

e A more comprehensive examination of the JSNA process and how needs assessments are
undertaken across HPS is being undertaken to inform the development of a wider INA. As part
of a three year programme to a 'Gold Standard INA' it will result in the 2012 JSNA being
produced in line with planning and commissioning frameworks, by the end of June 2012.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Dr A Talbot-Smith on (01432) 344344

$34bfygns.doc 22/02/10



Alternative Options

1.

There are no alternative options — statutory requirement

Reasons for Recommendations

2. To comply with statutory requirements.

3. To provide a robust evidence base for Commissioning across HPS and it’'s partners, that can

underpin the work of the Health and WellBeing Board.

Introduction and Background

4. The intention for 2011 has been to refresh the JSNA and SOH reports. The summary findings

are provided are provided as Appendix 1 and 2.

Underpinning the JSNA Key Points and Recommendations summary document, and the State
of Herefordshire report summary document, are the relevant websites which are integrated with
the ‘Facts and Figures’ web-site resource. This provides a central repository of detailed
analysis and research information that allow colleagues and stakeholders to find additional
information on a range of areas as required, ranging from information by topic through to
specific needs assessment that have been undertaken over the last year (e.g. the child poverty
needs assessment; local economic assessment). This approach is line with good practice
undertaken by many areas across the country.

Key Considerations

6. The key findings of the 2011 JSNA have been presented under the themes of:

» Inequalities and deprivation
» Changing demographics
» Health and health-related behaviours
» What people have told us.
The recommendations of the 2011 JSNA have then been categorised as:

»  Areas for future work
» Challenges for commissioners.

We have adopted a dynamic approach to the JSNA, with bi-annual updates of the web-based
resource, and many of the findings fed into the relevant fora in-year. The fact that work is
already underway on some of these areas is a measure of success.

The development of an INA is intended to improve how we undertake needs assessments and
analysis across HPS and with our partners. The key products to be delivered include:

» A standard methodology for undertaking needs assessment that is robust and
produces high quality analysis and intelligence



» A high quality 'Gold Standard’ INA — through a three year development programm
but with the first iteration late June 2012 to ensure synergy with the annual
commissioning cycle

» A corporately agreed and prioritised programme of needs assessments

10. The development of a gold standard INA will provide the Health and WellBeing Board with a
single integrated assessment of need for Herefordshire. This can be used by the Board to
underpin it's commissioning strategy, as well as by it's member organisations. Thus it will
provide a robust evidence base for prioritisation and commissioning decisions across
herefordshire. It will also enable the Board to identify and address priority issues which require
a partnership approach.

11. In moving forward with this work a number of key issues have been identified:

» A need for greater engagement and involvement of stakeholders across the third sector.
Events and workshops are being held in October and November to ensure this input
occurs. This will feed into the development of the JSNA in 2012 and the INA process.

» The JSNA and State of Herefordshire report support one another and are heavily
interlinked. As we develop a ‘Gold Standard’ INA this relationship will become stronger,
and we anticipate them being incorporated into a single integrated evidence base for
commissioners available online. This will enable us to encapsulate the broad range of
inter-linked issues that need to be considered but minimise duplication, enabling us to be
more efficient in the way we identify, analyse, and present our intelligence.

» The importance of the locality approach, with stakeholders knowledge providing important
local knowledge to supplement routine data collection.

Community Impact
12. Good quality needs assessments and analysis are essential to determining both community
needs and gaps in service provision. This type of analysis is required to enable robust
commissioning, planning and development of services that meet the needs of communities and
individuals.

13. The documents will be available on the JSNA and ‘Facts and Figures’ public facing web-sites.
Much of the underlying evidence for JSNA and SoH is already available on this website.

Financial Implications
14. Good quality needs assessment and analysis will enable the Health and WellBeing Board to
understand the population needs of Herefordshire, and aid decision making and prioritisation
process's.
Legal Implications
15. Under the initial proposals surrounding the Health and Social Care reform bill the delivery of a
JSNA will be the statutory duty of Herefordshire’s Health and Wellbeing board, with both the
Clinical Commissioning Consortia and the Local Authority responsible for its delivery.

Risk Management

16. There is a risk that the JSNA does not become integral to the commissioning cycle and that it's



importance is not acknowledged. To ensure that the assessment of need and the associated
process is recognised as a key analytical tool, a programme of engagement and promotion is
planned.

Consultees
17. There is no requirement to consult on the production of this document; however the findings

are being presented to the Herefordshire Healthcare Commissioning Consortium, NHS
Herefordshire Board, Herefordshire Partnership Executive Group and Herefordshire Council.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Herefordshire's 2011 JSNA Key Points and Recommendations.

Appendix 2 - 2011 State of Herefordshire report.

Background Papers

None identified



)N AOD allyspliojeley@Wes)yoieasal |Ilewa Jo 861092 ZE 10 suoyds|al
uo wea | yoeasay B Aoljod sieiodio) aliysplojaiaH 8y} 1oejuoo ases|d abenbue| 1o Jewio) sAleUIs)E UB Ul JUSWNOop SIY} alinbal noA pjnoys

a11yspiojaiaH jo ajdoad ayy 404 Jayraboy Bujiopn
EY [T YLIEVETT] [1PUN0)
SHN CY T JJEVETY] .

L661 ‘PEOYONYM puE u2iBlyeq :02in0g

SNOILVANIININODO3Fd ANV SINIOd AIM L1102
INJINSSISSV SA33N JI1931VH1S LNIOr FHIHSAHO4343H



7’1 UOISIOA

BUSIHIN"AOD 31IUSPIOJaISL MMM Je 3|qe|leAe YNSI Pased-gom [Ind _

‘s1oujaed 19730 pue s1op1Aoid ‘SIQUOISSIWUIOD IO [NJISN PUB JUBAJ[I O] SI JBY) JUSWSSIASSE SPAdU 2159)e1)s pjeI3ajul A|naj € s1 I1 et} 0S 90U I[[Iul JIY)
Sursiin ‘papnpour Ajny a1e sioupred JUBAJ[AI [[B By} INSUD 0] JUBM dA\ "YNS[ oY} Suronpoid ur JuSWIA[OAUT JIOP[OYINLIS JNO UIPIM 0} SUINIIS A[QANIR
3q [[IM dM SIBJA pue SyIuow JuIwod Y} JIA0 puk ‘W) A3eIud dM MO Puk YIM dFe3ud 9M oYM FULIIPISUOD SI SIY) JO Juduodwod A3y v "oyelropun
M 1B} OUABI[[AIuI pue sasA[eur Jo 2dA) pue d3uer oY) FurUTWEXD 3q [[IM dM PIBMIOJ 03 dM SV "SJUIPISAI S AIYSPIOJOINH JO SUIdq[[oM pue [i[edy )
JSIWIXBW 0} JOPIO UI SAIIAIIS JO UOISIAOIA pue JUTUOISSTIOD JANIIFS J0J PAunbar doud3i[our pa[redp Ay pue sdnoid d[qerdunA 10 sanssi FuIFIOW

Amuapt Ajprdes 01 papadu sasATeue Jo ypealq Ayl Joq sapraoid ey YNS[ € 20npoid 0} ST UOISIA INO0 - YNS[ Y} JO JudIu0d ) U0 SUISNI0J MOU I8 I

"SSJ0NS JO AINSBIW B SB JUAWNI0P SIY) Ul PAUI[INO
SBaIe JU) JO AWIOS UO PIjIe)s Apeaife SUIABY YIOM MIIA dM PUR ‘JBIA-UI BIOJ JUBAJ[QI AU} OJUI JOUSII[[AIUI pue SISATeUR PIdJ 0} Sn PI[qeud Ssey SIY [, Jedh
-UI J[qe[IeAR dWO0I3q SIsATeur se jepdn am jey) L AI08] paseq-gam drweuAp e ojur 31 3urdojoadp Aq VNS 2yl 03 yoeoidde mau e pajdope om 1edA Ise]

*VNSI 243 Jo juduido[aaap surosuQ

"JSOW PIPAU ATk A3} AIAYM SAJTAIIS pue Aduow 131e) sn djoy pue sued armny wiojur VNS
oy UM paygnuapr sanuoud oy, “siouired o pue AYSPIOJAIH SHN ouno)) 1YSpIoJRIdY ‘pieod Surdq[oA\ pue Yi[edH 2y Jo jiom ay) urdiopun
[[I4 31 0S pue ‘A39)eng SUIQ[[PA PUB YI[BIH S, IIYSPIOJIOH dO[OASP 01 pIpadu dseq JUIPIAD Y} sopraoid 11 Surqrom pue yireay s ddoad Surpiedax
PassaIppe 2q 03 padu jey) sanssI Jofew ay) SUIAINUIPI Ag Surdq[om pue yiredy pue 1] Jo Ayenb ‘saoueyd-9f1y s, o1doad 10953e Jey) s3uny) urewr 1Y10 Ay}
S [[oM SE ‘SPadu aIBd [BIO0S puk Yi[edy pajorpaid pue judumnd saurwex?d 3] ‘uonendod s oIIyspIOjoIoH JO SPAau Surdq[om pue yi[edy 3y} U0 UOIIRWLIOJUL

Ay e ‘sseo0id snonunuod ‘QFurs B ur ‘1YIRF0) S3ulq YNS[ UL JUSWSSISSY SPIRAN 0189)e:S JUIOf [IINOJ S QIYSPIOJOIdH JO Arewwuns © SI SIYJ.

110§ ST (VNISF) JUSWISSISSY SPIIN I133)e.1)S JUIOL Y3 JBYA

110 LNJINSSIASSY
SA33N JI1931VHlS LINIOM FHIHSAH043¥43H GHL 40 AYVINIANS

10



V4 T'T UOISIOA
's)0qqy uojdwelg 10 peoy proysunds jou

Mq ‘peoY 991491D) 29 1091§ U0IdWEIg ‘PROY SISSOID) I, JO ISOW SIPNIIUL 1 991G SIA] 01 ‘SSOY JO 90U Y} SPIBMO] [00YIS J[IAS] UYO[ WOIJ BIIB Y} SIOA0D YVOST QA uyor, oy,
"AIepunoq 19ex9 9y 10J pANSU0d 9q Pnoys deur & Ing ‘s BOIE 91 dI19YM JO UONBIIPUL UR JAIS 03 (07 Ul WEI ], YOIBISIY S, [IOUN0)) dIYSPIOJOIdOH AQ POUSISSE 910M SOWEU [BI0] SNSUI))
100Z 21 JO SHMNSII 9y} SUIsn SA1SHelS [euoneN 10y 030 a3 Aq paudisap 9idoad gos‘1 Aareunxoidde Jo sargder30a3 eansnels :SyOST 10 seary indinQ 10dng 10M0T d16 SBAIR 39S, s
‘A1oreIedas sp9

I0A0 pue s97 Jopun 10 ‘uonendod djoym ) Funddge uoneALdap awodUI Ik J0O[ 0) J[qIssod SI )] "dwodUI pue JuIWAO[dWd ‘SIJIAIIS 29 SUISNOY 0) SISLIIRQ “S[[IS 29 UONBINPI JUIUWUOIIATUD
SUIAI] “dWILID “YI[eAY :, SUTBUIOP, JIUNSIP USAIS 0} SUIPIOIIE ST 11 PIALIAOP MOY U0 Paskq “SIAYI0 0) pareduwrod Bare e jo uoneALrdap [[e12A0 1) sainseaur uoneAidop sydninur jo xoput ay, |

“A[Teuornieu
uey) JA3UO[ JedA B Jsowfe SI YOIYM ‘G O} UdW J[OyM B St pue[Sug Ul uey) JOFUO[ JBIA B ‘€] 0) dFLIOAR UO JAI] AIIYSPIOJOIOH UI UIO] USWOA, <«
"S[OAQ[ QWILID puk suorssrpe [edsoy ‘soouepudlie g pue y Junoddge wo[qoid SurmoIs e SI asnsiu [Oyod[y  «
"901IS PUB JSBISIP 1BAY ATRU0IO0D JO SAsned Jolewr d1e S[QAJ] A11S9q0 pue Ajandeul [eIISAYd Jey) SMOUS SISATeu. MAN <«
"pue[Sug Jo seare paALdop jsowr JuadIad ¢z 3y Jo U0 Fuleq se ,anudd A1) PI0JAIoH, padeydar sey aAp UO SSOY Jo Leare S[IAY uyof,
oY) 1ey) suedw uonisod aATE[aI UL dFULYD d)IQNS € AJUN0) 3y} ssorde uonearrdsp sjdnjnuw 10 J[eI10A0, Jo d[yoId oYy Ul dFURYD B U SEY A, <
:9q 01 syurod A9y Ay} 9AJ1[Aq
I\ “SIUSWIAIL)S JUI[PLY ASAY) PUIYeq USPPIY, 18 UBD YOIYM SINIUNWIIOD INO TUIOR) SINSSI JUBIIFIUSIS JO JAqUINU B I8 I} ‘0S UIAY "SUIdq[[oM PUB SAI]

I3y} 103Jk 16y} sTury) Ay} Jo soudnRdxd dAnIsod daey pue ‘Aduejoadxd 91 [euoneu Yim paredwod 1FUO] AL ‘AYI[edy a1k dIyspIooIy w ddoad [[e19AQ

“BUSI AT A0S Y SPI0JOIY MMA Je J[qR[IBAR ST JOIYM 0IN0SAT YNS[
Paseq qam [0 Y} HSIA 0} NOA IFLINOIUD P[NOM M S[IBIOP AIOW IOJ — SAWRY) SUIFIow pue sdagueyd jueyrodwr Jo dqunu € pAYSIYSIIY OS[e JARY M TBIA
U0 IBdA A[JUedIJIugIs IQJJIP 3. uop SIUIpuL} Y} JO dWOS IS[IYA "VNS[ S JedA sy} ur syurod A3y oy paiySIy3IY ALY M JUSWNI0P Arewwuns 110ys SIY} UIIIAN

SPUQ.I) PUR $)IBJ UTRW Y I, :AMOUY IM JBYAA

VNS pIepuels p[o3, IO SpIemo) JI0M dM St PIAJOAUT A[[NJ I8 A3} 2INSU 0} JueM dM Pue ‘spadu jJowun pue sdesd uo
PUE SIOTAIIS [BIO] JO SSIUIAIIIIGR Y} U0 uAII[3ul anbrun way) s9AIS yoeoidde panudd uosiad I3y “Aunwod o JO SIdqUIAW PISIRUISIBW JSOW Y}
JO dwos A[[eroadss pue ‘Sapmunuwod pue SAI[IWe] ‘S[ENPIAIPUL 0} SAIIAIRS SuIipraoid pue ‘10 unedoape ‘Funioddns ur JIom IIY) WOIJ ‘UOHIBWLIOJUI pue Blep

Qoud112dxa JO YoM B dARY Oym suonjesiue3io 3joxd 10J J0u pue d[qeilreyd ‘Ajunuod ‘AIejunjoA [ed0] Yl YNM IuIIom dq [[IM SIY) JO Juduodwod duQ

11



¢ 7’1 UOISIOA

“A[Teuoneu
seare paArndap jsowr Judd 12d Gz 9y} IsSuowe 3urdq St ANudd AN pIOJAIdH, padejdar (S[IAY uyof,) JAA-UO-SSOY JO BAIR UB O[QZ U] ©
"BUIUIPIM ST AIYSPIOJOISH JO Seare paAnidop jsow pue I1sed] Ay udamidq deg ayy o
‘pue[3uy Jo sured 197j0 0} dATIR[I pALIdap 10w
Suro22q a1e pue ‘SsIedk ()] J9AO 10} pue[Suy Ul seare paALIdop Isow Ay} JsSuowe Uddq AARY JSISUNIOI] PUB PIOJAIOH YINOS JO SBAIR [BIAAS  ©
:10A9mo1] uonjeArrdop idnnuu Jo S[OAS] MO] A[SAIIR[I SBY J[OYM B SB JIYSPIOJRIOH <
"SuoOnNIPuO0d Jursnoy 100d pue JWOdIUT MO|

JuawAordwoun ‘S[[IS MO] JUSWUILIIE-IOPUN [BUONBOINPS FUIPN[OUI ‘UONBALIdIP JO sainsedw pue sanrenbaur yi[esy udamidq uoneIdosse 3uons e SI 1Y L.

uoneArLido pue sapienbouy (1

"JIUOW B J0UO JSBI I8 PAIAAJUN[OA OYM §] 0} [ [ Pk asoy 10F (%)
dre1 JoY31Y yonw & punojy ¢o0g ur sprdnd jo Asams y -seare jeans ur 3urar] dsoy) pue 9jdoad Iop[o d10M IdUN[OA 0} AJANI] I0W 1M oYM Sdnoin
"91eI [euoneu Y} UBY) JOYSIY ‘Yuow B JUO0 Ised[ je ( uonesmesdio 10 qnpd ‘dnoi3 e 01 djoy predun 9AI3,) 193jUN[OA S)NPE 1Y) UI UO IdpuUn Jsnf «

110ddns pooyoqusiou pue sdnoi3 Arejunjoa ‘uonoe Ayrunwtod Jo yromydied yorr e 3urpraoid 10303S pIIy) JUBIQIA B SBY AIYSPIOJIIOH <«

"A1] 01 90e[d © Sk BaIR [BOO] JIAY) YIIM PAIJSIes 1k (Uud) JO INO duru A[Iedu) Ajjeuoneu yim paredwod oidoad jo uonzodoid 1oy3y yonwr y - «
"J[9 2q 0} ANUIIUOD UOISSIIAI Y} JO SI0YFD Yl SB T[-110T

ur 9s11 Aewr SJRAJ Jey) 1sa33ns (ejep duo 1d)1en() uo paseq) suonddfoid Apred ysnoyle ‘110z pue 8007 UAIMIQ A[IUISISUOD UI[[EJ OS[e SBy W) «
“(WIMuMOop dIou09?d Y} JO JNSAI € st A[931.]) 60/800T U O PAQUIID 1 [9AJ] Y} J& surewdl Sururen) 1o judwAo[dws ‘uoneonpa

ul JOu SPJO JBAA §1-91 JO a3ejudd1ad oy} ySnoye ‘A[euoneu ueyl judwAo[dwoun JO S[OAJ] JOMO[ YONW SBY AIYSPIOJIIIH UOISSIIAI AY) YUM UIAT «
"HSDD 1B SAPRIT ) — 4V IOW IO AL} SUIAJIYIR Judd 1d 18 YIIm “Q[oym e se pue[3uy ul uey) suonedijirenb 191399 193 AjJeroudd

9rdoad SunoA mo ‘Ajjeuoneu yim paredwod ¢ d3e je Judwdo[Adp JO [9AJ] Po03 B Suradryoe udIp[Yd Jo uoniodoid 10MO[ B dABY oM y3Snoypy «
“UWOM I0J G/ PUB UdW IOJ [/ JOAO SI YuIq J& Aoue)oadxa 9J1 Ayiedy - A[[euoneu

uey) SSAUJ[I WIR)-3U0[ SUnNIWI] B JNOYIIM Pue Yi[edy poo3 ur sdAI[ 113y} Jo uoniodoid 1918313 € JAI] 03 P1dxd OS[e A1k dIMYSPIOJAIdH Ul uloq d[dodd «

12



b 7’1 UOISIOA

“UONBPOWIOIIE J[qeINns JO uoIsiaoid oy} Jo swd) ur saguaqreyd asod [[im
‘(so[eARI], BwOY puk AsdAD pue sanifIqesip SuruIed] YIm sjnpe dduejsur 10j) spadu Jursnoy tenonied ym sdnoi3 jo pue ‘doym e se uonendod
oy Jo somgdeiSowdp JuiSueyd Y], Iuisnoy [BIO0S IOJ PuBWAP YIIY SI I} puk “AIYSpIoJoIdoy ur wajqoid olewr e sr Ajfiqepiojye Suisnoy «
"UAIP[IYD IJ[[QARI], BWOY pue AsdAn) A[qejou
‘sdnoi3 orupe Auouru woiy sprdnd pue ‘spasu [euoneonpd [Broads Yim 3soy) Iurpnour “‘UdIP[IYD J[qeIdUNA JO sdnoi3 S[qeIIUIPI IAYIO UIIMIX]
sde3 judswrurene JuedyIuIIS [[1S e Y], SIS I3y URY) [[2M SSI[ OP [[13S AU} UIP[IYD JdYB PIANOO[ JO JUSWIAIIYIL [BUONEBINPS A} JOJ A[[euorieu
paredwod [[om swioydd AIYSpI0JRIOH ySnoyly Sursedrdur [[us SI (SyIey pue ysi3ug Jurpnour gSHOH 18 sopeid -,y 2IOW IO G JUIAJIYOE
spidnd) 4SHD 18 SYOST pue sprem Sunuiojrdd jsiom pue 1s9q Ul udamidq ded oy pue ‘uoneAndop 01 payurp A[Ied[d SI JudwWuIe)e [BUONBINPH <«
"SOOTAIIS IIM JUSWTLSUD PUNOIL SANSSI 9 ABW 1Y} Fu1ISAFINS SUONIPUOD 1Y) ASAY) YIM SUOISSIUPE [BIdSOoy I0J UdIS Jou ST
uoneALIdop YIIm UONRIOOSSE SIY ], "QIYSPIOJAIOH JO sedre paAridop 1sed] oy} 03 paredwiod uaym sedre paALIdop 1sow Y Ul JYSIY SAWI) 97 ST ISLISIP
1783y A18U0I0D 10J (SIBJA G/ 1opun pagde yeap) djer Ajjerzow dnjewdrd Syl 108J Ul — ISBISIP 1LY AJRUOIOD IO IJUBD AseasIp A101endsar druoIyd
woly dAp 0} A1 210w Os[e A1t Ay [, "9[doad FunoA ur Ajremnonted ‘Suonipuod paje[a1 [OYOI[e YIM Pue JUIPIOIR UR JO Isneddq [eidsoy 01 panmupe
9q 03 AJoYI[ 210W I8 AJY [, "SeaIe PIALIdIP SSI[ Ul ASOY) UBY) SAWOIINO YI[BAY ISIOM UAIAAXD seare PIALIdIp I1Sow s AIYSPIOFAISH Ul SUIAl] 9[dodd «
"3ursnoy [e100s Jo AJIsudp Y31y & YIm sedre
01 payuI] 2q 03 readde jey) s19300d MU PaYNUIPI Sey pue ‘FuneIondIdp St A1A0d priyd Jo J1yoid Ay Jey) sAjeNSUOWP I0JedIpul A}1dA0d PIIyd YL <«
-91doad 19p10 2311 UI SUO A[IBAU SR
[11S 31 — SSOY Pue PIOJAIAH ‘I9ISUTWOT JO sired — seare pajodyje 1SI0M A} U] “SuIseaIoul d1e AJunod Y Sso1de uoneAdap swodur yprm JurAlf
suonzodoxd oy} sajer 1say3Iy Ayl YPIm seare Ay} Jo dwos ur paroxdur sey axmord a3 ySnoype -o1doad 1opjo 1sSuowe Surgueyd s1 pyoxd sy ©
“JRYMIWOS PAMOIIRU SBY SedIe PAALIdap 1Sed pue jsouw )
udam)q desd ay) pue £0pz woiy paonpar sey uontodoxd o) ySnoye ‘Ajunod Y} JO SedIe JWOS Ul SJUIPISAI AL UL JUO UBY) IOW S}OJJJe )] O
:uoneAndap drdnnw Jo juduodwod Juo ST uoreALIdop Jwodu] «
"SBAIR UBQIN Ul UBY) JOYIIY 9q 0} A[OI] OS[e Ik

SurA1] ABPAISAD JO SIS0 Y} AIYM ‘Ajunod A} Jo seare [exnt ur JurAl] djdoad Jo sioqunu juedyIusIs Jo3jJe os[e uoneAndap jo sadA) ureire) o

13



S 7’1 UOISIOA

(1T-010T UI PAASIYIR 91 [ JO [QA] oY) wo) sanifiqesip Surured] yum djdoad a3e Jurjrom 10§
sanmumzoddo judwAojdwd ojur payroddns  sroquunu Ay} SSBAIOUL 0} PAAU IM SIITAIIS ABp PasIeuosidd d10w pue uonepOWOIIE Judpuddapur arow
‘SaNI[IOR} AJUNUIOd SS9 01 spadu poddns Jo [9A9] 1say31y a3 ym dpdoad 1oddns Ajarenrdordde jsowr om Moy AJIIUSpI 0} POAU M SUWID) [BIdUDT
d10w U "SAV1AIRS dendordde aFe 10J padu Y3 U ASLIIOUT UL 3] [[IM 1Y ], "dFe A3y} sk Aoudpuadap y3iy daey 0} A[ONI[ I8 dWOY J& JUIAI] SIDI[IQRSIP
JJRIOPOW M SO} PUB ‘GTOZ PUB [ 10T UIIMIDQ PIIY) duo AQq dseardur 0} pajddfoid st sanipiqesip Jurured] yum g9 1940 page dydoad jo roqumu ay .

218D
PuUE JudUBAI] JO JYOB[ JO Sud) ul suonedrjduwr sey siy [, "9oud[eAdrd pajoadxd ay) JO Iy} U0 AJUO ST SAITINS JO) Ul UA[BAId PIAISSqO Ay} ‘ATIUnod
dy) ssoxoe uonenys Ay} Jo [edrdAT "0€0z AQ 009°G 01 2[qnop Isowe p[nod 010z ur pAaodye drdoad o6z parewnsa Ayl jeyl 1sa33ns suonadfoig
"$1509 pue pajodyge 91doad Jo s1oqunu yioq JO SWId) Ul IYSPIOJOIIH UL IBD [BID0S PUR YI[BAY 0} AFUI[[RYD JUSTIN puk JuedYIu3Is B sjudsaid enudwaq

"JOPJO 2q 03 AJOYI] I8 SIAJISWAY} SIdILD Jet) FunOu YoM OS[E SI I "SPULY IO SAA[IWE I} O}
d1ed dp1aoid 03 Surpasu 91doad Jo roquunu a3 03 ApuedyIudis ppe a4 ‘uonendod Suree gy 01 AJurewr anp ‘AN[IQESIP JO S[OAJ] UI SISLAIOUL PAdAdxy

“3ursnoy 100d ur pue duoye JUIAI] 03 NP UONB[OSI JO JSII }SALAIT J SI PUB AILD [RIJ0S PUR [J[BIY UO SPUBIIP 15T ) Jef AQ soyewr dnoi3

SIYT "9Z20Z AQ 000 0T UBY} 2I0W 0) O[OZ UI 009G WOIJ 9Jel FUISLIIOUI U JB FUIMOIS dNUnNuod 0} PAjoadxa s1 1940 pue ¢8 pade ajdoad jo roqunu Ay 1.

<

“PRIOPISUOD 2q 0} Padu os[e soryderSowop oY) "210Joq PILAY Uq

sey 31 asneddq Isnl uen03103 jou St s1y) juerodwr ST 1 Inq Wl JWOS 0] PIASIUZ0931 uddq sey uonemdod s Aunod 3y} Jo 2IMonI)s 3. IP[0 A[SUISLAIOUT Y I,

sargdeaSowd(q SurSuey) (g

"2JOW JO SIBJA JATJ 10J Surwure[d uddq dAey Ajuolew Sy oM Jurydds A[oAnoe pue pasodwoun

dJe UBY) SUOSEBAI I[BAY JOJ JIOM 0} d[qeun dIe A} asneddq sygaudq wred 9jdoad Auew se sawmn) Jjey € pue oM} ‘UoIssad31 Ay Jo 1oedwr o adsaq
UWOM ‘A[JUd3I d10W ‘pue ($Z-81 Pade) synpe JunoA pajodjge Apremnonaed sey )| "uorssadax ay} 03 oud

uey) RYIIY Yonuw Urewdl pue A[Mo[s SuISeaIddp A1t S[OAJ[ JudwAojdwaun ‘pue[3uyg pue UoI3a1 SPURIPIA IS ) YHM paredwod Mo] [[1IS Y3noyy
"9JRWUI[O JTWOUO0I JUILIND

o) ur Ajrerdadss ‘seare [eant ur 9jdoad d[qeiduna 03 sa21A13s Jurpraoxd ur saSud[[eyd INIFIP JudsAId ued J1 puk SAVIAINS A FuISSAIOR ANOLJIP

doey Auepy pue[Sud ul eaIe AjLIoyIne [9A[-A1unod Aue jo uonodoid 1say3iy oy - seare pajendod Aesreds A19A ur saar] uonendod ay) Jo 1uenb v

<

<

<

14



9 7’1 UOISIOA

"800 0UIS SAOUIJJO JUS[OIA PAJR[I [OY0J[.
Ul 9seaIoul Aped)s Inq [[ews B Udq Sey 2I3Y} Y} PuB ([0 UI PAIL[AI [OY0J[B 1M SIOUIJJO ASNQe d1SAWOP JO %6¢ I8yl Surou yliom osfe st iy -oed
ul A1k sjudwaFueIIe SULIRYS BJBP JIUM SPUB[PIW JSIA\ U} UI BIIR IQYJO AUk URY) J PuU Y Pudlie sjnesse paje[a1-[oyodre jo uonzodord 10ysiy v«
“paALIdap 1seI[ Ay} WO S0y} Ul URY) SeAIe PIALIdOp ISOW A} WOy S| Idpun ur IySIy
S} 71 I8 SuonIpuod dGrddds-[oyodye 0} anp sdjel uorssiupe sedre paALdap jsow ay) ur dsoyl pue 9[doad FunoA isguowre urddOU0d renonted jo
AIB 3SAYL “[[/010T Ul SUONIPUOD S[qeINGII}IE-[OYOI[. YIIM SUOISSIWPE 00G E JOAO M “OSLI 0} dNUNUOD SUOISSIWpPE [e31dSoy Paje[aI-[oyoo[e JO sjey «
“QIIYSPIOJRISH Ul uorssrwpe [eydsoy pue ‘Yeay-[1 ‘yresp aanjeward o asned juepzodwr jsowr [3UIS AY) SUTBWAI FUD[OWS  «
:593ud[[eyd MIu 0} SUIped| OS[E IB YIIYM SINOIARYS(Q JAISYI] Ap[eaqun, AQ paoudnfjur a1e sy} Jo [

Ajredu ey} MOy M "VNS[ 0102 2y} Jo uonedrqnd dy) 0UIS IIYSPIOJAISH UIYIIM PITUBYOUN UTRWAI AJ[BIIOW Pue YI[edy-][I JO Sasned 1ofewr oy Jo Auey

SINOIARYYY PIIBI-YI[EIH Puk YBdH (¢ o

“TeIA 19)Je JeIA UINaI AUBW PUB YIOM A} AIYM SWLIR] ) UO PAIBPOWIOII. JIB JSOJ\ PuL[0d pue
BIUBWOY ‘euRI[Ng WOoIy udw 3unoA Apurew ‘Jowuns pue Jurids AI9Ad SIONIOM [euoseds Arerodwd) puesnoy) [BI2AJS JSOY 0) SINUNUOD AJUN0d Y], <«
"sammunod ueddoiny uId)sed IdYI0 Puk puejod A[urews () dY3 SPISINO UIOq SIAYIOW
0} 1B SYMIQ JO s1oqunu SuIsedIdu] “Surmoid st siy) inqg - uonendod Judprsar duylg AILIOUI PuB URISY SJe[d [[eWS A[OANR[AI € S JIYSPIOJOIRH <«
-91doad 19p[0 10 123UNok
2y yo suontodoid Y3y A[QATIR[OI A1k A1) 1M SI00d dABY SANI[BIO] [[€ ‘SUOIIBAIISQO [[RIDA0 IS} IASI(T "SUMO] Ja3Iew Y} Ul JAI] +08 PIFe
91doad jo suonaiodoid 1say3iy oy, (SL-St) synpe 19p[o jo suonodoid y3iy A[OANR[RI Sey IIYSPIOJRISH [BINI ISTIYM (4€-07 PaSe) sinpe SunoA jo
suontodoxd y3y Apoanerax s vonendod 103unoA e sey A1) pI0JIdH A[qelou 1sow ‘AJunod Ay punoIe Inionns 33e ul SOOUIIJIP dWOS ATk Y[, <«
"SQI[TWR} PUL UIP[IYD
I0J SIIIAIS JO uorsiaoxd ay) 10y suonedrdur dAey [[IM SIY) — A[[euoneu pue A[ed0[ yroq pajedonue uey) a1ow Juisur 9q 03 seadde sajex Anady

SB SIBOA MQJ JSB[ AU} Ul PJoadxd UBY) SYIIIQ QIOW UIQ JARY 1Y) ‘[[BJ 0} SSNUNUOD AJUNO0D Y} Ul SUIAI] UIP[IYD JO IOQUINU [[BIJA0 oY} YSnoyy «



L 7’1 UOISIOA

"s182A 71 JO 93k o) Aq 399 Juduewzdd J197) JO QU0 UT ABIIP PAOURIAAXD dARY G AIOAd UI

ueRy) IOW puB SIBIA G JO 938 ) AQ A8IIP Y00} JO OUALIIAX JWOS dARY UIPIYD G AIAD Ul 7 :100d ST IIYSPIOFIIOH UL UIP[IYD JO YI[edY [BIUIP Y L.
"S1BAA sno1Ad1d JO et} WO JUSIFIP APIuedTUSIS JOU SI eI Y} A[[BINISTIR)S PUR SIdqUINU [[eWs AIJA UO PIseq SI SIY) Ing ‘010 Ul SYIeap JO 1oqunu
U} UI ISLI [[BWUS B SeM QI "OMYSPIOJAIOH Ul Sulf[e Udaq pey Amn[ur pauruIdiopun pue dpIdINS WOl SYIedp JO Jel Y} SPUL} [BUONRU [IIM dUI] U]
"SJUIPIOIR 0} anp suorssrwpe [e3dsoy Aoud3Iowd JO 9,09 JA0

J0J unodde A3y S[[ey 01 anp 1edA 13d suorssiwupe [endsoy g0Q‘[ ISOW[e YA\ “SIUIPIOOE WO SUOISSIupe [e3dsoy Jo asned 1s3331q Ay} a1 S[[eJ Inq
‘SJUSPIOJL WOIJ YIBdp JO Asned 1s3331q Y} 21k SIUdPIode Jodsuel] “3ursu d1e suolssiupe [e3idsoy pue sajer Ajjeliow yjoq sjudprode Jo sadAy [[e 104
‘[euoneu uey) JYSIIY SUTBWAI SYIBIP puk SALM(ur peor Jo djer s IYspIoJIdH — d3ud[[eyd juelzoduwr ue st A19Jes peol AJunood [eini e sy

“A[Teuonieu uey) JQYSIY UTRWAI OIS WO SYIBIP INQ ‘SIBIA JUIIAI IDA0 A[[euonjeu uey) A[prder 210w ud[[e} Sey 901S 0} PAJL[I SYIBAP JO eI Y I,
"AJITe1I0W JSBISIP 1183 ATRU0IO0D

I0J A1MO[S 210w FuI[[e] dIB Puk AJI[LIIOW JAJULD I0J PASI[IqRIS dARY A} IIYSPIOJIISH UL IS[IYM ‘A[[euonjeu pue A[[euoI3a1 Jur[[e 21 3s3Y) JO y10q I0J
Sa1eI AJNTRIION “SIQ[[IY 1S9331q S A1unod ) urewdr Ay} Inq AJ[euor3al pue A[[euonjeu uey) JMO[ I8 JSBISIP 1IedY AIRU0IOd pue IdJUBD JO S[OAJ[ YL
"(sa3e 123unoA je uaddey 03 pud) A3y} douIs) Yreap 13d 50|

JJ1] JO s18A d3RIDAR 1SAYSIIY Ay} J0J A[qIsuodsal dIe SJUdPIdJL INQ “AINYSPIOJIIIH UI ISO[ JI[ JO SIBIAA, JO JUNOWE }s3JedIT ) J0J [qISu0dsar s1 190ue))
‘uorsudadAy uey 210w 10§ J[qrsuodsar st A3159qo Is[iym (drnssaxd poorq y3y) uorsudlrddAy pue (weanspoo[q Ay ur [013)SA[0YD JO

S[QAJ] Y31Y) BIWA[0ISI[OYIIdAY URY) SIYOMS JIOW puUEB ISBISIP 1LY ATBUOIOD [YONW Sk Jsowe 10J [qIsuodsai st Ayranoeur [edarsAyd SIIyspIoJoIdy uf
"9S9q0 I8 URIP[IYD 9 JeIA JO 9,6 pue udIp[IYd pade uondadar Jo 948 1eyl 10.] Ay} SOPIY OS[e I] “JURDIIJIUSIS A[[eO1SIIe]S 10U

SI [[BF SIY} ‘Sa3BIDAR [BUOIIBU MO[q 01 APYSII[S UI[[BJ dABY 0} WIS 9 J8IA puk uondadar ur A31saqo pooypIyd Y3noyIy S9qO dIe S)npe IYSPIOJIIdH
Jo 1durenb e jsowpe spuan [euoneu Yum dul uf “ypedp dmjewdld pue Aupiqesp ‘yiedy ood 01 10308 Sunnqrnuod iofew e se IuISIOWR SI A1ISAqQ)
"(BuruaaIds 19139q JO 3NSAI Y} 9q P[NoOd

SIY} Y3NnOoyIe) SASLISIP PIRIWISULI) AJ[ENXIS Ul IS B UIJQ SBY I} Pue ISLI 0} SINUNUOD NG MO[ A[ANER[AI SI sdroueudard 93eudd) Jo roquunu Ay I,

16



7’1 UOISIOA

"SOOIAIAS 0] SSAJOB puUL FUIEW UOISIOAP [BIMUI[D 3y} JO Afenb oy} “paAredar a1ed [edrur)d ay)
0} Paje[al a1e)) [B100S JNPY PUE YI[EIH 0} UOIR[I Ul J1u() IYSISU] JawoIsny) 3y} Y3n0oIy) PAAIII sjure[dwod [LWIO) WO PIFNUIPI SIWY) UIRW Y], <«
“u0IS1A0Id TAISS JO SSAUI[AWI) PUB UOISIAOI UOIBWIOJUI “UOBOIUNIIWOD 0} 9)B[I A[PROIQ SII0IS 1SIMO]
AU} PIAIdORI Jet) seare JY ], “A[jeuoneu s[eydsoy jsureSe payuel udym 9,07 Wonoq Ay} ur uonoseysyes juanied pamoys payse suonsanb ayl Jo 9,06 01
sasuodsar ‘[enndsoy Ajuno)) pI0JAISH YA UONILISHes judned ur uononpal e pamoys ([0z AdAIng judnedu] jeuoneN uorsstuwo)) Aijend) 1) YL «
“Jew10} d[qepueisiopun pue djeudoidde ue ur uonewrojur Surpraoid YInoiy) paA[osal
QIoM SASBd STV d U JO J[ey Jopun Isn{ "UONBIIUNWIWIOD JNOQE SUIOU0D JuISIel JO UOIRWLIOJUI 10J s}sanbar 1oyj1o a1om S30BIU0D 3SAY) JO JIeH “TBRA
snorAd1d oy} woIy [1/010Z Ul %09 Aq Pasea1oul (STVd) 9JTAIDS UOSIBIT PUB JIAPY JUdNRJ SIIIAIIS JI[qnd IIYSPIOJISH O} SIOBIUO0D JO I_qUINU Y], <«
RUETN
1SB[ U) UI dwI) JY) JO [[€ JO JSOUW SIIAIRS d1jqnd [820] AQ UOIIRIIPISUOD puk 10dSsaI YIIm pjear) uddq pey AdY) 3[9J SIUSPISAI INOJ UI AIY] O
"UONIJ[0 asnyAI yPim Addey a1om ud) ur YT IOAO dDOURISUL 10J “IYIIY
[onuwr Sem SJTAISS 91J10dS YIIm uondeysnes ygnoyj[e ‘[[eI9A0 SSUIY) Sun [10Uno)) IYSPIOJIISH ABM dU) YIIM 1Y) UI U0 pue AIe[ngeisuo))
BIOIQN 1SOA\ UMM JIBU JOAO ‘DOIAIRS QNOSAY PuUB I IAISAVI0OA\ 2 PIOJAIOH 2yl Yum pagsnes a1om d[doad ud) Jo no 1y uey) IO O
“Tendsoy] syeo0] 10 JO) Ay} SS9O9€ 0} JNILFIP 3 PUNOJ AL UL U0 A[JRAN “INILJIP
11 Surpurj ud) ul ARAIY) A0 YNm 9doad 10J anss1 $$3008 I01AISS Juelrodwur Jsowr Ay} IeJ AQ SeM ISIIUSdP B 39S 01 Funidd ‘puey IOYI0 Yl
uQ ‘ISHUSP DY) YIM U} Ul UAJS pue [e3idsoy [ed0] Y1 YIm ud) JO IO SIS A[1edu ‘d0) J13Y) YIM PIIJSHES I8 SJUIPISAI U} UI dUIU A[JBIN
"I19139q 2q PINOYS [ Ay} SS208 punore sjoadse d1J10ads a1k 219y} INg “AINYSPIOFIIH UI SAIIAIRS Iy ym Addey Ajjeroudsd aie sjuapisay o
"$19911S UBA[O pue 1odsuer) oriqnd
‘ursnoy Judd3p J[qepioye are daoxdwr 01 Furpadu pue juerrodwr Yloq se SJUIPISAI Aq PAYSIYSIY IYSPIOFIIdH ur J1] Jo Aypenb jo spoadsy o
"POOYINOqUSIoU )BIPAWTUL
119y} 01 PASuo[aq Ady Jey) A[Suo1s I[F 21U} Ul OM] pue JAI] 0} dde[d © St BaIR [BOO[ JIOY) M PILJSIILS I8 SJUIPISAI U} Ul dulu A[JBAN O
:AAInS §00T Ay} 03 FUIPIODY <«

"1 107 uwnine ur pajeadar 9q 03 anp ‘AAIMS 1T JO Ajfen() NYSPIOJAIdH Y00T A Sem AJunod 3y Ul I JO SMIIA SIUIPISAI JO AdAINS 10[ew Ise] Ay I,

SN plol dAeH ajdoad Jeym (¥

17



6 7’1 UOISIOA

“UOIJBOO[[B 90INOSAT
pue Suruue(d 2014195 oddns s1a1Rd pPUB JIBD JOJ PAAU ‘SIITAIIS IOJ PAAU ‘SIITAIIS JO Asn “Ajerrowr ‘AJIprqiowr uo 39932 JO SWII) Ul - SUONBSIURIIO
d1B) RIO0S PUB [I[BIY IO oq [[IM SIy) JO sjoedwr U} JeyM UO PIPASU SI JIOM 0w ng Pastu3odar [[om st dgoid omderSowap Juidueyd dy,
“‘puaxn 3ursu [enudjod B JO UONBIYNUIPI A[IBS J[qRUD 0} A[2SO[O PAI0IIUOW 3 0 PAAU AIn[Ur pauruIdidpun pue dpIdms 03 dnp syiedq

"s1op1A01d 21ed [BID0S PUR [)[eay YSNOIY) St [[oM SE [}[eaY JO SIUBUIILIISP [B100S Y} Y3NOIY) SINSSI 3SAY} SSAIPPE

UuBd 9M MOY JO PUB ‘QIIYSPIOJIISH UI SAWOIINO [I[BAY PUB SIDIAIIS JO SN ‘UONLBALIOP U9MIQ UOIIRID0SSE 3} JO Surpueisiopun y3dap Ul J0W € PIdU A\
"soryoad Surdueyd yons

01 puodsax 0) pauIISOP I8 SANIAIDE  SIIPJOYEIS ety juerrodur st J1 — uonuaye Juroduo saxmbar Ajxxa0d priyd pue uoneandap jo ayord Fuidueyd Ay,
"ssa1301d paurejsns 19A1p doe[d

ur ind sa139181S JudwAoIdwI AINSu 0) - Jurrojuow Furo3uo sAambax 101 A3eIS UOIBPUNO] SIBI A A[IeH dY) UI G JOPUN UIP[IYD JO JUSWIAIIYIL Y[,
"SBAIR TRInI Ul A[[eroadsd ‘s01A1ds s ud1p[iyd Aypenb y3iy jo Aipiqeure)sns

a3 03 d5uR[Teyd & dsod A3y} 10U JO IYIOYM AJJUSPI 0] PAIOIIUOW o 0} SNUIIUOD 0} PAAU [[IM eI YMIQ Y} PUB AIYSPIOJAIOH UI UIP[IYD JO IdqUINU Y J,
‘wa1qo1d Suimois siy) 03 suonnjos diysoulred darsuaydrdwod

AJIJUIPI 0} JUSWISSISSE SPAU )dop Ul UB POPUSWWOIAI JARY dM — UONUE SAINbal [oyoo[e 0 anp S0 [€IAI00S IOPIM pue AJpiqiowr SuIsir oy,

1

“SEOM [3dap UT 91OW 10 SISA[EUe Joying 10J SUOEpUSUIIOodd g

“WAY) JO dWOS JO 193dsar ur Aemidpun 9q Apeaije Aew JI0M pPue BIOJ

JUBAJ[QI Y} OIUI ASAY} P 0} A Y} INOYSNOIY) TUDJIOM U dARY A\ "JBdA 1SB[ Y} IOA0 pdO[Adp ALY Jey) SaNSSI FUISIOW pue mau demsdedud op

Aoy y3noype ‘s1edh snoradxd ur payyriudpr S0y} 03 JR[IWUIS UTRWAI UONOR JuLmbar sa3ud[[eyd Auew jey) suedw YNS[ U} JO I1njeu 3y} Jey) palou 3q p[noys i

"IedA ) INOYINOIY) J[qe[IBAR dWOII( SISA[BULR PUB UOHRWIOJUI SB A[Snonurjuod pajepdn SI yorym 91s-qom YNS[

oY} UO SOsATeur PI[ILISP Y} UIYIM PUNOJ oq [[IM SUOHBPUIWIOIAI 1J102ds-01d0) pa[rejop a1owr oy} — [9AS[-YSIY, AJISSIO9U JO I8 SUOHBPUSWUIOIT S [,

SUOI)EPUIW W 0IY

18



0l 7’1 UOISIOA

"9[qe[IBAE SOW093q I SB 2)IS-qM Y} 0} Pappe 2q [[IM Z1/] 107 INOoySnoy) udyeopun s ey} sisA[eue pue uonewiojur Suro§uQ

"9)IS-QaM VNS Y} U0 BUSI}NA0S-9JTYSPI0JIIY MMM JB PUnoj 9q Ued sanssi asay) Jo Surpuejsiopun [[n} & sapraoid jey) sisAjeue yrdop-ur pue [1e3op oy,

syudwdo[aAdp danyn

)1 Ssa1ppe 0} syoed uonewoyur proY Judned Jo Juddo[dAIP ) UT PIAJOAUT U] U} puk uorsiaoid ur de3 e pagrauapr
aAey syuaned aroym - Aemiied 21e)) SAJOqeI(] PUB JIOMISN J9OUB)) SINUNO0)) AIY ], A} Sk yons — do10e1d poo3 Jo S[opow uo p[ing pinoys Ay 3 AT
01 Juem AU} MOY pue — PAAU A3} UOIIBWIOUI Y} JNOge SN [[3) SIdSn IIAIIS pue sjudnjed jeym 01 Surudlsi] Aq ‘vaey ddoad jeyy dousuadxd oy} dA01dwr 0}
SI) SSQIPPE O} PAAU A\ "2IBIYI[BY INOGE UONBWLIOJUI JO UOISIA0Id ) puB UONEIIUNWILIOD PUNOIR ANSSI UB 9q ABW 1Y) Jey) S1sA33ns yoeqpasy judned

"10J09s A10JNJe)S AU} pUR SUONEBSIUBSIO J0JIIS PIIY) USIMIDQ SUI] JO YIMOIS JAIIIYIS )

2INSUD 0) PAdU OS[e A\ "PeaIds s 1 SuISeINOOUD PUB SISIXI J1 AIYM DUI[[2IX pue 3d1de1d poo3 3sTuF0931 ‘suonesuesio 10309s payl 1xoddns 0) pasu o
"SOWIOY UMO JIdY} pue sAnI[ed0] umo 1y} ur 9[doad 03 Sa01A13s Fuliq 01 SAIFO[OUYI)

MIU JO asn dyew pPue dJeAOUUI 0) dNUIIUOD O} PAAU M — dNewA[qOoId SIJIAISS [[B JO AIDAI[OP PUB 0) S$SIOJB W UBD AIYSPIOJAIdH JO AjIjernt Y]
"SONIUNUIIIOD [BO0] UM SUSIOM PaNunuod

dxmbar 1M ‘SI9[[9ARI ] Oy puk sAIsdAD) 10J sayolid pasuoyine [euonIppe J0J PAAU PIASLAIdUI Uk Sk yons ‘sansst 13 “suonemndod ay) Jo spadu Sursnoy
panoddns oy opraoid 01 papadu sayoeoidde dAneAOUUT YIIM PAIIPISUOD q 0} PAdu sdnoi3 1PYJ0 pue 3sAY} JO SPAAu JuIsSnoy Y} SIY) YIM WIPUL} Uf
"SOAI] PI[[IFINJ Ped] 01 pue 2d0d 01 WY} S[qRUD 0} “PASSAIPPE 9 0} PAJU OS[ SAI[IWER] Pue SIdILD I3 JO spadu poddns ay T, “swopqoid yiyeay

[eIudW I9AJS 03 Aerdpowr yum dydoad pue ‘sanipiqesip Jurured] ym d[doad ‘enjudwdp yum 3soy) ‘g8 I19A0 dydoad sopnjour SIyJ, "SSWOY UMO JIdY} Ul
Apyuapuadapur 9AI] 01 WAY) J[BUD 0) SIJTAIIS Judwd[qe-21 pue 1roddns pasieuosiad axmbar [im oym uonemndod oy Jo uontodoid Sursearour ue ST 1Y I,
"PAIINDD0 dARY A} 99U0 WY} Funean Ajdwis uey) Jdyie1 OULINII0 ISI ) SIuAdd ety s[rey o1 yoeoidde 1opim e

Pasu am s1y} Jo 1red se — saFe [[e SS010' SJudPIdde JO J[1301d JUIFJIP Y} SSTUS0IAI ey} SIUIPIIJL WOIJ WiIey Y} 0NPaI 0} sdwrwer3ord Furo3uo padu I
“sarpey 119y} pue 9pdoad SunoA pue udIP[IYD IOJ Se [[OM St SINPE. I0J M) ST SIY ], "OSLISIP pue [3[edy [[I JudAd1d 03 I9PIO UI SINOIABYI(Q J[AISIJI] S}

SSAIpPPE 0] PAAU M Funjows YHM SUOy “AIYSPIOJOIOH Ul AJI[BIIOW Puk AJIPIGIOW JO SAsned Iofewr st PaIudpI Udd(q dARY AJISIQO pue ANATIORUI [BIISAUJ

1

SISUOTSSTWIIO) 10J 98US[[EYD U} :SUONEPUIWIod] Iol0

19



20



THE HEREFORDSHIRE
partnership

the state of Herefordshire report
2011

Key findings

21



Cover photos:

Queenswood

Leominster industrial estate, and the new Earl Mortimer College
Space-hopper race at STAG (Steen’s Bridge Youth Group)
Babies enjoying “Bounce and Rhyme” at the library

View to the Black Mountains from near Pudleston

School pupils learn about road safety at a “Dying to Drive” event
Cider making at Kington Show

22



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Introduction

This chapter summarises the key findings from the 2011 State of Herefordshire report, highlighting
important issues for Herefordshire and where appropriate whether this is likely to be a strength,
weakness, opportunity or threat for the county. This report includes findings from the following
themes:

Population

Economic Development and Enterprise
Health and Wellbeing

Children and Young People
Environment

Safer Communities

Stronger Communities

Housing

The State of Herefordshire Report is published annually and uses the most up-to-date information
available at the time of writing, much of which in this report relates to 2010-11 financial year. Once
new information is released updates will be published electronically with commentary on the Facts
and Figures about Herefordshire website.

This chapter of the State of Herefordshire report 2011 was produced by Herefordshire
Partnership's Researchers in conjunction with colleagues from across the organisation and signed

off by the Herefordshire Partnership Executive Group.
We would like to thank all colleagues who have contributed to and helped to edit this
chapter.

Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats were identified by thinking about what impact the
key findings would have either on the county as a whole or particular public services that work in
that field. There are some general principles that were used to assign a particular SWOT
designation:

Strength - Herefordshire is performing well, either locally or compared to elsewhere, or made
recent improvements

Weakness - Herefordshire is performing badly, either locally or compared to elsewhere, and has
made no recent improvements

Opportunity - some improvements have been made locally however not enough to make it a
strength therefore seen as an opportunity to further improve

Threat or Challenge - this is where new issues or new evidence have been highlighted making an
issue a potential threat or challenge for the county or where there is a current or future issue for
the county that may prove difficult for public services to address i.e. it may be largely out of their
control or difficult to influence

It has not been possible to produce the full theme chapters of the State of Herefordshire report for
2011. The 2010 chapters are still available from the Facts and Figures website (see link below).
Analysis for some topics has been updated and is also available from the website. If you are
unsure whether something has been updated please get in touch using the contact details below.

www.herefordshire.gov.uk/FactsandFigures

Herefordshire Partnership Research Team
Contact details: 01432 260 893
email: researchteam@herefordshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 48

23



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Contents

Summary of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities or threats................................... 3
o] o0 £= 1 o] o [ 10
Economic development and enterprise.............coooooimeiei i 14
Economic structure and competitiveness ...............cceeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee 14
People and the labour market ................cccooiiiiiiiiiiieee e 16
Herefordshire as a place for business ...................ccccoieiiiviiieeeeeeeeeee 21
TranSPOIT. .........o e e 23
Health and Well-being......... ..o 25
Healthy COMMUNITIES .............ooeeeeeeeeeeee e 25
Older and vulnerable people living independently ................cccccceeeeeueueueneennnnnnn. 28
Children and YOUNG PeOPIE ..o 31
ENVIFONMENT ... e 35
Safer CommUNItI®S ..o 39
COMMUNIEY SAFELY ... e 39
FFEWEE ACCIAENTS ... 40
StroNger COMMUNILIES ... oo e 43
[ [0 TUE=] o o TR 46

Page 2 of 48

24



Summary of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities or threats

Opportunity Page
number

The population of Herefordshire is increasing due to net in-migration, mainly from other parts of the UK — although growth

c has slowed during the recession. 1o
-.% Herefordshire has a relatively small, but growing, Black, Asian & Minority Ethnic (BAME) population 12
:51 There has been a dramatic increase in numbers of migrant workers coming to Herefordshire since the expansion of the
8 European Union in 2004, although it is not possible to determine how many have stayed. There is therefore no single 13
estimate of the number in the county at any one time.
The issues rated as most important for employers in Herefordshire in May 2010 were suitability of premises for business, 16
E. access by road, and environment for staff and customers
r o The rateable value of commercial property is low in Herefordshire compared to the West Midlands and England 21
7 - Businesses and residents identify congestion (in Hereford City) as in need of improvement, although in 2010 the picture 23
w for congestion in Hereford City was not clear
The rate of deaths related to stroke has fallen more rapidly than nationally over recent years, but deaths from stroke o5
3 2 remain higher than nationally
s E Over the last 5 years 30 adults with learning disability have moved from care homes into their own tenancies; further
P = developing appropriate housing and support options could allow more people to attain their own tenancies or move back 30
s to live in the county.
o A decrease in numbers of young people as victims of violence against the person offences 32
T -
s § Although Herefordshire performs relatively well compared with nationally for the educational achievement of looked after 33
Sa children they still do less well than their peers
52
'_S 3 Secondary school persistent absence rates have improved 33
>

Page 3 of 48



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

9¢

Opportunity

Environment

Safer
Communities

Stronger
Communities

Housing

Access to nature is important to Herefordshire’s residents in making somewhere a good place to live

Households in Herefordshire are producing less waste and a greater proportion of household waste is now being recycled

The number of anti-social behaviour incidents has reduced in Herefordshire, although anti-social behaviour remains a
concern for a large proportion of Herefordshire residents

Residents are generally happy with health services in Herefordshire, but there are specific aspects around access they
feel should be better

Satisfaction with other public services was generally high but had fallen for some
Over one in five of residents felt well-informed about what to do in the event of a large-scale emergency

Affordable decent housing, public transport and clean streets are regarded as both important and needing to improve.
However, when asked to trade-off investment in services the priories were, tackling traffic congestion, more support for
families to protect vulnerable children and maintaining adult social care services

There was a decrease in the number of people applying and accepted as homeless in Herefordshire in 2010-11; following
an increase between 2006-07 and 2008-09

Page 4 of 48

35

37

39

43

43
45

45

46



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

x4

STRENGTH

Safer
Commu

Health &

c
o
=
>
c
w

Economy

wellbeing

v
c
)
£

nities

Strength Page
number

Herefordshire has a lower rate of new business start-ups than England as a whole, but start-ups are surviving longer 15

than regionally and nationally. In 2009 the rate of new business formation had slowed.

The rate of self-employment in Herefordshire is higher than in the West Midlands and England as a whole. 17

Herefordshire has a relatively high employment rate, 76% in 09-10, compared to 69% in the West Midlands and 71% 17

nationally

Herefordshire has a longer life expectancy that is healthy and disability free and life expectancy in general than regionally 05
and nationally
The rate of overall premature mortality has fallen consistently over recent years and remains lower than nationally 28

A high proportion of adults with learning disability have taken up personal budgets 30

Less of Herefordshire’s designated built and historic environment is at high risk!" in 2010 compared to 2009 35
Local wildlife sites and sites of special scientific interest in Herefordshire are increasingly being better managed 36
The number of accidental dwelling fires has fallen by over 10% and, despite a small increase in the total number of fires 41
attended this year, the overall trend remains downward

The number of people killed in fire incidents remains very low 41

Page 5 of 48




State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

8¢

. Stronger
FeROlEife Communities

Economy

Three-quarters of residents believed they had been treated with respect and consideration by local public services

Threat and challenge

Herefordshire is a sparsely populated county.

Herefordshire's population has a relatively old age structure; and numbers of older people are expected to increase
disproportionately to the total population.

The age profile of the potential resident workforce is changing

Despite the increase in unemployment due to the recession, more people in Herefordshire claim an out-of-work benefit
because they are unable to work for health reasons than because they are unemployed and actively seeking work.

Skilled trade occupations account for a relatively large proportion of those in employment; employers find skilled trade
vacancies hard-to-fill; and skilled trade vacancies account for the highest proportion of skill shortage vacancies

Employers report that there are skills gaps in managerial and skilled trade occupations and that some young people are
poorly prepared for work

There is still demand for migrant labour in Herefordshire that employers report would be difficult to fill from other sources
Based on past trends total employment in Herefordshire is projected to decrease

Access to broadband, mobile phone services and other infrastructure is an issue for some residents and businesses in
rural areas

Emissions of CO, from the industry and commerce have decreased, but both climate change and volatility in energy
prices will pose challenges for both businesses and residents in future

Herefordshire loses approximately 5% of its working age population who travel to work outside the county

Page 6 of 48

44

Page
number

10
11

16

18

19

19

20
20

21

22

22



6¢

Health & wellbeing

Children and Young

People

Threat and challenge

The levels of cancer and coronary heart disease are lower than nationally and regionally but they remain the county’s
biggest killers

Smoking remains the single most important cause of premature death, ill-health and hospital admission in Herefordshire
Obesity is emerging as a major contributory factor to poor health, disability and premature death

In line with national trends suicide rates had been declining, but have not reduced further since 2002. There was a small,
although not statistically significant, rise in 2010.

Numbers of sexually transmitted infections (STIs) rose sharply in 2009

The number of 18 - 64 year olds with disabilities in Herefordshire is likely to increase by 2026

Reliance on and support for carers is currently a challenge and will only get worse in future years

Adults with mental health disorders are a concern locally with higher than average numbers and work needed around the
support via GPs and for housing

Low numbers of adults with a learning disability of working age are currently supported in employment, (11% in 2010-11)
although the proportions are among the highest in England.

A substantial increase in numbers of older people that will have some dependency on social care in Herefordshire is
expected by 2020. Within this, there is also expected to be a disproportionate increase in the number of older people
with dementia.

Demography will impose increasing demands for learning disability services as one cohort of users and their carers age,
and as another cohort of younger people with more profound disabilities move into adulthood

Healthy lifestyle choices for teenage girls remain a concern, particularly as alcohol related hospital admissions have risen
Bullying is still a concern in Herefordshire

The gap in attainment between the best and worst performing areas at GCSE is still increasing; and in 2010 there were
more areas amongst the most deprived in England in terms of achievement in education and skills

Early years achievement against the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP)

Not as many young people, including young offenders and care leavers, engaged with education, employment and
training as is wanted

The child poverty indicator demonstrates that the profile of child poverty is deteriorating , and has identified new pockets
that appear to be linked to areas with a high density of social housing

Page 7 of 48

25

27
27

27

28
29
29

29

30

30

30

32
32
32
34

34



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

0¢

Stronger

Environment

Safer Communities

Communiti

Housing

es

Threat and challenge

Salmon, which are an iconic species, saw considerable decline in the mid 1990s and catch numbers remain low.
Emissions of CO, decreased in Herefordshire between 2005 and 2008, but remain higher than for the UK as a whole
Changes to the global and local climate will directly impact on the quality of people’s daily lives.

Air quality (as measured by Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,) Emissions) has worsened in the last year across the majority of
monitoring sites in the county

Overall crime is low and has been decreasing, but economic conditions risk a reversal of this trend

Alcohol misuse is a growing problem, affecting A&E attendances, hospital admissions and crime levels

Increasing reoffending rates

Fires - Hoax calls continue to be driven down

Whilst the number of people killed or seriously injured on Herefordshire’s roads has been decreasing, the Hereford and
Worcester Fire and Rescue Service still attends the equivalent of four road traffic collisions each week in Herefordshire

The number of fatal incidents involving young road users is a concern and there has been a notable increase in “drink
drive” related accidents, but the number of motorcycle collisions has decreased.

Falls are still the single largest cause of admission to hospital due to an accident

Access to key services in rural parts of Herefordshire is notably worse when compared to other parts of England
Language can be a problem for some minority groups, particularly in accessing health services

In 2008, 29% of residents felt that they could influence decisions affecting their local area

Access to finance was the biggest problem facing third sector organisations in 2010

A combination of already high proportions of pensioner households and an ageing population may result in an increasing

need for certain types of suitable accommodation

High demand for affordable properties in Herefordshire, in particular in Hereford City

Stock condition of privately rented dwellings is worse than for other tenures

Economic conditions are having an impact on the supply of affordable housing in Herefordshire

Page 8 of 48

36
37
38

38

39
39
40
40

41

42

42
43
43
44
44

47
48
47



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

L€

WEAKNESS

Economy

Children and Health &

mmunities Young People wellbeing

Safer

Housing Co

Weakness

Herefordshire's economic output is low compared to regionally and nationally

Herefordshire's weekly work based earnings are low compared to regionally and nationally and the gap between
Herefordshire's earnings and those of the West Midlands region and England as a whole is getting wider.

Although still low compared with the West Midlands region and England, unemployment is decreasing slowly and
remains much higher than prior to the recession

Pockets of deprivation are concentrated in urban areas of Herefordshire, but smaller pockets also occur in more rural
areas.

Qualification rates in Herefordshire were lower than across England in 2010

Significant health inequalities exist between those living in the most and least deprived areas

Increasing numbers of older people living in income deprivation

Dental health of children in the county is poor by regional and national standards
Decreasing proportions of mothers breastfeeding

Large gap between academic achievement of all pupils and those with identified Special Educational Needs and those
receiving Free School Meals

Absenteeism rates - primary, secondary, Looked After Children primary

Domestic Abuse

The mortality rate from accidents is high and hospital admission levels are rising

Herefordshire has the worst housing affordability ratio of all local authorities within the West Midlands region

Page 9 of 48

Page
number
14

15

17

18

19
26

28

31
31

33

40

40

47



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Population

Population

Herefordshire is a sparsely populated county.

Herefordshire is a predominately rural county of 2,180 square kilometres (842 square
miles) situated in the south-west corner of the West Midlands region bordering Wales. With
179,300 residents, it has the 4™ lowest population density in England: 80 persons per
square kilometre.

A particular challenge for service delivery is how scattered the population is. According to
measures used in the calculation of the Local Government Finance Settlement, no other
English county-level authority had a greater proportion of its population living in ‘very
sparse’ Output Areas in 2001 than Herefordshire (25%). Over half (54%) of the county’s
residents live in areas defined as rural.

Sources: ONS 2010 mid-year population estimates, mid-2009 Small Area Population Estimates and
2001 Census (Crown copyright); Defra’s rural-urban classifications of Lower Super Output Areas.

The population of Herefordshire is increasing due to net in-migration, mainly from
other parts of the UK - although growth has slowed during the recession.
Herefordshire’s resident population grew by 3% between 2001 and 2010 — which is the
same as that of the West Midlands region overall (3%), but lower than England & Wales
(+6%). As there have been fewer births than deaths over the period, this growth in
Herefordshire’s population has been entirely due to net in-migration (i.e. more people
moving into the county than moving out). Although there has been some net in-migration

from overseas since 2004-05, the vast majority (between 70% and 100%) of annual net
migration is from other parts of the UK — mainly London and the south-east.

Annual population growth has slowed in the last couple of years, mainly because of
decreases in net migration from both the UK and overseas — possibly due to the impact of
the recession on job and housing availability (see Housing key findings). These changes,
along with revisions to the population estimates, mean that predictions have over-estimated
total population for the last few years. Itis not yet known what the longer-term impact will
be, but a net increase of 16,600 new dwellings between 2006 and 2026 was expected to
lead to a total population of 193,600 in 2026, 8% higher than the current (2010) estimate of
179,300.

Sources: ONS population estimates (Crown copyright), Regional Trends 43: Impact of the Recession
and 2008-based sub-national population projections; Herefordshire Council Research Team’s 2006-
based population forecasts.

Page 10 of 48

32



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Population

Herefordshire’s population has a relatively old age structure; and numbers of older
people are expected to increase disproportionately to the total population.

Just over a fifth (22%) of Herefordshire’s population is aged 65 and over (39,800 people),
compared to 17% both regionally and nationally. Numbers of older people have grown
more rapidly locally than nationally: there are 18% more people aged 65+ living in
Herefordshire in 2010 than in 2001, compared to 10% more in England & Wales.

This growth is expected to continue, mainly driven by the ageing of the current population
as the post-war ‘baby boomers’ move into retirement age (see chart 1). There are
expected to be over 60,000 people aged 65+ living in the county by 2026, over 50% more
than currently.

In particular, the number of people aged 85 and over is expected to continue growing at an
increasing rate, from 5,600 in 2010 to more than 10,000 by 2026. This group makes by far
the greatest demands on health and social care and is at greatest risk of isolation due to
living alone and in poor housing.

Chart 1: Age structure of population, mid-2010 (Lines represent E&W; bars Herefordshire)

2010 Population Pyramid: Herefordshire and E&W

90+ = i
85 FJmaIe Males

o 45
=]

1.50 1.25 1.00 0.75 0.50 0.25 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.50
% of total population

Source: ONS 2010 mid-year estimates © Crown copyright
Source: ONS population estimates (Crown copyright), Herefordshire Council Research Team’s

2006-based population forecasts and “Future social care needs of older people” (2006);
Herefordshire Council Social Care client data (April-July 2010).

Page 11 of 48

33



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Population

OPPORTUNITIES,

Although overall numbers of children continue to fall, there have been more births
than expected in recent years.

The current proportion of Herefordshire’s population aged under 16 (17%) is similar to
England & Wales (19%), but numbers have been falling consistently throughout the last
decade, from 34,000 in 2001 to 30,800 in 2010.

The county experiences net in-migration of children each year, but the main factor
influencing the total number of resident children is the number of births. The observed
decline in total children is due to the downward trend in annual births throughout the 1990s,
and is expected to continue until 2016, sixteen years after numbers of births began to rise.
The 2006-based forecasts predicted that numbers of children would stabilise at around
29,000 in 2016 (6% below 2010 levels), reflecting the expectation that numbers of births
would level off at around 1,600-1,700 per year from 2007.

However, there were 1,800-1,900 births a year from 2007-08 to 2009-10 — 100-200 more
each year than predicted; and provisional figures suggest the same for 2010-11. The
under-prediction is due to fertility rates (i.e. the number of births per woman in child-bearing
age groups) rising more than national projections assumed, particularly in Herefordshire. It
is not yet known whether these high fertility rates will continue, but numbers of births would
need to remain at this level for a sustained period of time for numbers of children to rise
back to even current levels after 2016.

Sources: ONS mid-year population estimates and national population projections (Crown copyright);
Herefordshire Council Research Team’s 2006-based population forecasts; provisional births data
from NHS Herefordshire.

Herefordshire has a relatively small, but growing, Black, Asian & Minority Ethnic
(BAME) population.

Estimates suggest that 6% of Herefordshire’s resident population (10,500 people) are from
an ethnic group other than ‘white British’, which is very low compared to both England and
the West Midlands region overall (17% & 18% respectively).

However, the county’s BAME population has more than doubled between 2001 and 2009;
increasing by 141%, compared to a 3% growth in its total population. 'White other’ (than
British or Irish) is by far the largest BAME group (4,300 residents), but numbers in the
‘Asian or Asian British’ and ‘Black or Black British’ groups have increased the most —
quadrupling between 2001 and 2009.

The BAME population has a younger age profile than the county as a whole: almost half of
all BAME residents are aged 16-44, compared to just a third of the whole population —
although both have similar proportions of under 16s.

Increasing numbers of births are to mothers born outside the UK (200 in 2009 — 13% of all
births, up from 100 in 2003 — 6% of total). Since 2006 the non-UK born mothers have
mainly come from Poland (31%) or other Eastern European countries (14%).

Source: ONS experimental estimates of population by ethnic group and births by country of mother’s
birth — Crown copyright.

Page 12 of 48

34



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Population

There has been a dramatic increase in numbers of migrant workers coming to
Herefordshire since the expansion of the European Union in 2004, although it is not
possible to determine how many have stayed. There is therefore no single estimate
of the number in the county at any one time.

OPPORTUNITIES,

For instance, despite being 20% lower in the last two years (about 2,600 in 2009/10 and
2010/11) than the peak of 3,300 in 2008/09, annual National Insurance Number
registrations from overseas nationals in Herefordshire are still almost ten times higher than
in 2002/03 (compared to national registrations now being less than twice what they were in
2002/03 — see chart 2). However, there is no requirement to de-register if leaving the UK.

Current evidence suggests the majority of Herefordshire’s migrant workers are seasonal
workers and other short-term migrants intending to stay in the UK for under a year. The
definition of ‘usual residence’ means they are not counted as part of the resident
population, but nonetheless have an impact on services e.g. health services (migrant
workers would need to change their country of residence for at least a year before being
counted as a usual resident).

During 2011, a total of 5,000 individual seasonal workers from overseas (mainly Bulgaria,
Romania and Poland) were expected to be employed on farms in Herefordshire. Numbers
expected at any one time peaked at 3,100 in May. The total number of individuals
expected was 10% higher than in 2010, although still notably lower than the 6,700 expected
in 2008.

Chart 2: Trends in annual number of new National Insurance Number (NINo) registrations
to overseas nationals

1400
Annual Number of NINo Registrations
(indexed on 2002/03)
1200 A
o 1000 A
o
-
u
=] 800 A
S Herefordshire
& 600 — = WMR
X
o —a— UK
T 400
200 4
o T T T T T T T T
2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
Financial year

Source: Department for Works & Pensions (DWP)

Sources for text: DWP and Surveys of Seasonal Workers on Farms in Herefordshire, Herefordshire
Partnership

Page 13 of 48

35



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

Economic development and enterprise

WEAKNESS

Economic structure and competitiveness

Herefordshire's economic output is low compared to regionally and nationally

Herefordshire’s economic output, as measured by Gross Value Added (GVA) per resident,
is low and has increased at a lower rate than both the West Midlands region and England
as a whole over the last ten years. This has resulted in a widening of the gap between
Herefordshire and the rest of the West Midlands and England.

The difference in output (GVA per resident) between Herefordshire and the England as a
whole can be explained by differences in the value added per hour worked, the number of
hours worked per job and the amount of commuting out of the county. The low value added
per hour worked in Herefordshire is a result of lower wages and the type of work carried out
in the county. For example someone working in low technology manufacturing is likely to
earn less in Herefordshire, but may also generate less revenue for every hour they work
compared to an employee working in a high technology business. Herefordshire has a
dominance of low value added sectors such as agriculture, wholesale and retail and public
administration, education, health and other services. Herefordshire also has a smaller
proportion of employees in knowledge intensive industries than regionally and nationally,
which typically are higher paid jobs. Value added is measured at an employee’s place of
work. Herefordshire experiences a net loss of residents who commute out of the county to
work, which negatively affects the GVA per resident measure.

Chart 3. Proportion of gross value added by industry sector in Herefordshire 2008

.

Agriculture,
forestry and
fishing, 9%

Public
administration,
education,
health and
other services,
24%

Production,
17%

Construction,
Business 8%
services and

finance, 18%

Distribution,
transport and
communicatio
n, 24%

Source: ONS Crown copyright

Page 14 of 48
36



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

WEAKNESS

Herefordshire's weekly work based earnings are low compared to regionally and
nationally and the gap between Herefordshire's earnings and those of the West

” Midlands region and England as a whole is getting wider.

STRENGTH

In 2010, the median weekly earnings for people who worked in Herefordshire were
£380.70, not significantly different from 2009, but significantly lower than the West Midlands
region (£467.50) and England (£504.50). The type of employment available in the county is
a major contributing factor in this. Some sectors that typically have low wages associated
with them are more prevalent in Herefordshire e.g. agriculture and retail.

In 2006, Herefordshire's earnings were 6% lower than the West Midlands, by 2010 this gap
had widened to 19% lower. The gap between Herefordshire’s and England’s earnings is
even wider, 14% lower in 2006 increasing to 25% lower in 2010.

Chart 4. Ratio of Herefordshire's weekly earnings to the West Midlands and England, 2006
to 2010 (a lower ratio equals a larger gap)

1_00 = 0.94 090
08 083 98754 084 0.81
0.80 - 0.77 0.75
0.60 A
0
w 040 A
(14
0.20 A
0.00 . . . .
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
@ West Midlands OEngland

Source: ASHE 2009, ONS—Crown Copyright

Herefordshire has a lower rate of new business start-ups than England as a whole,
but start-ups are surviving longer than regionally and nationally. In 2009 the rate of
new business formation had slowed.

Although start-up rates in Herefordshire are lower than those across England (42.2 per
population aged 16+ in Herefordshire compared to 48.8 for England), survival rates are
generally greater than nationally for businesses that have been active for 3 years or more.
In 2009 the 3 year survival rate (first active in 2006) was 70% compared to 66% across
England and 67% across the West Midlands. However in 2009, the rates of new business
formation (as a proportion of active businesses) had decreased in all areas, from 12%
across England in 2007 to 10% in 2009 and from 10% in Herefordshire in 2007 to 8% in
20009.

Page 15 of 48
37



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

OPPORTUNITIES

The issues rated as most important for employers in Herefordshire in May 2010 were
suitability of premises for business, access by road, and environment for staff and
customers.

When asked to rate a list of 13 factors in terms of importance to their business and quality
in their area employers in Herefordshire indicated that the most important issues were
“suitability of premises for business”, “access by road”, and “environment for staff and
customers”. These issues were also rated highest in terms of quality. The three issues that
were of least importance, but also rated as being of relatively low quality amongst
employers in Herefordshire were; “public transport accessibility”, “affordability of housing”
and “public sector business support facilities”. In general the more important the issue the
higher it's quality rating was, although the estimation of quality was generally lower than the

estimation of importance.

Chart 5. Ratings of importance and quality for issues facing employers in Herefordshire

5 Cleanliness of — Environment for
street/external staff/customers Suitability of
landscape | premises for
4 - Attractiveness of P business
areafor investment ¢
© . V'S Access by road
o Skills of local labour ® & I
© force ** I
g 3 | *» N infrastructure/capa
- Affordab.lllty of N L Car parking bility
-g housing ¢
© Business rates
8
S 2 Access by public .
z transport Pl.Jbllc sector External security
= businesssupport | | (CCTV and street
(35 facilities lighting)
1 -
0 I I 1 I
0 1 2 3 4 5
Importance of issue

Source: Herefordshire business survey 2010

People and the labour market

The age profile of the potential resident workforce is changing

The number of people aged 16-64 living in Herefordshire increased by 3% from 107,200 in
2001 to 109,900 in 2008, but has since fallen - to 108,700 in 2010. This decline is due to
the ageing of the population structure, and will continue as people born in the ‘baby boom’
of the late 1940s start to turn 65 (see chart 1, p.11). Forecasts suggest that the number
could fall to less than 104,000 by 2026.

Page 16 of 48
38



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

STRENGTH

v

STRENGTH
WEAKNESS

e

The age profile within this group has also been changing, with people aged 45+ making up
49% of the 16-64 year-old population in 2010 compared to 44% in 2001. Again, this trend
will continue with the ageing of the 1960s ‘baby boomers’.

However, the trends will also mean a continued increase in the numbers of people in the
‘younger’ older age-groups — numbers of 65-74 year-olds have increased by 18% from
17,600 in 2001 to 20,700 in 2010, and may increase another 30% by 2026. Herefordshire
had a relatively high rate of economic activity amongst this age group at the time of the
2001 census (13% compared to 9% for England and Wales, and 8% for the West Midlands
region), possibly related to high rates of self-employment and employment in the
agricultural sector in which people tend to work to an older age. As the changes in state
pension age and any lasting impacts of the recession take effect, an even larger proportion
of this growing age-group may work to an older age.

The rate of self-employment in Herefordshire is higher than in the West Midlands and
England as a whole.

Herefordshire’s self-employment rate was 20% in 2009-10, significantly greater than the
rate for the West Midlands (12%) and England (13%). ‘Agriculture and fishing’, ‘other
services” and ‘construction’ were the industries with the greatest proportion of workers
being self-employed (58%, 45% and 39% respectively).

Herefordshire has a relatively high employment rate, 76% in 2009/10, compared to
69% in the West Midlands and 71% nationally.

Although still low compared with the West Midlands region and England,
unemployment is decreasing slowly and remains much higher than prior to the
recession

Total unemployment (claimants of Jobseekers Allowance) has seen some decreases since
its peak at the beginning of 2010, but remains much higher than prior to the recession. In
May 2011 total unemployment in Herefordshire was still 85% above what it was in May
2008 at the start of recession, but the unemployment rate remains lower than for the West
Midlands and England. The nature of unemployment (Jobseekers Allowance claimants) has
changed over the course of recession and recovery, but has particularly affected some
groups. For example the rate of unemployment amongst young people (18-24) has seen
bigger increases (in percentage point terms) than the other age groups; and unemployment
amongst women in April 2011 was as high as at any point during the recession and higher
than at any point since 1997.

Source: ONS Crown Copyright Reserved

' ‘Other services’ includes arts, entertainment and recreation and other service activities

Page 17 of 48
39



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

WEAKNESS

Despite the increase in unemployment due to the recession, more people in
Herefordshire claim an out-of-work benefit because they are unable to work for
health reasons than because they are unemployed and actively seeking work.

The number of workless people claiming any kind of out-of-work benefit? has increased as
a result of the recession, although the rate of claiming still remains low in Herefordshire
(8.8% of all working age people) compared to regionally (13.5%) and nationally (11.8%) in
2010. At its highest point (10,600 claimants in August 2009) it was around 20% above pre-
recession levels. The increase was primarily as a result of an increase in the number of
unemployed people claiming Jobseekers Allowance whilst looking for work.

However, despite this increase, claimants of Employment and Support Allowance (ESA)
and Incapacity Benefits still made up the majority (60%) of out-of-work benefit claimants —
most were long term claimants (over 5 years). This is two and a half times as many as
Jobseekers Allowance claimants, who made up 23% of the out-of-work group - most were
short terms claimants (less than 6 months). ESA and IB are benefits for people who are
not expected to be available for work due to health reasons.

Source: ONS Crown Copyright Reserved

Pockets of deprivation are concentrated in urban areas of Herefordshire, but smaller
pockets also occur in more rural areas.

Herefordshire as a whole experiences relatively low levels of deprivation, with relatively few
areas (8 LSOAs®) amongst the most deprived in England in terms of multiple deprivation.
These areas are in the south of Hereford City, Leominster and Ross-on-Wye. Within these
areas a relatively large proportion of people are subject to various aspects of deprivation.
For example more than a third of people in ‘Golden Post — Newton Farm’ in the south of
Hereford City and ‘Leominster Ridgemoor’ live in income deprivation, putting them in the
10% most deprived nationally in this respect.

Measuring deprivation at LSOA® can hide smaller pockets of deprivation or that which
occurs at household level such as in rural areas. Looking at smaller areas of deprivation
from the 2004 indices of deprivation, also identifies areas of income deprivation within the
villages of Whitcurch, Kingstone, Peterchurch, Weobley, and Bartestree and in the other
market towns of Ross-on-Wye, Ledbury and Kington. Whilst there are few concentrations
of deprivation at LSOA level in rural areas, there are still a considerable number of people
experiencing certain types of deprivation in rural areas as a whole. For example only one
out of the ten areas in Herefordshire that are the most income deprived in England is
classified as rural, even though 44% of all people in the county that live in income
deprivation are resident in rural areas. It's also important to consider differences in living
costs between rural and urban areas. People in rural areas typically need to spend 10-20
per cent more on everyday requirements than those in urban areas, with the more remote
the area, the greater these additional costs. Transport and domestic fuel costs make up the
biggest difference®.

Source: Indices of Deprivation 2010, Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG)

2 The out-of-work benefit group includes; jobseekers; employment and support allowance and
incapacity benefits; lone parents and others on income related benefits

* Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAS) are fixed statistical geographies of about 1,500 people
designed by the Office for National Statistics (ONS). For more information please see the useful
definitions page http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/factsandfigures/definitions.aspx#OAgeogs

4 "A minimum income standard for rural households" Joseph Rowntree Foundation.
http://www.jrf.org.uk/publications/minimum-income-rural-households

Page 18 of 48
40



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Economic development and enterprise

weakness Qualification rates in Herefordshire were lower than across England in 2010

In 2010 rates of qualification amongst Herefordshire’s working age residents (16-64) were
lower than those across England at all levels from 1 to 5. For example 46.5% of the working
age population in Herefordshire were qualified to at least level 3 (equivalent to 2 or more A-
levels, advanced GNVQ or NVQ 3) compared to 50.7% across England. Herefordshire
also had a higher proportion of working age residents without any qualifications in 2010.
This negative picture is a departure from previous years where rates have been similar to
those across England. Although not significant, rates of qualification have decreased over
the last three years in Herefordshire, whilst national rates have significantly increased.

Source: ONS Crown copyright — Annual Population

Skilled trade occupations account for a relatively large proportion of those in
employment; employers find skilled trade vacancies hard-to-fill; and skilled trade
vacancies account for the highest proportion of skill shortage vacancies.

Herefordshire had a greater proportion of residents (17%) employed in skilled trade
occupations e.g. electrician, plumber, pipe fitter, welder, mechanic, joiner etc. compared to
England (10%) in 2009-10°. Vacancies for skilled trade occupations were reported as being
hard-to-fill by 50% of employers in 2009, more than any other occupation. The skilled trade
vacancies accounted for the greatest proportion of vacancies that were hard-to-fill due to a
lack of skills in the labour market (27%)°. Whilst projections suggest employment in skilled
trade occupations in Herefordshire will decrease by 16% between 2010 and 2020, other
research shows that nationally in a number of skilled trades the workforce is also ageing,
and yet, in a number of emerging sectors the demand for builders, electrical trades,
plumbing, joinery, heating, ventilation and air conditioning is likely to grow®.

Employers report that there are skills gaps in managerial and skilled trade
occupations and that some young people are poorly prepared for work

Around a fifth of employers in the county report having skills gaps in their current workforce.
Of those that reported skills gaps the most frequently stated occupations with skills gaps
were skilled trade occupations (27%), managers (26%) and administrative/clerical staff
(19%)°. These skill sets were identified as being difficult to recruit to and were skills that
were often imported from outside of the county. It was felt that this issue was compounded
by the lack of free or affordable training, particularly management training courses,
available locally®.

A considerable proportion of employers report that young people (under 24) recruited
straight from education were poorly prepared for work: 20% for people aged 17 to 18; 14%
for 16 year olds straight from school; and 9% for people under 24 straight from higher
education. The reason for recruits being poorly prepared varied depending at what stage
they were recruited. For 16 years olds recruited straight from school it was a lack of
experience of the working world, life experience or maturity that was reported by 100% of

> Source: ONS Crown copyright — Annual Population
¢ National Employers Skills Survey 2009

" Source: SQW consulting (2010) The economic demand for housing in the West Midlands, 2006-
2026, A final report to the West Midlands Regional Assembly

8 2010 National Strategic Skills Audit for England www.ukces.org.uk/ourwork/nssa

® Your Business...Your Future: The Business perspective of the Herefordshire Economy, March
2011

Page 19 of 48
41



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Economic development and enterprise

employers. For 17 and 18 year olds it was poor attitude or personality or lack of motivation
that was reported most frequently by employers (78%). For people recruited straight from
higher education it was a lack of required skills or competencies (64%).

There is still demand for migrant labour' in Herefordshire that employers report
would be difficult to fill from other sources.

Overall just 8% of employers in the county employed migrant labour'" in 2010, although the
proportion increased dramatically with size reaching nearly two thirds for the largest
employers. Just under half (47%) of employers reported employing migrant workers on a
permanent basis, with a further 32% stating they were employed temporarily and the
remaining 21% stating that migrant workers were employed on a seasonal basis. Hotels &
restaurants; manufacturing; agriculture; public administration & education; and health &
social care were the most common sectors of employment.

Businesses in the county report problems in recruiting local people to undertake un-skilled
positions leaving some sectors still reliant on migrant labour. A number of businesses said
their preference was to take on migrant workers to fill vacancies, rather than young people
on training schemes, as they felt within the current economic climate migrant workers were
cheaper and were easier to ‘pick up and let go™.

This is particularly true of agriculture where migrant labour is important in both unskilled
and management roles. During the course of 2011 a total of 5,000 individual seasonal
workers from overseas are expected to be employed on farms in Herefordshire, a 10%
increase (400 workers) in the overall number compared with 2010 - the first rise since
2008'2. This demand is in part linked to the fact that there is a shortage of young people
that want to do agricultural jobs. There is some concern within the sector about the future
supply of seasonal migrant labour. This concern mostly relates to the Seasonal Agricultural
Workers Scheme (SAWS) coming to an end after 2011 as well as increased competition for
labour with other countries. There are also examples of migrant labour being used in the
manufacturing sector, and playing a pivotal role in the growth and success of these
companies®.

Based on past trends total employment in Herefordshire is projected to decrease

Over the period 2010 to 2026 the number of jobs in Herefordshire is projected to decline
from 87,200 to 83,000 with most of this decline occurring in the decade 2010-2020". The
sectors expected to see the greatest decreases are agriculture (down 59% by 2026) and
manufacturing (down 21% by 2026), offset by smaller increases in other sectors: financial
and business services (+19%), construction (+33%), government & other services (between
+4% and +8%), distribution, hotels & catering (+6%) and transport and communications
(+10%).

'° A migrant worker is defined as someone who has been working in the UK for more than three
months whose usual country of residence is not in the UK, and in this case, included agency workers
and those self-employed.

" Source: Herefordshire Employers Survey 2010

12 Employment of seasonal workers from overseas on farms in Herefordshire — 2011

¥ sQw consulting (2010) The economic demand for housing in the West Midlands, 2006-2026, A
final report to the West Midlands Regional Assembly

Page 20 of 48
42



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Economic development and enterprise

OPPORTUNITIES,

Herefordshire as a place for business

The rateable value of commercial property is low in Herefordshire compared to the
West Midlands and England

Herefordshire has a low commercial property value, £40 per m? in 2008 (all bulk classes
compared to £49 m? in the West Midlands and £66 m? in England as a whole. The greatest
difference in value between Herefordshire and England is for commercial offices (£56 m? in
Herefordshire compared to £130 m?in England as a whole).

14)

This lower rate potentially gives Herefordshire a commercial advantage, although this is at
odds with the views of some businesses who report that affordability of businesses
premises, particularly the high cost of rent and the impact of this on business rates, create
barriers to growth. There is also a perceived lack of suitable freehold property and land®.
The suitability of premises for business was rated most important and second highest in
terms;sof quality in their area out of a range of factors by employers in Herefordshire in
2010°™.

Access to broadband, mobile phone services and other infrastructure is an issue for
some residents and businesses in rural areas.

In 2011 Herefordshire had one of the highest proportions in the UK of broadband
customers receiving a service of less than 2 Mbps. In 2008 57% of Herefordshire’s
postcodes had the potential for broadband up to 2 Mbps — the highest category of service
available via BT landline. However, 46% of rural postcodes in the county were likely to
receive no service or low broadband speed (up to 0.512 Mbps), compared to only 1% of
urban areas. There are also mobile phone ‘black-spots’ in some rural areas. National
research shows the proportion of businesses which operate from home is significantly
higher in rural areas than in urban areas'®. There are no accurate measures of the number
of home-based businesses in Herefordshire, although it is expected that the numbers are
substantial. Attracting home based knowledge businesses to the county will be dependent
on these businesses having a decent level of broadband and other services with which to
operate. In a recent consultation it was highlighted that for businesses looking to establish
rurally-based premises poor infrastructure (water, drainage, electricity, broadband, and
mobile phone coverage) prevented them from growing and diversifying.

Whilst more than four fifths of employers reported having access to broadband internet and
nearly two thirds said their service met their business needs, 57% felt that an increase in
broadband capacity would be required in the future and 63% felt that a lack of faster
broadband would limit business development. The proportion expecting there to be a need
for faster broadband in future was greater for larger businesses.

" Bulk classes include: retail premises, offices, factories, warehouses and other bulk premises.

1> Herefordshire Employers’ Survey 2010

'® Invisible Businesses: the characteristics of home-based businesses in the United Kingdom
http://www.strath.ac.uk/media/departments/huntercentre/research/workingpapers/media_144423_en
.pdf

Page 21 of 48
43



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Economic development and enterprise

Emissions of CO, from industry and commerce have decreased, but both climate
change and volatility in energy prices will pose challenges for both businesses and
residents in future.

In Herefordshire between 2005 and 2008 there was a 4.4% decrease in CO, emissions
from the ‘industry and commercial sector’, a result of decreased usage of gas and oil.
Electricity use, the largest source of emissions in Herefordshire, increased over the period
but on balance emissions from industry and commerce decreased. Emissions per capita
from the industry and commercial sector in Herefordshire (3.5 tCO,/cap'’) are higher than
for the UK as a whole (2.9 tCO,/cap). Emissions from the transport sector are also higher in
Herefordshire (2.4 tCO,/cap) than the UK (1.7 tCO,/cap), although similar to other rural
authorities.

Source: Department for Energy and Climate Change

Whilst limiting the effect of climate change should clearly be an aim given the potential
social and economic implications of extreme climatic events, future uncertainty in the
supply of oil and the resulting increases in energy prices could have more immediate social
and economic implications given the rural nature of the county and reliance on personal
transport. It is important that businesses and residents are prepared for spikes in energy
prices. Failure to do so could make businesses vulnerable to high energy prices in future.

Source: Sustainable Energy security: Strategic risks and opportunities for business (2010) Lloyds of
London

In 2005 there were an estimated 8,540 (10.7%) dwellings in fuel poverty in the county. In
spite of all the good work carried out in the last few years, it is very likely that the number of
‘fuel poor has increased due to a significant increase in energy prices. Energy price
increases look as though they will become more common in the medium term putting more
people at risk of fuel poverty.

Herefordshire loses approximately 5% of its working age population who travel to
work outside the county.

According to the 2001 Census, of those who work, the majority (68,700 people, 84%) work
in Herefordshire. This leaves 12,600 people (15%) who work outside the county, in
addition there are 8,600 people who live outside the county but work in Herefordshire. This
suggests a net loss of over 4,000 Herefordshire residents who work in other locations
(approximately 5% of the working age population). For travel to work, both to and from
Herefordshire, the greatest net flows were between Herefordshire and neighbouring
counties. More recent data suggests that the number of people commuting out of the
county may have increased. For example the number of residents travelling to work in
Worcester increased from 1% in 2001 to 3% in 2008"8.

v tCO,/cap = tonnes of carbon dioxide per head of population
'® Source: Annual Population Survey special analysis

Page 22 of 48
44



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Economic development and enterprise

Businesses and residents identify congestion (in Hereford City) as in need of
improvement, although in 2010 the picture for congestion in Hereford City was not
clear.

OPPORTUNITIES,

Indicators of congestion for Hereford City based on traffic volumes and bus punctuality
showed continued improvement in 2010, but average journey times across the City and
NO, emissions (linked to congestion) both worsened. Volumes of traffic on both the radial
routes into Hereford and on the principal rural network have both decreased over the last
few years, recording a 3% decline on the level they were 2003-04. In 2010-11, 85% of
buses were running on time, this has exceeded the target of 73% for this period and is a
large improvement on 67% in 2007-08. The average peak journey time on specific routes
within Hereford increased from 19 mins 30 in 2008-09 to 20 mins 46 in 2010-11. NO,
emissions across many sites in Hereford also increased in 2010 (see key finding in
environment section for more detail p38).

Chart 6. Index of annual average weekly traffic (AAWT) volumes in Herefordshire

108
106
104

102

100 A ,/\\‘

% N

A

Index

03/04* 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11

Financial Year

—&— Radial routes into Hereford Principal rural rcad network = Target

Source: LTP2, Transportation, Herefordshire Council

In a survey of employers'® in 2010 three quarters of respondents felt that an effective
transportation system was important for the delivery of goods and services. 23% of
businesses reported experiencing problems as a direct result of the transport infrastructure
in Herefordshire. The worst consequences were a loss of productivity (in man hours) and
increased operating costs. When asked what the main transport priorities should be to
support the business community, the greatest proportion mentioned a bypass for Hereford
City (29%), whilst a further 11% said measures to reduce congestion. 21% thought road
maintenance should be a priority and a further 14% said public transport.

'® Source: Herefordshire Employers Survey 2010
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/factsandfigures/1422.aspx

Page 23 of 48
45



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Economic development and enterprise

In a survey of residents in 20082 a third of respondents identified traffic congestion (out of
a list of 20 items) as most in need of improvement. This was one of the top answers after
road and pavement repairs and activities for teenagers. A similar proportion also identified
public transport as in need of improvement. Residents of urban areas were most likely to
think that traffic congestion needed improvement.

2 Herefordshire quality of life survey
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/factsandfigures/residentsviews.aspx

Page 24 of 48
46



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

\||

sTrencTH Herefordshire has a longer life expectancy that is healthy and disability free and life
expectancy in general than regionally and nationally

Both males and females have higher life expectancies in Herefordshire than regionally and
nationally. Across all areas females are still expected to live longer than males. In the
period 2007-09, males are expected to live until they are 79.1 years and females 83.3
years.

Healthy and disability free life expectancy gives an estimate of how many healthy and
disability free years of life can be expected for a given population. Again Herefordshire
compares well, with a higher numbers of years that are healthy and disability free than the
West Midlands region and across England as a whole.

Source: Office for National Statistics (ONS), Crown copyright

The rate of deaths related to stroke has fallen more rapidly than nationally over
recent years, but remains higher than nationally.
Rates of death from stroke fell from 81 deaths per 100,000 population in 1996 to 53 deaths
per 100,000 population in 2008. Despite this stroke is the third biggest killer in
Herefordshire and a major cause of hospital admissions. People in Herefordshire are
approximately 24% more likely to die of stroke than expected given local population
composition. Physical inactivity is responsible for over half of the strokes (57%) in
Herefordshire — this compares with 26% for hypercholesterolemia and 13% for

hypertension (i.e. high blood pressure). Similarly obesity (19%) is responsible for more
strokes than hypertension (13%).

The levels of cancer and coronary heart disease are lower than nationally and
regionally but they remain the county’s biggest killers

There are different types of cancer, half of which are preventable. Smoking is the single
biggest preventable cause, but other contributory aspects of unhealthy lifestyles can also
be addressed. Herefordshire experiences significantly lower mortality rates from cancer
(159 per 100,000 population) than the West Midlands (175 per 100,000) region and
England as a whole (172 per 100,000), although the local rate has now stabilised whilst
national and regional rates continue to fall. People in Herefordshire are around 8% less
likely to die of cancer compared to the population of England. However cancer remains the
major cause of mortality, hospital admission and years of life lost in the County.

Coronary Heart Disease (CHD) is the second biggest killer in Herefordshire and a major
cause of hospital admissions. However, people in Herefordshire are significantly less likely
to die from coronary heart disease compared to the population of England as a whole.
Although mortality rates in Herefordshire have fallen by almost 50% since 1996, they have
not reduced quite as quickly as regional and national rates. Hypercholesterolemia (i.e. high

Page 25 of 48
47



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

cholesterol) is a well known risk factor for CHD and is responsible for a significant
proportion (40%) in Herefordshire. However, we also found that almost as much of CHD
(35%) is due to physical inactivity and that obesity contributes to a greater proportion of
CHD than hypertension (obesity 19%, hypertension 13%). It should also be noted that
another lifestyle risk factor — smoking - causes a quarter of all CHD in the county

Source: Public Health Department, Herefordshire PCT

“ Significant health inequalities exist between those living in the most and least
WERKEESS deprived areas

Residents of deprived areas face a number of challenges associated with living in
deprivation, but there are some specific health issues that have been highlighted.
Compared to the neighbourhoods experiencing the lowest levels of multiple deprivation in
Herefordshire, people in the most deprived neighbourhoods are:

e 65% more likely to die of chronic lower respiratory diseases.

e 59% more likely to die from coronary heart disease, and 159% more likely to die

prematurely (i.e. before age 75) from coronary heart disease.
e 24% more likely to die from cancers.

However, there are no significant differences in rates of hospital admission due to these
conditions, suggesting there may be issues around engagement with services for people in
the most deprived areas

People living in the most deprived areas are significantly more likely to be admitted to
hospital as an emergency due to an accident. For all alcohol-attributable conditions
residents of the most deprived quartile of the County are 95% more likely to be admitted
than those in the least deprived quartile. With regard to alcohol-specific conditions
residents of the most deprived areas are four times as likely to be admitted and among
under 18s in particular are over 12 times more likely to be admitted.

Source: Public Health Department, Herefordshire PCT

People born in the most deprived areas of Herefordshire have a slightly shorter life
expectancy than those in the least deprived areas (3.5 years shorter for men and 2.5 years
for women). They are also expected to live less of their lives without a disability — and this
gap is wider (men 6.1 years less; women 5.0 years). However, these inequalities are
significantly smaller than nationally and regionally — in fact the gap in overall life expectancy
is one of the smallest in the country.

Source: Marmot Indicators for Local Authorities in England

Nine areas of the county — all in Hereford City or Leominster - are amongst the 25% most
deprived in England in terms of ‘health’ deprivation, which is based on years of potential life
lost, comparative illness and disability, acute morbidity, adults under 60 suffering from
mood or anxiety disorders, and hospital episodes.

Source: Indices of Deprivation 2010, Department for Communities and Local Government

Page 26 of 48
48



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

Smoking remains the single most important cause of premature death, ill-health and
hospital admission in Herefordshire

Smoking prevalence among adults (18+ years) is estimated at 18.5% in Herefordshire in
2009/10. There were approximately 316 smoking-related deaths per year between 2007-09
in the County and approximately 35% of smoking-related deaths since 2005/06 have been
among those aged less than 75 years. There were on average approximately 1,470
smoking-attributable hospital admissions among Herefordshire residents aged 35+ years in
the period 2007/08 — 20010/11.

Source: Public Health Department, Herefordshire PCT

Obesity is emerging as a major contributory factor to poor health, disability and
premature death.

In 2009-10, 11% of the Herefordshire GP practice population were classed as obese, with
this ranging from 7% to 18% in different GP practices across Herefordshire. However, it is
generally felt that any local data obtained from GP monitoring systems will under report
adult obesity levels due to the ad hoc way that it is recorded.

Evidence for this potential under-reporting is that Health Survey for England estimates for
2006-08 indicate that, based on the characteristics of the population, 25.3% of adults aged
16+ in Herefordshire would be expected to be obese — a similar proportion to England as a
whole (24.2%). Latest estimates for the school year 2009/10 show that 8.4% of reception
age and 15.4% of year 6 children are obese.

Obesity is emerging as a major contributing factor to poor health, disability and premature
death and is responsible for a large proportion of strokes, coronary heart disease and colon
cancers.

Source: Public Health Department, Herefordshire PCT

In line with national trends suicide rates had been declining, but have not reduced
further since 2002. There was a small, although not statistically significant, rise in
2010.

Nationally suicide rates fluctuate year on year but there has been a downward trend since
the early 1980’s. The national rate (per 100,000 population) up to 2008 showed a 14%
reduction from the Our Healthier Nation (OHN) baseline of 1996. In Herefordshire there
was considerable (30%) improvement from the 1996 baseline until 2002, but since then the
suicide rate has not reduced further. There have been 171 suicide deaths in Herefordshire
since the start of 2001 — giving a crude average of 17 deaths per year. Following the
national pattern most of the deaths occur in men (123 deaths or 71.9%), 69 of which (56%)
occurred in men aged under 50 years. Among women just over 40% of deaths occur in
those aged under 50 years.

In 2010 there was an apparent increase in the number of deaths due to suicide in
Herefordshire, with 22 deaths notified. To account for the effects of fluctuations in small
numbers and changes in the underlying population size, we have examined suicide rates
across a rolling three-year period. For Herefordshire the directly standardised suicide rate
for 2007-09 was 8.18 per 100,000 population, not significantly different from those of the
West Midlands or England. Based on provisional data* this rose to 9.89 per 100,000
population in 2008-10, but this is not significantly different from 2007-09 locally. (No
regional or national data is available for comparison).

Source: Public Health Department, NHS Herefordshire

Page 27 of 48
49



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

The rate of overall premature mortality has fallen consistently over recent years and
STRENGTH remains lower than nationally.

The rate of overall premature mortality (deaths under 75 years) has fallen consistently over
recent years and remains lower than nationally. In 2007-09 locally, there were
approximately 257 premature deaths per year per 100,000 population. This is similar to
that for comparable areas but lower than the 288 deaths per 100,000 nationally.

Herefordshire’s standardised rate of years of life lost due to premature mortality is lower
than regional and national rates. Cancer is responsible for the greatest number of years of
life lost per annum (36% or approximately 3,000 years lost) in Herefordshire, but accidents
are responsible for the highest average years of life lost per death (32 years) since they
tend to occur at younger ages.

Infant mortality is also low compared to regional and national rates. During 2007-09, there
were 17 deaths under one year of age which equates to a rate of 3.2 per 1,000 live births,
compared to 4.7 per 1,000 live births in England & Wales.

Source: Herefordshire PCT

Numbers of sexually transmitted infections (STIs) rose sharply in 2009
Chlamydia infections increased from 298 in 2008 to 391 in 2009, a 31% increase. Rates of
infection are highest among the 15-24 years age band — 75% of all chlamydia diagnoses in
2009 - though this may be partly explained by the 10% increase in the number of sexual
health screens performed in 2009 among this group.

Source: Herefordshire PCT

Increasing numbers of older people living in income deprivation

WEAKNESS

The level of income deprivation affecting older people (aged 60+) relative to the rest of
England is about the same in 2010 edition of the indices of deprivation as in 2007, but
higher than 2004; in 2010 13 LSOAs in Herefordshire were amongst the 25% most
deprived in England compared to 14 LSOAs in 2007 and 5 LSOAs in 2004. However, the
total number of older people living in income deprivation in the county increased between
2004 and 2007; and between 2007 and 2010. Nearly half of the most deprived areas in
2010 were in the south of Hereford City, a further three in North Hereford, two in
Leominster and one in Bromyard and Ross-on-Wye (no areas were amongst the 10% most
deprived in England). ‘Leominster Ridgemoor’ had the greatest proportion of older people
living in income deprivation at 38%. ‘Bromyard Central’ LSOA, which was the most
deprived area of the county and in the 10% most deprived nationally in the 2007 edition of
the indices of deprivation, saw the greatest decrease in the proportion of older people living
in income deprivation from 39% in 2007 to 34% in 2010. ‘Newton Farm — Treago’ in south
Hereford saw the greatest increase going from 22% of older people living in income
deprivation in 2007 to 30% in 2010.

Source: Indices of Deprivation 2010, Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG)

Page 28 of 48
50



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

Reliance on and support for carers is currently a challenge and will only get worse in
future years

There is a widespread acknowledgement of a lack of information about carers; even more
so about the cared for. The likelihood of providing care (i.e. the percentage of people
providing care) increased with age in the 2001 Census, peaking at those in their fifties
before declining slightly in older age groups — although the largest numbers of carers were
aged 60 and over; Older carers tended to provide higher amounts of care than younger
ones, and carers in poor health tended to provide more care than those in better health;
Nationally, there is estimated to be a 45% increase in the demand for informal care
between 2003 and 2026, which is likely to be higher in Herefordshire; Therefore, unless
there is an increase in the tendency to provide care, there may be a shortfall in the number
of carers in the county — which would have consequences for public and third sector
organisations. The expected disproportionate increase in the number of older people with
dementia may mean a change in the nature of care will be needed as well.

Source: Provision of unpaid care in Herefordshire 2009, Herefordshire Council Research Team

In 2010-11 the number carers receiving support increased. 1,500 carers received specific

carers’ services or advice and information following an assessment or review of their

needs. This was about 24% of all people being provided social care support to live at home.
Source: Peoples Services Commissioning, Herefordshire Council

The number of 18 - 64 year olds with disabilities in Herefordshire is likely to increase
by 2026.

In 2005 there were an estimated 4,600 people aged 18-64 with moderate disabilities who
likely to require some form of personal care. This number was expected to have increased
by no more than 5% (250 people) by 2012, and 8% (350 people) by 2021.

An estimated further 950 people with serious disabilities were likely to require care; a figure
expected to increase by 5% (50 people) by 2012, but no further by 2021.

Source: Corporate Policy and Research Team, Herefordshire Council

Adults with mental health disorders are a concern locally with higher than average
numbers and work needed around the support via GPs and for housing.

The number of 18-64s with the most serious mental health disorders is much higher than
would be expected, given national prevalence rates and the age profile of residents. There
is also a need to provide more support via GPs for people with common mental health
problems, as well as to reduce suicides, especially amongst 25-44 year-olds.

There is an increasing proportion of the population who will require personalised support
and re-ablement services to enable them to live independently in their own homes. This
includes people with moderate to severe mental health problems. The support needs of
their carers and families also need to be addressed, to enable them to cope and to lead
fulfilled lives.

Source: Needs Analysis: Adults with Mental Health Problems, 2007, Herefordshire Council

Page 29 of 48
51



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Health and well-being

STRENGTH

OPPORTUNITIES,

A substantial increase in numbers of older people that will have some dependency
on social care in Herefordshire is expected by 2020. Within this, there is also
expected to be a disproportionate increase in the number of older people with
dementia.

Table 7: Expected numbers of older people with a social care dependency

%change
2011-20

Number of older people with | 5,100 6,500 27%
HIGH demand for social
care

Number of older people with | 12,800 | 16,200 26%
SOME dependency

Source: Corporate Policy and Research Team, Herefordshire Council

HEREFORDSHIRE 2011 2020

Even after allowing for what may be optimistic national forecasts of improved health, there
is expected to be a 55% increase by 2020 in the number who need help with essential
activities like washing and going to the toilet (compared to 55% increase nationally by
2025). There is likely to be a similar increase in those who will need help with shopping or
cleaning. This rate of increase will be higher in Herefordshire compared to nationally due to
the older age profile and expected higher rate of increase in the older people population.

Source: Older People Needs Assessment Report, Herefordshire Council Research Team

Dementia presents a significant and urgent challenge to health and social care in
Herefordshire in terms of both numbers of people affected and costs. Projections suggest
that the estimated 2,900 people affected in 2010 could almost double to 5,600 by 2030.
Typical of the situation across the country, dementia diagnoses recorded in GP registers is
only one third of the expected prevalence. This has implications in terms of lack of
treatment and care.

Source: Dementia Clinical Pathway Group Metrics, Baseline report, July 2009, NHS West Midlands

A high proportion of adults with learning disability have taken up personal budgets.

Over the last 5 years 30 adults with learning disability have moved from care homes
into their own tenancies; further developing appropriate housing and support
options could allow more people to attain their own tenancies or move back to live in
the county.

Low numbers of adults with a learning disability of working age are currently
supported in employment, (11% in 2010-11) although the proportions are among the
highest in England.

Demography will impose increasing demands for learning disability services as one
cohort of users and their carers age, and as another cohort of younger people with
more profound disabilities move into adulthood.

Page 30 of 48
52



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Children and young people

Vd Generally lower teenage pregnancy rates
STRENGTH
Herefordshire has a lower teenage conception rate (34.2 conceptions per 1,000 girls aged

15-17 for the three years 2007-2009) than both the West Midlands region (45.3) and
England and wales (40.3). Herefordshire's figures have steadily decreased since the turn
of the century; however since 2004-06 (26.2) rates have not reduced further. Conception
rates are considerably higher for some areas of the county, notably areas of Hereford City,
Leominster and Ross-on-Wye.

Source: Herefordshire Teenage Pregnancy Unit & ONS, Crown copyright

Healthy lifestyle choices for teenage girls remain a concern, particularly as alcohol
related hospital admissions have risen.

In 2006, the Teenage Lifestyle Survey highlighted Year 10 girls as being of particular
concern, with high proportions being involved in unhealthy and risk taking behaviours,
however results from the 2009 survey of the same age group show these percentages to
have fallen.

However, the number of alcohol attributable hospital admissions amongst teenage girls are
a concern. In 2010-11 38% of alcohol attributable hospital admissions amongst women
aged under 45 were aged 15-19. Since 2007/08 there has been an increase of over 30% in
alcohol-attributable admissions for Herefordshire residents, and the number of qualifying

admissions increased by over 7% in 2010/11 alone.
Source: Every Child Matters Surveys; Public Health, Herefordshire Public Services

weakness Dental health of children in the county is poor by regional and national standards.

School children aged 5 are surveyed for the number of their first teeth that are decayed,
missing or filled (DMFT). Children in Herefordshire had poorer dental health compared to
regionally and nationally. In 2007-08 two in every five children had some experience of
tooth decay by the age of 5 years and more than two in every five had experienced decay
in at least one of their permanent teeth by the age of 12 years.

Source: NHS Dental Epidemiology Programme for England; Oral Health Survey of 5 year old
children 2007/2008 report

“ Decreasing proportions of mothers breastfeeding
WEAKNESS

In 2010-11 47% of babies are recorded as being breastfed at 6-8 weeks less than in 2008-
09 and 2009-10 (both 49%) and below the target of 60%.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

7 Stabil dren e
STRENGTH Stability of placements for looked after children in Herefordshire is good

In 2010/11, 5% of looked after children had been in three or more placements during the
previous 12 months and 78% of looked after children who have been looked after
continuously for at least 2.5 years were in the same placement for at least 2 years or were
placed for adoption. Although the stability figure is slightly below the previous year’s

Page 31 of 48
53



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Children and young people

outturn, the figure is still better than England as a whole and Herefordshire’s statistical

neighbours.
Source: CYP Performance Digest

A decrease in numbers of young people as victims of violence against the person
offences
In 2010-11, 338 young people (aged under 18 years) were victims of violence against the
person offences. This was a decrease from 400 in 2009-10 and 469 in 2008-09.
Source: Safer Herefordshire

Bullying is still a concern in Herefordshire

According to the 2009 survey, Herefordshire pupils are more likely to say that they had
been bullied in the last 12 months. 38% of Herefordshire pupils compared with 29% of a

wider sample of English pupils.
Source: Every Child Matters Survey, 2009

The gap in attainment between the best and worst performing areas at GCSE is still
increasing; and in 2010 there were more areas amongst the most deprived in
England in terms of achievement in education and skills.

25% of pupils in the lowest performing ward, Bringsty, achieved 5 or more GCSEs at
grades A*-C including English and Maths in the 2010 exams compared to 26.4% of pupils
in the lowest performing ward in the 2009 exams (St. Martins and Hinton). Whereas the
highest performing ward, Bircher, had 76% of pupils achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grades
A*-C including English and Maths, equal to the best performing ward in the previous year.
This achievement gap continues to increase, and is more noticeable at LSOA level where
the pass rate range is 0% - 84.6%. Many of the areas with the lowest attainment rates are
also those that experience some of the highest levels of multiple deprivation.

According to the Indices of Deprivation 2010, there are 19 areas in Herefordshire that fall
within the 25% most deprived in England in relation to the children and young people’s
education and skills sub-domain, an increase from 13 in the 2007 edition. Nine of these
areas are also within the 10% most deprived nationally, an increase from four in the 2007
indices. Nine of the 25% most deprived areas are in the south of Hereford City and four in
the north of Hereford City. The rest are in the market towns of Leominster, Bromyard, Ross-
on-Wye and Ledbury, but also the village of Credenhill.

Source: People’s Services Commissioning, Herefordshire Council and the Indices of Deprivation
2010, Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG)

Early years achievement against the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP)
Achievement of 0-5 year olds in Herefordshire in terms of their development is monitored
by the proportion of children achieving 78 points across all 13 Early Years Foundation
Stage Profile (EYFSP) scales with at least 6 points or more in each of the Personal, Social
and Emotional Development and Communication, Language and Literacy scales, shows
the level of achievement of 0-5 year olds in Herefordshire. In the academic year 2009/10
44.7% of children 0-5 years old achieved 78 points across the EYFSP, this was lower than

previous years, below the target set of 53.5% and below the national rate.
Source: CYP Performance Digest

Page 32 of 48
54



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Children and young people

Large gap between academic achievement of all pupils and those with identified
WEAKNESS Special Educational Needs and those receiving Free School Meals

The average percentage of pupils without Special Educational Needs (SEN) achieving level
4 or above for Key Stage 2 in both Maths and English was 54.0 percentage points higher
than the average for those with Special Educational Needs in the summer 2010 exams.
The average for pupils without SEN achieving at least 5 GCSEs or equivalent at levels A*
to C including Maths and English was 53.5 percentage points higher than the average for
those with Special Educational Needs.

In the summer 2010 exams, achievement of pupils receiving free school meals was 30.2
percentage points lower at GCSE on the same measure, than their peers not receiving free
school meals.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

Although Herefordshire performs relatively well compared with nationally for the
educational achievement of looked after children they still do less well than their

peers

In the academic year 2009/10, 14.3% of looked after children achieved 5 or more GCSEs
or equivalent at grades A* - C including English and Maths. This equated to three out of 16
looked after children in the cohort. A further 80% achieved 1 GCSE at A* - G or a GNVAQ.
Looked after children do perform well, and outperform their peers from the most deprived
areas. In the summer 2010 exams, 75% of looked after children sat at least one GCSE
exam or equivalent.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

Absenteeism rates - primary, secondary, Looked After Children primary

WEAKNESS |n the academic year 2009/10, 3.8% of half days in primary school and 9.2% of half days in
secondary schools were missed, both of which were higher than the targets set, However,

the absence rate by looked after children at primary level was lower than the general
absence rate.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

Secondary school persistent absence rates have improved
In the academic year 2009/10, 4.6% of secondary school pupils were considered to have
persistent absence, which was below the set target. This was identical to the previous

academic year, but below the 6.0% rate in the 2008/2009 academic year.
Source: CYP Performance Digest

#” Increases in proportions of pupils volunteering
STRENGTH _ . .
V According to the 2009 survey, there has been a general increase in the percentage of

pupils in years 7 to 10 who volunteer at least once a month (excluding care for a family
member) over the past three years, with 44% of pupils volunteering in 2009 compared to
35% in 2006.

Source: Every Child Matters Survey

Page 33 of 48
55



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Children and young people

#~ The picture of offending in young people is good. Large decreases seen in numbers
STRENGTH of first time entrants to the Youth Justice system and decreases in reoffending of
those already in the Youth Justice System

There has been a significant reduction in the numbers of first time entrants (aged 10 to 17
years) to Youth Justice System over the last year, dropping to 108 new entrants in 2010/11
from 150 in 2009/10, with decreases also seen in the last three years. Reoffending of
those young people already in the Youth Justice System has decreased, from an average
of 1.3 offences committed by each young person in 2009/10 to an average of 0.9 offences
in 2010/11.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

Not as many young people, including young offenders and care leavers, engaged
with education, employment and training as is wanted

In 2010/11, 7.0% of 16 to 18 year olds in Herefordshire were not in education, employment
or training (NEET), an increase on the previous year and now slightly below the national
figure (7.3%) despite additional NEET programmes being made available.
In 2010/11, 39.3% of care leavers were in education, employment or training (EET) at the
time of their 19" birthday, a significant decrease from the previous year. In 2010/11, 70.9%
of young offenders were engaged in suitable education, training or employment.

Source: CYP Performance Digest

The child poverty indicator demonstrates that the profile of child poverty is
deteriorating, and has identified new pockets that appear to be linked to areas with a
high density of social housing.

Overall the proportion of children in the county living in child poverty has increased. The
proportion of children living in poverty ranges from 1.3% in ‘Ross — Archenfield’ LSOA?" to
48.6% in ‘Golden Post-Newton Farm’ LSOA, with higher proportions of children living in
poverty in areas of significant vulnerability e.g. the south of Hereford City and Leominster.
However there are areas (LSOAs®?) where the rate of child poverty has increased:
‘Bromyard central’, ‘Ross - John Kyrle’®, ‘Ledbury ring road’ (29%, 29%, and 25%
respectively), and newly identified areas such as ‘Kington Doughnut’ (22%).

Source: Child Poverty Needs Assessments

2! Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAS) are fixed statistical geographies of about 1,500 people
designed by the Office for National Statistics (ONS). For more information please see the useful
definitions page http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/factsandfigures/definitions.aspx#OAgeogs

> The ‘John Kyrle’ LSOA covers the area from John Kyrle School towards the centre of Ross, to
Kyrle Street; it includes most of Three Crosses Road, Brampton Street & Greytree Road, but not
Springfield Road or Brampton Abbots.

Page 34 of 48
56



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Environment

OPPORTUNITIES

STRENGTH

Access to nature is important to Herefordshire’s residents in making somewhere a
good place to live

In the Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008, residents were asked how important a list of
aspects were in making somewhere a good place to live. Access to nature was one of
these. Overall access to nature was above average in terms of its importance in making
some where a good place to live, selected by 29% of respondents. The most important
aspects were the level of crime (53%), health services (46%) and affordable decent
housing (37%).

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

Less of Herefordshire’s designated built and historic environment was at high risk? in 2010
compared to 2009.

Both the number of designated scheduled monuments and listed buildings at a high level of
risk decreased between 2009 and 2010. In 2010 a smaller proportion of Herefordshire’s
built and historic environment was at risk compared to regionally and nationally, with the
exception of scheduled monuments.

Chart 8. Percentage of designated heritage sites that are at a high level of risk.

25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
Buildings Scheduled Registered Conservation
monuments parks and areas
gardens

® Herefordshire = West Midlands England

Source: English Heritage

** The criteria for the classification as high risk varies depending on the type of designation, but
generally is when the site is in poor condition and vulnerable to change i.e. due to changes in
ownership

Page 35 of 48
57



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Environment

sTRENGTH Management of local wildlife sites and sites of special scientific interest in
Herefordshire saw considerable improvement between 2007 and 2010

Herefordshire’s biodiversity is important in making Herefordshire the place that it is. In
2009-10, positive conservation management has been (in the last five years) or is being
implemented at 43.2% of local wildlife or geological sites. This is a considerable increase
on 2007-08 when it was 29.0%. This measure was a national indicator which is no longer
measured.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) represent the best sites for wildlife and geology,
with over half of English SSSIs being internationally important. In 2010 Herefordshire had a
higher proportion than in previous years of SSSI land that was in favourable or
unfavourable but recovering condition. Despite this positive trend a large proportion (34%)
is in unfavourable condition and either not showing change or worsening, much more than
the level nationally (6%).

Chart 9: Proportion of SSSI land in Herefordshire found to be in favourable or unfavourable
condition, 2006-2010, as assessed by Natural England.

100% A

22% . 22% . 22% . 24%
80% A

16% 15%

% +— 31% -
60% g 41%
40% 1 —

58% 57%

40%
20% 31% [
00/0 T T T

2006 2007 2008 2010
B Destroyed 8 Unfavourable declining
O Unfavourable no change O Unfavourable recovering
® Favourable

Source: Natural England

Salmon, which are an iconic species, saw considerable decline in the mid 1990s and
catch numbers remain low.

The Wye salmon fisheries saw a considerable decline in the mid 1990s. Work by the Wye
and Usk foundation identified a number of causes for this reduction, which included:
barriers to fish migration, diffuse and point pollution, acidification and habitat degradation.
The resulting reduction in the salmon population meant that the level of salmon exploitation
then had a greater impact. Since the mid 1990s salmon catches have remained below 1000
per year. In 2008 the catch just exceeded 1000, but then dropped back in 2009 and 2010.

Page 36 of 48
58



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Environment

OPPORTUNITIES,

Households in Herefordshire are producing less waste and a greater proportion of
household waste is now being recycled

Historically Herefordshire has produced more waste per household and has recycled less
when compared to England as a whole. However, the situation is improving due to changes
in the way waste, particularly recycling, is collected. On average in 2010-11 589kg was
collected per household per year compared to 646kg in 2009-10. The amount that
households recycle is also improving, but is just below target. In 2009-10 households on
average recycled 35% of their waste. In 2010-11 this had increased to 40% (the target was
41%). These improvements are likely to have moved Herefordshire’s recycling rate closer

to the national rate.
Source: Waste and sustainability, Herefordshire Council

Emissions of CO, decreased in Herefordshire between 2005 and 2008, but remain
higher than for the UK as a whole.

Chart 10: Per capita emissions (tCO,/head) by sector, 2005-2008

5 100 9.0
8 90 8.6
S 801 —74 |
O ' : 7.0 71 26
g 6.0 ' 1.7 1.8 17 —
2 50 A5 2.7 26—
£ 40 : 24 e 24 —
£ 3.0 A
g 20
o U7 3.7
5 10 29 29 2.7
00 B T T T
2005 2008 2005 2008 2005 2008
UK West Midlands Herefordshire

| B Industry and Commercial ODomestic O Road Transport |

Estimates of carbon dioxide emissions (CO,) for Local Authority areas suggest that
Herefordshire emits more CO, per capita (8.6 tonnes of CO, per head of population) than
the West Midlands (6.7 tCO, per cap) or UK (7.0 tCO, per cap). Most of this difference is
explained by increased use of road transport and energy sources other than electricity and
gas in both the commercial and industrial and the domestic sectors i.e. more use of oil and
solid fuels. Unsurprisingly it is the more rural authorities, such as Herefordshire, Shropshire
and Powys that have greater per capita emissions from transport, 2.4, 2.3 and 2.7
respectively, compared to the West Midlands region and the UK as a whole (both 1.7).

Source: Department for Energy and Climate Change

Page 37 of 48
59



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Environment

Changes to the global and local climate will directly impact on the quality of people’s
daily lives.

Expected changes in seasonal climate in Herefordshire include (predictions to 2050 in
brackets):
e Predicted annual increases in temperature by as much as 2.5°C by the 2050s.
e Drier summers by possibly as much as 30% of the baseline, contributing to a
decrease in summer soil moisture totals by possibly up to 45%.
e Anincrease in the number of intense rainfall days in winter and also in the number
of extremely warm days in both summer and winter.
¢ Increase in the length of thermal growing season.

Herefordshire has experienced 84 significant weather events between 1998 and 2008, of
which nearly half related to heavy rain and flooding. These cannot necessarily be attributed
to climate change, but have had a significant impact on Herefordshire’s emergency and
public services, local businesses and the wider community. For example the flooding in the
summer of 2007 was estimated to have cost Herefordshire Council £5.5 million and local
businesses around £40 million, as well as other, unknown, costs to agriculture and tourism.

Source: Herefordshire Council Local Climate Change Impacts Profile (LCLIP)

Air quality (as measured by Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,) Emissions) has worsened in the
last year across the majority of monitoring sites in the county.

In 2010 sites on Victoria St. and Edgar St. in Hereford, the A40 at Pencraig and Bargates in
Leominster all exceeded the 40 pg/m® objective®* for NO, emissions and, with the exception
of Pencraig, have done so for the previous seven years (all are in Air Quality Management
Areas). With the exception of Bargates in Leominster, all of these sites saw an increase in
average annual emissions in 2010 following decreases in 2008 and 2009. In fact the vast
majority of sites (87%) in Herefordshire saw an increase in emissions in 2010, although the
maijority were still below pre-2008 levels. In all, 19 out of 59 sites (including duplicates)
exceeded the objective of 40 pg/m?>. Around half of all monitoring sites are located in
Hereford City. The most significant source of NO:is from internal combustion engines (road
traffic) and therefore higher levels of nitrogen dioxide tend to suggest higher levels of traffic
congestion. The increase seen in 2010 doesn’t however match the picture from some other
indicators of congestion for Hereford City. NO, emissions are however found to be
disproportionately affected by heavy goods vehicles, accounting for less than 10% of traffic
volumes, but around 50% of emissions. This could explain some of the difference between
this and other measures.

Source: Air, Land and Water Pollution, Herefordshire Public Services

4 Objectives in the Air Quality Regulations (2000) for Local Air Quality Management

Page 38 of 48
60



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

OPPORTUNITIES,

Safer Communities

Community Safety

Overall crime is low and has been decreasing, but economic conditions risk a
reversal of this trend

In 2010-11, there were 27 recorded comparator crimes per 1,000 residents in
Herefordshire, compared to 32 in West Mercia Police as a whole and 41 in England and
Wales. Apart from a slight rise in 2006-07, crime has fallen consistently in Herefordshire
from 2001-02 to 2010-11, with only 9,729 crimes recorded in 2010-11. The Safer
Herefordshire target was to reduce overall crime by 8% by 2010-11 from the 2007-08
baseline, a reduction of 13% was achieved. However, in the first quarter of 2011-12
Herefordshire saw an increase in all recorded crime compared to the same period in 2010-
11. Early projections suggest that Herefordshire may see an increase in crime levels
during 2011-12 a trend which may reflect a difficult economic recovery.

Theft from a motor vehicle; theft of a motor vehicle; violence against the person and
burglary dwelling offences have all seen considerable decreases since 2003-04, although

the latter two saw an increase over the last financial year.
Source: Home Office (Iquanta) and Safer Herefordshire

The number of anti-social behaviour incidents has reduced in Herefordshire,
although anti-social behaviour remains a concern for a large proportion of
Herefordshire residents

There were 10,376 incidents of anti-social behaviour in Herefordshire in 2010-11, which is a
decrease from 11,850 in 2008-09 and 12,276 in 2007-08. Anti-social behaviour incidents
reduced by 15% during the three-year period 2008-2011.

In 2009-10, 18% of residents said that crime and anti-social behaviour was a fairly or very
big problem in their local neighbourhood. In particular people identified the following as
problems in their neighbourhood (tending to agree or strongly agreeing they were a
problem): speeding traffic (64%); rubbish or litter lying around (52%); under-age drinking
(52%); dog mess (51%); groups of people loitering or hanging around in public places
(50%); people using drugs (47%); and people being drunk or rowdy in public places (45%).

Source: Safer Herefordshire and West Mercia Police Crime and Safety Survey

Alcohol misuse is a growing problem, affecting A&E attendances, hospital
admissions and crime levels

Assault with less serious injury is used as a proxy for alcohol-related violent offences. In
2009-10 there were 5.39 offences per 1,000 population in Herefordshire, and this rose
slightly in 2010-11 to 5.47 offences (an increase of 14 offences). A high percentage of
assaults reported to Hereford Hospital A&E are alcohol-related (as a proportion of all
assaults that ‘walk in"®® to A&E) compared to other hospitals in the West Midlands region.

% As apposed to those that are brought to A&E by ambulance

Page 39 of 48
61



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

WEAKNESS

WEAKNESS

Alcohol-attributable conditions are a significant cause of hospital admissions in
Herefordshire. There were over 3,500 alcohol-attributable admissions in 2010/11, an
increase of 30% on 2007/08. The number of admissions increased by over 7% in 2010/11
alone.

Source: Safer Herefordshire; and Public Health, Herefordshire Public Services

Increasing reoffending rates

For the period January to December 2010 the reoffending rate in Herefordshire was
11.52%, similar to the rate predicted for the period based on the profile of offenders.
Previously the actual rate of offending was significantly lower than the predicted rate, but
more recently the gap has reduced to be insignificant.

Source: Ministry of Justice

Domestic Abuse

In 2010-11 there were 2,532 incidents flagged as domestic abuse, which affected a total of
1,508 victims, a slight increase on 2009-10. 39% of all recorded domestic abuse offences
were alcohol-related, down 1% on 2009-10.

The number of calls to the Herefordshire Women’s Aid Helpline has risen to 1,232 during
2010-11, up from 860 in 2005-06, the numbers reduced in 2006-07 and 2007-08, but
increased again from 2008-09.

Source: Safer Herefordshire

Fires - Hoax calls continue to be driven down
The number of malicious false alarms attended by the Service in Herefordshire rose slightly
from 17 incidents in 2009-10 to 19 in 2010-11, although this was a 52% decrease on 40
incidents in 2005-06.

Source: Safer Herefordshire

Fewer Accidents

The mortality rate from accidents is high and hospital admission levels are rising

Accident-related mortality?® has increased locally by over 30% since 1996, in contrast to
static rates nationally. Mortality rates among males (38 deaths per 100,000) are over three
times those of females (11 deaths). People in Herefordshire are 36% more likely to die due
to an accident compared to the population of England. People who live in the most
deprived neighbourhoods are more likely to die from accidents than those in the least
deprived neighbourhoods. Accidents are responsible for the highest average potential
years of life lost per death in Herefordshire — 32 years per death.

Source: Public Health, Herefordshire Public Services

% All accidents are included, such as falls, drownings and land transport accidents

Page 40 of 48
62



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

STRENGﬁ The number of accidental dwelling fires has fallen by over 10% and, despite a small

STRENGTH

increase in the total number of fires attended this year, the overall trend remains
downward.

There were 98 accidental dwelling fires in Herefordshire in 2010-11, an 11% decrease over
the previous year. The number of deliberate dwelling fires in 2010-11 was 8 compared to
12 in 2006-07, while the number of deliberate primary vehicle fires in 2010-11 was 21,
seven fewer than in 2006-07. In all, Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Service (FRS)
attended 18% fewer fire incidents in Herefordshire in 2010-11 than they did five years ago.
Over this period, the number of accidental and deliberate fires has fallen by 3% and 46%
respectively.

While the figures continue to show a long-term downward trend in the total number of fire
incidents in Herefordshire, there was a small increase in 2010-11 — 633 fire incidents
compared to 621 in 2009-10. The FRS continues to focus on driving down these numbers,
with improved risk profiling to increase the targeting of its fire prevention activities towards
groups most at risk of fire. In line with this, the FRS carried out 970 Home Fire Safety
Checks in Herefordshire in 2010-11, 12% more than in the previous year, and fitted 1,096
smoke alarms.

Source: Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service

The number of people killed in fire incidents remains very low

A total of two people were killed in fires across the Fire and Rescue Service area in 2010-
11, with one fatality in Herefordshire, which occurred as a result of a car fire. In all, there
have been four fire fatalities in Herefordshire in the last five years, including one death in an
accidental dwelling fire, which occurred in 2006-07. Twenty-one people were injured in fire
incidents in Herefordshire in 2010-11, an increase over the 17 people injured in the
previous year. The FRS continues to highlight key risk areas in its fire safety campaigns
and activities, including in relation to chimney fires, with numbers falling by 11% from a high
of 139 chimney fires in Herefordshire in 2008/09.

Source: Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service

Whilst the number of people killed or seriously injured on Herefordshire’s roads has
been decreasing, the Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service still attends
the equivalent of four road traffic collisions each week in Herefordshire

In 2010, 61 people were killed or seriously injured on Herefordshire’s roads. This was
fewer than in 2009 and fewer than in all other years since 1999. Individual years are subject
to considerable variability so a three year rolling average is used for longer term trends.
Based on this three year rolling average there has been a 44% decrease in the number of
people killed or seriously injured on Herefordshire’s roads since 2001-03. While the number
of people killed or seriously injured on roads continues to decrease, the FRS s still required
to attend four RTC incidents each week in Herefordshire. The FRS attended 206 road
traffic collisions (RTCs) in Herefordshire in 2010-11, a decrease of 14% over last year’s six-
year high of 240 RTC incidents attended. Across the two counties of Herefordshire and
Worcestershire, the number of RTC incidents attended (656 incidents) was the lowest
recorded in recent years, though it still represents more than twelve RTC incidents per
week.

Source: Herefordshire Council, Transportation; Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue

Service

Page 41 of 48
63



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

The number of fatal incidents involving young road users is a concern and there has
been a notable increase in “drink drive” related accidents, but the number of
motorcycle collisions has decreased.

Whilst motorcycle casualties still account for 18% of the overall KSI casualty figure, these
have exhibited a marginal decrease compared to 2008, with small reductions in all
severities for this vehicle class.

Overall “young road users” (16 — 25 age group) remain a concern with disproportionately
high representations within the KSI casualty statistics. More worrying is their over
representation in the Fatal casualties, with this age group accounting for 54% (7 of 13) of
road fatalities within the County.

2009 saw a notable increase in “drink drive” related accidents compared to previous years,
with more than double the number (30 compared to 14) recorded in 2009 compared to
2008. This number is also the highest recorded since 2005.

During 2009 the number of incidents occurring on the trunk road network increased by 50%
(20 to 30 casualties) compared to the previous year, whilst on the Council’s road network
there was a marginal increase of 3% (73 to 75 casualties).

Source: Department for Transport, Crown Copyright and Transportation, Herefordshire
Council

Falls are still the single largest cause of admission to hospital due to an accident

Falls are the largest cause of accident-related hospital admission in Herefordshire,
accounting for about 63% of such admissions between 2005/06 — 2009/10. On average
there are almost 200 emergency hospital admissions among the elderly due to hip fractures
and 50% of falls occur in the home. There is no significant seasonal variation. A rapid
review of the falls service identified that the service was under-resourced and inequitable.
Service mapping against NICE guidelines revealed a number of gaps in the service
provision in particular in the community settings.

Source: Herefordshire PCT and Integrated Falls Prevention and Management Strategy for

Herefordshire 2000-2014

Page 42 of 48
64



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Stronger communities

Stronger communities

Access to key services in rural parts of Herefordshire is notably worse when
compared to other parts of England

According to the 2010 Indices of Deprivation, 75 out of 116 LSOAs in Herefordshire fall
within the 25% most deprived in England in terms of geographical barriers to services. 50 of
these also fall within the 10% most deprived. This measure is based on the road distance to
a GP, Post Office, Primary School and food shop.

Source: Indices of Deprivation 2010, Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG)

“ Residents are generally happy with health services in Herefordshire, but there are
OPPORTUNITIES g
specific aspects around access they feel should be better.

The Herefordshire Quality of life survey 2008 showed that nearly nine in ten residents are
satisfied with their GP, nearly eight out of ten with the local hospital and seven in ten with
their dentist. On the other hand, getting to see a dentist was the most difficult of any service
(over three in ten finding it difficult), whilst also being one of the most important. Nearly one
in five found it difficult to access their GP or local hospital.

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

Satisfaction with other public services was generally high but had fallen for some

More than eight out of ten people were satisfied with the Hereford & Worcester Fire and
Rescue Service, over half with West Mercia Constabulary and one in three with the way
Herefordshire Council runs things overall, although satisfaction with specific services was
much higher, for instance over eight in ten were happy with refuse collection. However,
there were significant drops in satisfaction between 2007 and 2008 amongst users of: sport
and leisure facilities (72% to 53%), libraries (84% to 75%), museums and galleries (68% to
58%), theatres and concert halls (65% to 55%) and parks and open spaces (78% to 68%).

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

Language can be a problem for some minority groups, particularly in accessing
health services

Well over 200 seasonal and migrant workers responded to a questionnaire about their
health needs. Reflecting the profile of this group, they were mostly male and young; with
nearly three-quarters aged 16-24. Almost all (92%) were Polish, Bulgarian or Romanian.
Only about one in five considered themselves fluent English speakers, with language a
problem for a number when accessing health services. Around two in three had used a
dentist in the last 12 months, and a similar number had seen a GP in the last six. In
contrast, fewer than half (40%) had used an optician in the last year and only 18% had
visited a hospital. One in five felt they faced barriers to health services.

Source: Health Needs Surveys

Page 43 of 48
65



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Stronger communities

yd Three-quarters of residents believed they had been treated with respect and

STRENGTH

consideration by local public services most or all of the time (in 2007-08). Seven in ten
also thought that local public services treated all types of people fairly. But fewer than half
felt this way about public services acting on the concerns of residents or promoting the
interests of locals.

In 2008, 29% of residents felt that they could influence decisions affecting their local
area. Respondents who lived in villages were most likely to agree that they could influence
decisions affecting their local area.

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

Access to finance was the biggest problem facing third sector organisations in 2010.

As part of a survey of employers carried out in May 2010, third sector organisations were
asked a series of questions about operating in Herefordshire and the current issues they
face. The issues that were reported most frequently by third sector organisations as being a
current problem were access to finance, the state of the economy and regulations, being
reported by 64%, 60% and 32% of organisations respectively (chart 11 below). Compared
to all employers (inc. private and public sector) access to finance was more of an issue for
third sector employers, 64% compared to 28% for all employers. In a separate question IT
infrastructure/capability was given the highest priority from a list of 13 issues i.e. it was
rated above average in terms of importance, but below average in terms of quality.

Chart 11. Current problems faced by third sector employers in Herefordshire

State of the economy

Accessto finance

Managing cash flow
Taxation - VAT, PAYE, ..

Recruiting and retaining staff

Transport issues

Regulations

Keeping up with technology
Availability or cost of ..

Exchange rates

Inflation

Competition

Other

None

0% 25% 50% 75%
B Current problems Future problems

Source: Herefordshire Employers’ Survey

Page 44 of 48
66



State of H

erefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Stronger communities

OPPORTUNITIES,
OPPORTUNITIES

Over one in five of residents felt well-informed about what to do in the event of a
large-scale emergency such as flooding or pandemic flu, which puts Herefordshire in the
top quarter nationally. Two in five felt well-informed about local public services.

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

Affordable decent housing, public transport and clean streets are regarded as both
important and needing to improve. However, when asked to trade-off investment in
services the priories were, tackling traffic congestion, more support for families to
protect vulnerable children and maintaining adult social care services.

Out of a list of 20, the items seen as most important and most in need of improvement were
affordable decent housing, clean streets and public transport. Although crime and health
services were amongst the most important in making somewhere a good place to live they
were not viewed as the things most in need of improvement.

Source: Herefordshire quality of life survey 2008

In autumn 2008, a joint Council and PCT strategic options consultation asked people to
trade-off investment between examples of the kind of choices that the Council and the PCT
face over the coming years. For Council-led services the improvements the public most
wanted to see were:

e measures to tackle traffic congestion
e more support for families to protect vulnerable children
e adult social care at least keeping up with increasing demand.

To help pay for these, they were most prepared to see reductions in:
e the arts, libraries and museums

e concessionary leisure fees

e subsidised bus services.

For PCT-led services the package preferred by the majority of people was:
improved access to NHS dental care

enhancements in services to prevent and treat stroke

more people with long-term health conditions being supported at home
increased support for those at risk of falls

more people receiving end of life care at home

an increase in alcohol education for children and young people

no reductions in the current levels of other services, except for...

10% fewer people getting high cost drugs and cosmetic surgery that meets NHS
criteria.

Source: Herefordshire Council and PCT strategic options consultation

Page 45 of 48
67



State of H
Housing

erefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

OPPORTUNITIES

There was a decrease in the number of people applying and accepted as homeless in
Herefordshire in 2010-11; following an increase between 2006-07 and 2008-09.

In 2006-07 the number of households being accepted as homeless reached a 12 year low.
In the same year, new homeless prevention measures were put in place, which aimed at
trying to prevent people from becoming homeless. This work was targeted at individuals or
households before they applied as homeless, putting in place interventions such as
mortgage rescue. However, after an initial decrease, numbers increased again between
2006-07 and 2008-09 only to decrease again in 2009-10 and 2010-11. It is possible that
this increase was due to the effects of the recession. No target has been set since 2008-09.

Chart 12. Number of people applying and numbers of those accepted as homeless in
Herefordshire (towards whom the council has full statutory duty)

900
800 -
700 -
600 -
500 - A

400 - \'\,
300 -
200 -
100 -

0 1 1 T T 1 1 T 1 1 T T 1
98-99 99-00 00-01 01-02 02-03 03-04 04-05 05-06 06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11

Numbers of people

—8—Target no. accepted as homeless —&—No. accepted as homeless

No. of applications

Source: Strategic Housing, Herefordshire Council

A combination of already high proportions of pensioner households and an ageing
population may result in an increasing need for certain types of suitable
accommodation

In 2001, a higher proportion of households in Herefordshire were made up of either a
pensioner living alone or with other pensioners (28%) than in England or Wales or the West
Midlands region overall (24%). This proportion will have increased over the decade as the
age structure of the population has got older, and will only increase further as this continues
(see key finding about ageing population structure, p.11).

More detailed information about the likely demand for particular types of accommodation
will be available from a survey of older people’s housing needs, commissioned in 2010 to
inform an Older People’s Housing Plan - which is due to be published in 2011.

Source: ONS 2001 Census and mid-year population estimates 2001-2010, Crown copyright and
Herefordshire Council's Research Team population forecasts

Page 46 of 48
68



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings

Housing

WEAKNESS

Herefordshire has the worst housing affordability ratio of all local authorities within
the West Midlands region

For 2010, the house price affordability ratio for Herefordshire was 9.3. That is, for those
with the lowest earnings (bottom quartile), a house at the bottom end of the market would
cost them 9.3 times their annual earnings. Herefordshire had the worst affordability ratio
out of all the West Midlands authorities and neighbouring counties and the ratio is
consistently higher (i.e. worse) for Herefordshire compared to the West Midlands region,
and to England, and the discrepancy has become larger in recent years.

Source: Land Registry & CLG (Department for Communities and Local Government)

High demand for affordable properties in Herefordshire, in particular in Hereford
City.

The average number of bids per property made to Home point for socially rented housing
gives us a measure of overall demand in the county for this type of housing. The average
number of bids increased from 21 in 2003 to 34 in 2008, prior to levelling off, with the latest
overall average being 35 between January and August 2011. It is to be expected that a
steep increase was seen during the early years of the choice based lettings system, which
started in October 2002, following the introduction of online bidding. It is not possible to
see a specific effect of the recession on the average number of bids per property. The
greatest demand in the early part of 2011 was for properties in Hereford City, receiving the
most average bids, 52 per property advertised; second most popular was Ross-on-Wye
with an average of 28 bids per property. There is generally equal demand (average number
of bids) for different sized properties; however there is a much larger difference in the
numbers advertised (more 1-bed and 2-bed properties).

Source: Home Point

Modelled forecasts show continuing future demand for affordable housing across the
county. Of newly-forming households in the period to 2016, 80% will be unable to afford
market housing, whether owner-occupied or privately rented, leading to an anticipated need
for 2,800 additional units of affordable housing over this period. Of these 2,800 households,
it is estimated that 55% would be able to afford some form of intermediate tenure (shared
ownership or affordable rent at 80% of the market rate) with the remaining 45% requiring
social rent. In the longer term, to 2026, it is estimated that 41% of additional housing supply
in the county should be affordable, that is around 7,000 units. Again, 45% of these would
need to be social rented.

Source: Herefordshire Local Housing Market Assessment by GL Hearn Property Consultants, June
2011

Economic conditions are having an impact on the supply of affordable housing in
Herefordshire

In 2008/9, a total of 208 additional affordable dwellings were provided in Herefordshire. Due
to the recession, with its well-documented effect on the delivery of new housing, it was
inevitable that future delivery would be challenging, making the provision of 136 units in
2010/11 a good achievement. However, this reduction in new housing has an impact on
Herefordshire’s affordability issues. Overall completions in Herefordshire have also
declined from 829 in 2007/8 to 547 in 2009/10, which is below target. Again this may be
attributable to economic conditions.

Page 47 of 48
69



State of Herefordshire Report 2011: Key Findings
Housing

The number of sales declined markedly due to the recession, from over 1000 in the 3™
quarter of 2007 to less than half that figure a year later, and was only just over 600 in the
3" quarter of 2010. Availability of finance has been found to be a problem in various
surveys of the market, for example by the Research Team and by GL Hearn at the
beginning of 2011.

Source: Herefordshire Council Research Team and GL Hearn Consultants

Stock condition of privately rented dwellings is worse than for other tenures

In 2005, 10% of private sector stock was classed as having “Category 1 hazards” — ie. the
dwelling has a defect or defects which are severe enough that the local authority has a duty
to address them. When broken down by tenure, the findings were that 9% of owner
occupied stock and 17% of privately rented stock had Category 1 hazards. More recent
data on hazards is available for housing association stock, and in 2011, only one housing
association dwelling (out of over 11,000) was recorded as being in this condition; during
2010/11 Herefordshire Council freed 78 private sector dwellings from Category 1 hazards.
Source: House Condition Survey 2005, Herefordshire Council

Page 48 of 48
70



COPYRIGHT

Data used in this report originally published by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) is Crown
Copyright protected. Source: National Statistics website, www.statistics.gov.uk. Crown copyright
material is reproduced with the permission of the Controller of the Office of Public Sector
Information (OPSI).

2001 Census data is also Crown Copyright and is reproduced with the permission of Her
Majesty’s Stationery Office (HMSO) and the Queen’s Printer for Scotland.

Please note that the maps contained within this document are based upon the Ordnance Survey
mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Herefordshire Council, Licence No. 100024168/2010.

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the data contained in this document,
the authors accept no responsibility for any errors or omissions. Any suggestions, queries,
comments or requests should be addressed to the Research Team using the contact details in
reference section 1.

71




If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it
in another format or language, please call the Research Team on
01432 383634 or email researchteam@herefordshire.gov.uk

For a large print copy, please call 01432 383634

72




AGENDA ITEM 6

& Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DATE: 18 OCTOBER 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | HEREFORDSHIRE HEALTH-CARE
COMMISSIONERS (HHC)

REPORT BY: CHAIR OF HEREFORDSHIRE HEALTH-CARE
COMMISSIONERS

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To provide an overview of the activities of Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners
Recommendation(s)

THAT the Board reviews and considers progress to date.

Introduction and Background

1 A report is appended.

Background Papers

o None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Dr Andy Watts, Chair Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners, on 01432 260618

$taynhi51.doc 22/02/10

73



74



HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD

18 October 2011
Subject: Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioner — Sub
Committee of NHS Herefordshire Board
Presented By: Dr Sam Ghazawy

Deputy Chair — Herefordshire Health Care
Commissioners

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT:

To provide an overview of the activities of the Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners in
August and September 2011.

KEY POINTS:

¢ Introduction — Page 3

e QIPP Delivery — Page 3

¢ A&E Media Campaign — Page 3

¢ Any Qualified Provider — Page 5

e CCC Self Assessment Process — Page 5
¢ Organisational Design — Page 6

e Work Plan — Page 7

RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD:

The Board is asked to review, note and provide feedback on this report and clinical
commissioning Consortium progress to date

CONTEXT & IMPLICATIONS:

Financial £2.00 per head of population.
CCC support cost budget circa £360k
Legal National guidance awaited
Risk and Assurance NHSH Corporate Risk Register
(Risk Register/BAF)
HR/Personnel National HR Guidance received on 7™ July.
Equality & Diversity Equality Act 2010-making fair financial decisions

Page | 1

75



Strategic Objectives

Supports the delivery of the objectives of:
¢ Integrated Commissioning Strategy
e Joint Corporate Plan
e Older Peoples Plan
e Social Care Recovery Plan

Healthcare/National Policy
(e.g. CQC/Annual Health Check)

Draft Health and Social Care Bill

Liberating the NHS: Equality and Excellence
Vision for Social Care

NHS Future Forum

Government Response to Future Forum Report

Partners/Other Directorates

HPS Directorates; People, Place and Corporate

Services

Wye Valley NHS Trust

2gether Foundation Trust

Other private, public and civil society providers

Carbon Impact/Sustainability

Carbon management targets will be included within
contracts for providers of health care.

Other Significant Issues

GOVERNANCE

Process/Committee approval
with date(s) (as appropriate)

NHSH (PCT) Board 28 September 2011

76

Page | 2



Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC)
Clinical Commissioning Group progress report Health
and Well Being Board

18 October 2011

Introduction

During August and September 2011, in response to the NHS Future Forum, revised national
guidance was released on the structure and function of Clinical Commissioning Consortium.
Over this period HHCC has been refreshing its organisational design plans to reflect these
emerging requirements as well as accelerating the delivery of local QIPP plans to ensure
that service improvement and financial targets are achieved. This report has been written to
highlight some of the key activities that HHCC has undertaken since the last report to the
PCT Board in July 2011, including:

e QIPP Delivery

e A&E Media Campaign

¢ Any Qualified Provider

e CCC Self Assessment Process
e Organisational Design

o Work Plan

QIPP Delivery

An analysis of QIPP performance was reported at the formal Herefordshire Health-Care
Commissioners Committee Meeting in September. The wider HHCC membership received a
briefing on the QIPP position at the GP Parliament meeting on the 13™ September 2011. An
additional meeting was also scheduled, by the Director of Resources and Delivery, to
accelerate QIPP delivery as at month 4 only 68% of the year to date plan had been
delivered. Since the delivery of QIPP is crucial for financial stability HHCC has been leading
the revision of the QIPP programme that has seen year to date delivery against plan improve
to 88% in month 5. More details of the QIPP programme is provided in the Month 5 finance
report which is included in the papers for the September PCT Board.

On Tuesday 4™ October HHCC held away day which focused on QIPP. At this event HHCC
committee members reviewed, prioritised and agreed action plans to ensure that QIPP
financial targets are achieved this year and robust plans are developed for 2012/13.

A&E Media Campaign

Over the past few years there has been a steady increase in the number of Accident and
Emergency attendances. Clinicians within Herefordshire believe that many of these
attendances could be dealt with in other settings such GP Surgeries, the Walk in Centre and
Minor Injury Units. HHCC, as part of the QIPP delivery programme, decided to undertake a
concerted and wide ranging communications campaign to inform the public about why it is
important to get treatment in the most appropriate setting and keep A&E for emergencies
only.

The aim of this campaign is to develop Herefordshire residents understanding of how they
should access emergency care if they are unwell or injured. In conjunction with other
initiatives within unscheduled care it is anticipated that in the first instance growth in A&E

Page | 3

77



Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC)
Clinical Commissioning Group progress report Health
and Well Being Board

18 October 2011

attendances will contained with the eventual aim being a 10% reduction by April 2012. In the
initial phase of this communication plan the following media resources have been utilised:

Bus Adverts — Adverts have been placed on the back, side and passenger panels of
Buses in Herefordshire for 6 Months

Only use A&E

when you

need it... -

Radio Adverts - over a 6 month period radio adverts will play up to 30 times a month
and there is the opportunity to record 5 different adverts.

Poster and Leaflet Campaign — A new
poster and leaflet campaign has been

developed and is being rolled out across Only use A&E
GP surgeries, Hospitals, other health When you need |t

outlets and all other HPS locations.
Only one of these people needs to visit A&E

Refresh website — The website content on
access to emergency services will be
updated to give more of a focus on
symptoms rather that just concentrating on
service availability

Newspapers, magazines and newsletters —

Articles are being placed in a number of

local publications. Where possible

Visit your GP if you are feeling unwell. You can also visit the Walk

H H H in Centi t Asda, Hereford 8am-8 i juri its at th

information about where to attend in the bl o v deigetl il b
. s . herefordshire.nhs.uk/che Il for advice about health

event of illness or injury will be supported U

by stories about where people have S Herefordshire Wye vlley 17

accessed appropriately and had a good Council Herefordshire

experience.

The next phase of the campaign will involve refreshing and maintaining the communication
channels already utilised and the development of new engagement mechanisms including:

e Bill Boards
Page | 4

78



Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC)
Clinical Commissioning Group progress report Health
and Well Being Board

18 October 2011

o Mobile Phone Application

e Further web marketing

e Social marketing

e Exploration of opportunities with major employers in Herefordshire

Any Qualified Provider

By October 2011, PCT Clusters are expected to identify three or more community or mental
health services in which to implement patient choice of Any Qualified Provider in 2012/13,
based on the priorities of pathfinder clinical commissioning Consortium, and having engaged
with local patients and professionals. Stakeholder feedback combined with commissioning
intelligence has led HHCC to feedback to the West Mercia Cluster that musculo-skeletal
services for back and neck pain would be Herefordshire’s local priority for Any Qualified
Provider Implementation.

Clinical Commissioning Consortium (CCC) Self Assessment Process

By April 2013, subject to the approval of the Health and Social Care Bill, the whole of
England will need to be covered by established CCCs. Each one will have been authorised
to take on some or all of the commissioning responsibilities for the populations it serves. To
become fully authorised CCC'’s will have to demonstrate competence across the following
domains:

e Clinical focus and added value

o Engagement with patients and communities
e Clear and credible plan

o Capacity and capability

o Collaborative arrangements

e Leadership capacity and capability

A Diagnostic Toolkit for emerging Clinical Commissioning Consortium has been developed
by the Department of Health to support the authorisation process. This toolkit defines the
standards that need to be achieved in each of the authorisation domains and the evidence
which will be required to demonstrate competence. A base line self assessment using this
diagnostic toolkit has been started and although not all stakeholders have contributed to this
process as yet some initial scorings are shown in chart 1. It is anticipated that there will be at
least two further self assessments prior to authorisation.

Page | 5

79



Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC)
Clinical Commissioning Group progress report Health
and Well Being Board

18 October 2011

Chart 1 Authorisation Toolkit Assessment September 2011

Overall synopsis by area

5

4

3

Average score per area
o = N
Clinical Focus
and Added -
Value
Engagement
with Patients/ -
Communities
Clearand
Credible Plan
Capacityand
Capability
Collaborative
Arrangements
Leadership
Capacityand
Capability

The initial self assessment shows that, although there is a significant amount of work
required to achieve level five compliance, there has been consistent progress made across
all authorisation domains over the last six months. Once all stakeholders, including
representatives from the main Provider and H&WBB, have completed the diagnostic toolkit
the final results will be presented to the HHCC Committee at the away day on the 4"
October. Based on feedback from this event a refreshed work plan and an OD Plan will be
developed and presented to the PCT Board in November 2011.

These plans will outline the activities HHCC intends to undertake to achieve compliance in
all areas by July 2012. This will mean that by this date HHCC will be in a position to begin
the authorisation process with the National Commissioning Board which is scheduled to start
between July and October 2012 (these dates are dependent on when the National
Commissioning Board comes into being). The overall expectation is that HHCC with be
authorised by 1** April 2013 at the latest.

Organisational Design

During August and September 2011 HHCC has run a number of ‘How we do business’
sessions to develop the ideas that were formulated at the away day on June 30" 2011.
Using these ideas and concepts from the Mckinsey 7’s model (authorisation process has
been based on this model — see Appendix 1 for an overview of the model) key operational
structures are being developed in the following areas:

e Board Governance

e Service Improvement

¢ Commissioning Support
¢ Back Office Support

Page | 6

80



Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC)
Clinical Commissioning Group progress report Health
and Well Being Board

18 October 2011

Once these structures are complete a range of standard operating procedures will be
developed which will be combined to form the target operating model for HHCC. The initial
focus of work has been the service improvement structure as this needs to be redesigned to
support the accelerated delivery of QIPP. It is anticipated that this new structure will be
ready for review and approval by the end of September 2011. Board Governance will then
be the focus in October with the other areas following in November.

Work Plan

Changes to National Policy combined with the release of more details about the CCC
authorisation process have meant that many of the objectives and timescales within the
original work plan have been superseded or have needed alteration. HHCC has completed
all of the planned activities that have not been subject to change and has been developing a
revised work plan to support the authorisation process. As mentioned in the section on the
authorisation process this revised work plan in combination with an OD Plan will define the
key activities that will be undertaken by HHCC to ensure that it is in a position to commence
authorisation in July 2012. This work plan will be submitted to PCT Board in November for
formal approval.

Appendix 2 of this report contains an updated version of the original work plan.
Recommendation

The Board is asked to review, note and provide feedback on this report and clinical
commissioning Consortium progress to date.

Marcia Pert
Director of Resources and Delivery
Executive Lead for Clinical Commissioning Consortium

Page | 7

81



82



McKinsey 7S framework

How do you go about analyzing how well your organization is positioned to achieve its
intended objective? This is a question that has been asked for many years, and there are
many different answers. Some approaches look at internal factors, others look at external
ones, some combine these perspectives, and others look for congruence between various
aspects of the organization being studied. Ultimately, the issue comes down to which factors
to study.

While some models of organizational effectiveness go in and out of fashion, one that has
persisted is the McKinsey 7S framework. Developed in the early 1980s by Tom Peters and
Robert Waterman, two consultants working at the McKinsey & Company consulting firm, the
basic premise of the model is that there are seven internal aspects of an organization that
need to be aligned if it is to be successful.

The 7S model can be used in a wide variety of situations where an alignment perspective is
useful, for example to help you:

e Improve the performance of a company.

o Examine the likely effects of future changes within a company.

e Align departments and processes during a merger or acquisition.
o Determine how best to implement a proposed strategy.

The McKinsey 7S model can be applied to elements of a team or a project as well. The
alignment issues apply, regardless of how you decide to define the scope of the areas you
study.

The Seven Elements

The McKinsey 7S model involves seven interdependent factors which are categorized as
either "hard" or "soft" elements:

Hard Elements _____ SoftElements |

Strategy Shared Values

Structure Skills

Systems Style
Staff

"Hard" elements are easier to define or identify and management can directly influence
them: These are strategy statements; organization charts and reporting lines; and formal
processes and IT systems.

83



"Soft" elements, on the other hand, can be more difficult to describe, and are less tangible
and more influenced by culture. However, these soft elements are as important as the hard
elements if the organization is going to be successful.

The way the model is presented in Figure 1 below depicts the interdependency of the
elements and indicates how a change in one affects all the others.

Figure 1: The McKinsey 7S Model
-
r b
I Structure *j; :

"%

N | .

| Strategy - : . | Systems |

Skills 1 | [~ Swm

Staff

Let's look at each of the elements specifically:

o Strategy: the plan devised to maintain and build competitive advantage over the
competition.

e Structure: the way the organization is structured and who reports to whom.

o Systems: the daily activities and procedures that staff members engage in to get the
job done.

e Shared Values: called "superordinate goals" when the model was first developed,
these are the core values of the company that are evidenced in the corporate culture
and the general work ethic.

e Style: the style of leadership adopted.
o Staff: the employees and their general capabilities.

o Skills: the actual skills and competencies of the employees working for the
company.

Placing Shared Values in the middle of the model emphasizes that these values are central
to the development of all the other critical elements. The company's structure, strategy,
systems, style, staff and skills all stem from why the organization was originally created, and
what it stands for. The original vision of the company was formed from the values of the
creators. As the values change, so do all the other elements.

84



| | ebed

"SIedA [BIoUBULY 24NINY PUE SIY} Ul SAAIIIS[GO ddID Y1 JaAI|3p pue AWouoda Yijeay ayl jo Alljigeuleisns [eloueuly ay3
aJnsua o1 sue|d 3|qIpaJd Sunnuawa|dwi aJe pue padolaAap aAeY S,)DD 3Yl 1BY1 3JNSU OS|e ||IM 3| "Paau sjuaiied 1eyl saolnIes yijeay Aljenb y8iy uoissiwwod
01 @nuj3u0d 03 Aydeded pue s||iys AJessadau ay3 aney sdnoud SujuolSSILIWOD [BI1UID Y} UIBIIDD 3¥BW 03 PauSisap uaaq Sey YJoMawel) dUBUIIA0S SIy|

Ayjigede) pue Ajpede) diysiopes] e
Sjuswaduelly SAIlBIOQR[|0D e

Ajjigede) pue Ajoede) e

ue|d 9|qIpaJ) pueJesd) e
SaljluNWWo)/s1ualled Yyum juswadesuy e

an[eA PappY pue sndo4 [edlul)) e

:seale sndoj SuImoj|o}
ay3 aney [|im ueld yJom Siyy |0o] d13souselq ayi Yum aulj u| ‘|1ouno) diysiapea |euoineN SHN 9y Agq pasesjas usaq sey 1eyy |00 d13souselg Suiuoissiwwo)
[B21UI]D 9Y1 UO paseq 3 ||Im 1eyl uejd sJom mau e SuidojaAap 34 ||IM SIBUOISSILIWOD) 3JeD-Y}eaH 41YSpJosaiaH 41900300 pue Jaqwardas Suung

"sjuswadJinbaJ [euolieu 3sale| Y3 03 pausije aJow

s1 1ey3 uejd yJom Mmau e Jo JuswWdo|aA3p aY3 3JInbaJ |[IM Yyluow XIS 3yl JOA0 Pa4inddo aaey 1ey3 sasueyd Adljod |euoiieu ays [|eJanQ sa8ueyd Aue o3 303[gns
u93g j0u aAeY 1eyy uejd JJom aY3 Ul INO 135 SIAIFS[CO Y3 JO [|B paAdIYde sey JIHH d30ou aAlsod e uQ “auawisnipe Jo uoijesalje palinbal aney uejd yiom
SIY1 UIY2IM S9|BISaWI} pue SaAI303[go 3yl Jo Auew eyl Jueaw aAey sasueyd asay] "paiepino Sulwodaq uejd }J0Mm SIY} 01 P3| Sey WnilJosuod |ediul|d 4O S1S0d
Sujuuni ay3 Moddns 03 3|gejieAe 9d0jaAUS [BIDUBULL 3ININY 3Y] pue $$220.4d UOIIBSLIOYINE SY3 JO S[IEI9P SJOW Y1IM UOIIBUIGUIOD Ul SIY] "3SI249X%d Suluaisi| sy}
03 9suodsaJ JUBWUIBA0D B3 pue WnJo4 24nin4 SHN 3Y3 Jo 3nsaJ e se Adjjod |euoiieu 03 apew uaaq aney sagueyd Juediiusis SYuow Xis 1se| 3yl J9AQ "TT0T
Jaqwaidas pue [lidy UaM1ag WNIFIOSUOD SUIUOISSILIWOD [ed1ul]d Y3 Aq uayelapun aq pjnom 1eyl yJom jo sawwesSold A3y ayi 1IN0 19S 01 PapuUdIUl SEM

3| "p4eog 11d 2Y3 4O 911wwodgns e AjjewJoy sem (JJHH) WNIJosuo) a4e)-yieaH aliysplojaiaH 1ey3 yiuow 1s4i oyl Sunp padojanap sem uejd saom siy|

MBIAIDAQ

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

85



Z | ebed

1obie} UO des r1/9S }JOMawel} 80ueINSSe pJeoq Yim Jajsibal ysit ubiy

Inr r1/0S Jajsibal ysu ayeindod pue dojaasg

ne 95 (sbeyy pay) @ouewiopadiopun HSHN Jo

seale sjabie) yoiym ueld Juswarosdwi Juswas|dwi pue dojpaaq
Ajleuoneu sabueyd (L1 190

0} anp penow jebie| | mou) unp dN/MY pJeog | Dd YIM Sainseawl awooino pue s |4 9916y
Ajleuoneu sabueyd (L1190

01 anp panow jabie| | mou) unp NY ss900.1d pue Jodas aouewlsopuad piepuels dojpasg
Ajleuoneu sabueyd (L1 190

0} anp panow 1a61e| | mou) unp OS/dIN yomawely AJljigejunodoe Juswsjdwi pue dojaasq
Ajleuoneu sabueyd (L1190

01 anp panow jabie] | mou) unp OS/MVY asi|eul} pue uolNHISUOD Jelp uo }NSuo) 99UBUIBA0D

snje}g sal}IAIOY Koy ealy Juawdojansqg

judwdo|anaq |euonesiuesip

Biagsuor ur — xoe|g Apuy — gv

Jape) dAs)S — BOS yel ue] — 1]

spJemp3 |ned — 3d Auayoq ang - as

uosJead-uenag pieyory — 49y Amezeys wes - 93

poaaJbe usaq sey uejd xiom [euly yyws-joqie] uosily — S1v uospineq or — ar

pue paubije Ajjnj ueaq sey weas} uolISuLJ} [Ijun YSeN Malpuy — NV uad elte — diN
abueyd o} Joslqns aq Aew speos] :8)ou 8ses|d sbuljjon uowis — 9s snepn Apuy — MY
Aoy

"a|qe) Yyoes ul paynuap!
(s)pes| ay) Joy Aey e st mojeg | 10Z des — Aepy polied ayy Bulnp ul usyeuspun aq [|IM Ydiym saljAloe A8y 8y} auljino mojeq sse|qe) 8y |

L1L0Z dag — Aep 1o} AjIAnOY pauueld

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

86



¢ | abed

l aunp dW/MY Aep Aemy winiosuo) 4o
[leuoneu sebueyo Ll
0} anp paAow }8bie] | 100 mou | JdIN/MV SaA1109[qo 8816y
Ajjeuoneu sabueyo Ll a
0] anp paAow jabie| | 100 mou | /dIN/AS wea) uonisuel) ubiy
NS juawdojanap
Re AN/ wea) uonisuedy Joj suonduosap qol pueq pue dojaasQq pue S2INJONI}S Jels
196181 UO deg dN [opow Ajljigeurelsns wus) Buoj dojeasg
Ajleuoneu sabueyd Ll
0} anp panow obie] | 100 Mmou di salojeubis pasuoyine Jo 1si| ysijgeis3
Ajleuoneu sabueyd Ll
Alleuoneu ssbueyo L vLIeL0g
0} anp paAow }abie] | 100 mou
do/dIN 0} suoioafosd adojoaus 3509 Bujuuni pue s}ebpng 9D osijeuld | uoljewosu] pue asueul
9OUBUJOAOS) UOJeWIOU| e
Ajojes pue yjeaH e
Juswabeuey\ uogie) pue sajeisy e
dH e
aoueul{ e
Ajjenp [eawuy e
:sease Aoijod Buimol||o} ayy sepnjoul
Bny dN yoiym ylomawedy Aoijod | Dd uiyum sajesado DO 1ey) ainsug juswabeuepy Aoijod
yoeqgnep
Buiobuo Ined ssalboid qO pue Juswubiie DD JO MalAsl J8Isn|D
Jobiej uo des r1/0S ueld uswieal) ysu juswa|dwi pue dojgasq

PDEd

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

87



¥ | abed

10b1ey up
1064e) UD
1064e) UD

deg
deg
deg

1l
1l
1l

epuswaqg e
Bumsia yyesy e
Aiympiy o

:ul Buiddew Aemyied aie) ayelspun

1064e}) UD

snjej}s 9je ang

deg

000

a|doad J9p|0
uled yoeg Jamo
adoo

sajagelq

ayo.Ns

:sAemyjed a1ed aAly Jo uoneuswa|dwi

8y} 10BJjU0D 1SNI] SHN A8jleA 8AA\ UBNOJIY) JONUOK pue MaInsy
sanIAROY

sAemyjed aie)n
ealy jJuswdojanag

_—C¢EQO_¢>¢3 9JIAIDS P3| >__N0_C__U

1061} UO
snjejg

dag

Jsisnp

/a
r/dN/MV

ABelens qo e
Abojens of pue 10| o
(sa1bajess uonesiunwwo) | SHNAM
pue SdH yum subije yoiym) Absjesig uoieolunwwo) e
SINALN
AbBajelis juswabeuew ja)lely e
ABojens Buluoissiwwo) e

:Buipnjoul oljopuod Abajens Do9 wawa|dw| pue dojpasqg

saljIAloY Aoy

jusawdojanaq Abajens

ealy Juawdojansqg

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

88



G | abed

1961e} UQ deg NT/d9Y/MY anoaye dojenap 0y aouabijeiul uonejuswbas Jawolsno asi|iin JuswoaBeBug
19bi1e} UQ des INT/dFH/ MY Jaysibal Japjoyayess dojenaq Japjoyayeis
Bny SV ue|d JuswisaAuisipauswisanul dojgaaq
Bny SV ss920.d Juswysanul jo uonesiuoud e juswaldwi pue ubiseq
Bny S1V sanuoud Buluoissiwwod aied yyeay Aay Ajuap|
Bny SlVv Juawssasse Ajjenbs uo ggANSH UM YIOAA
Bny SV VNS jo Juswdojanap sy} yoddng JUBWISSOSSE SPAAN
snjejs 9Jeq ang (s)pean Sa}IAIOY eauy jJuawdojanaq
Sunjaop diyssauipied
1ebiey up deg 11/9S sjuswabuedle Bupom JOIN pue gOSHN dojaaeq
1064e) UD deg 11/9S sdnoub jsausjul |eIoads ysijgeis3
19b1e} UQ deg 11/98 }Jomjau asiadxa |eolul) dojpaaq s)yJomjau [eaiul|o
10b1ey up dag as ue|d Juswanoidwi Ayenb juswsajdwi pue ubisaq esuBiNssE ANEND
job1ey up des as/os €1/210g dwayos NINDD usws|dwi pue dojaasg pue Ajajeg juaned
JobJej up deg dN/MV €1/2102 4o} sueld ddID dojerag
Bny dIN uolesijeal sjBuaq pue Juswssasse pedwi 41D axerapun
Inf dN/MY sue|d Aouabunuog dd10 dojeaeQ Kiaaieg ddID
1ebiey up dag 9S8 suoljeolyioads ao1Ales Juswal|dwi pue dojaasg
1961e) UQ Bny 3d/9S SMBIABJ BIIAISS IO} Seale Jayuny Ajuap)

snjejs ajegong  (s)pee Sa1JIAIOY ealy jusawdojanaq

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

89



9 | abed

ogl ar/din 1509 Juswabeuel\ SHN pue s}abie) sbuines z aseyd o JaAleg
Ajjeuoneu
sebueyo n
0} anp 190 Mou abua|jeyn ay} 0} Buisry yum swwelbosd abueyd 9O ubiy
paAow
jobie | oS
1064e) UD deg diN ue|d A1aA02al 8 |BID0S 8y} Jo uoneuswadwi sy} Joddng
1064e) UD deg dN/MY ueld sejdoad Jep|o ay} Jo uoneuswa|dwi sy} Joddng Bunjiom juiop
des di dOr 8y} Jo JuswdojaAsp 8y} 0} dNqLIU0Y
BulobuQ MV ag9M8H a4} Jo Juawdojanap ay} poddng
BulobuQ dN/MY sjuswabuele Buiom Jaisnjo dojanag
[leuoneu
sabueyo
n (11100
0} enp mou) unp 2Jed [B100S pue y)jeay ssoloe sseooid ssauisng depy
paAow
jobie | ar/din
Ajjeuoneu
sobueyo L
0} anp 100 Mou aJeo [e100s pue yjjeay Joj |opow Bunelado ssauisng e dojeasg
paAow
10618 | ar/din
salnjonuls
unp ar/din ubije pue ajelo}oalp sajdoad yym sjuswabuelse Bupjiom julol aaiby Bujuueld ssauisng
Inp dgy/mv ajoAd Buluueld g1/210z ul siepjoyayess abebuz
inr dg94/000 Sa)Is JaueJjul pue Jaulsiul 9O9 dojeas(
1064e}) UD deg dg9y/MVY ue|d juswabebus tepjoysyels e Juawa|dwi pue ubise(

snjejg

ajeqg anQg

(s)pea

saibojopoylaw Juswabebua
SapIAldY

ealy juswdojanaqg

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

90



J | ebed

snjejg

ajeq ang

(s)peaT

0} anp
paAow Hoor\ﬂoc €1/2102 1o} |opow puewa pue Alddng dojaneq
1061e | EDS/NV/AV
Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo n
0} anp 190 Mou uswalels uonisod jaxuel dojeasqg
paAow
Jobue ] e0S/3d/av juawdojaraq 1xiel
a1e) |elnos
pue yj|esH J0} 84)us) UOIeW.OoU| 8y} pue SaoIAI8S Buluoissiwwo)
19b1e} UQ deg NV/3d/av a1edy}lesH yum siapow buijoesyuod dojgAap 0} anuiuo)
jobuey uQ deg EOS/NV/MV/GVY suonuajul Buluoissiwwo) ¢€1/z10g osleuld
unp eDS/NVY/3d/av sJapinoid yum sjooojoud Bunoesyuod aaiby
unpe eDS/NVY/3d/av ssa20.4d Bunoyuow joenuod Juswsajdw|
unp eDS/NVY/3d/av oljojiod joesuo9 Japirold dojeasg Bunoesyuo)n

sapIABOY

ealy juawdojanaq

“}lomawel4 Buluoissiwwo) SdH e Jo Juswdojonsp Jopim
e Jo Jed se ajelo)oaliq SaIAIeS 9)eiodloD) SdH @Yl YIM uayenspun aq ||Im suoljouny juswalnoold pue Buluolssiwwoo Jo juswdojonsp ay |

juswandoid pue Suluoissiwwo)

snjejg

Ajjeuoneu
mmeMco Ll s1ob6pnq [euosiad pue uonesijeuosiad AloAlop
} onp 190 mou
paAow ay) buneisjaooe 1oy ueid e dojaasp 03 ajelojoalg 81doad 8y} Ylm YIOAA
10bue |

ajeqg anQg

(s)pea

sbuinesg
SapIAldY

ealy juswdojanaqg

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

91



g | abed

snjejs

ajeq ang

(s)pea

SaNIAIOY

1obie | 10 mou NVY/3d/av }omawel} Juswabeuew aouewlopad JSpINOIH
Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo L
0} anp 190 MoU ue|d uswdojansp Japinoid
paAow
Joble| 3d/av/MV
Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo L
0} anp 190 Mou ue|d juswabebus Japinoid
paow juswabeuew
Jobue d8d/3d/av/iMv diysuonejal Japiroid
1ebiey up deg 3d/gvy sue|d juswanoidwi AJjeoo| dojaaaq
[oA8|
19618} UQ Bny 3d/aVv Aj[eoo| e je s821AI8S 81eD y)|eay JO 82I10yd pue A}I|IqISS900e SSassy
19b1ey up dag e)s/3d/av so|yjoid Japinoid Ayjeoo| dojanag
10b1ey up Bny 3d/av ssao0.d Juswabeuew sjelajal ay) dojoaap Jayun4
suolnesiuebio A19100s [IAID pue saluedwod
J10)09s ajeAld ‘saslidiaiud [BID0S SE Yons J0} UOISIA0Id JO S|apow
10b1ey up dag BDS/NY/3d/av aAljeuld)e Jo JuswdojaAsp oy} poddns 0} ylomawel) e Juswa|dw|
Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo d
o1 enp Ll S90IAIBS 2B Yjeay Jo juswdojonap pue
paAOU 190 mou Buiuue|d ayy ul 10}08S Alelun|oA pue juspuadapul ‘ejeAlld SAJOAU|
joble] BOS/NV/3d/av
Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo 6 d
o1 anp Ll y}Jomawely BuluoISSILIWOD Jejnpow mau e juswa|dwi
paAOUL 190 mou pue ubisap 0} siepinoid 103oas pJiy) pue ajeaud ongnd ypm 3JopA
jobie | BOS/NV/3d/av
Ajjeuoneu
sobueyo

ealy juswdojanaqg

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

92



6 | abed

Ajjeuoneu
sebueyo
0] anp
paAow
10618 |

Ll
100 mou

NV/3d/av

awiayos uoljeAouU|

Ajjeuoneu
sabueyo
0} anp
paAow

snjejs

L
ajeqg ang

(s)pea

sanIAROY

ealy juswdojanaqg

(L10Z Joquiaydag 03) ue|d JIOAM WNILOSUOY aleD-yj|edH a41ysp.ojaliaH

93



94



AGENDA ITEM 10

& Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DATE: 18 OCTOBER 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD UPDATE AND
WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To provide an update on the current position with the development of the Health and Wellbeing
Board, including the revised Development Framework, a proposed outline draft Work Plan for the
next six months which picks up the key development themes agreed by the Board and to set out the
next steps that will be addressed over the coming weeks.

Recommendation(s)
THAT the Board:

(a) note the update and next steps and agree any further work that the Board would like to
see; and

(b) review and amend as necessary the Work Plan.

Introduction and Background

1 The update is appended.

Background Papers

o None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Dean Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive on 01432 260042

$xawOofdy.doc 22/02/10

95



96



HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD UPDATE AND WORK PROGRAMME - 18
OCTOBER 2011

A PURPOSE
This report:
e Provides an update on the current position with the development of the Health
and Well Being Board, including the revised Development Framework
e Proposes an outline draft Work Plan for the next six months which picks up

the key development themes agreed by the Board
e Sets out the next steps that will be addressed over the coming weeks.

B RECOMMENDATION
The Board is asked to:
a) Note the update and next steps and agree any further work that the Board
would like to see
b) Review and amend as necessary the Work Plan
C SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Update
1 Key developments for the Health and Well Being Board are highlighted below.
Board Development
2 Following the appointment of the Institute of Local Government (Inlogov) to
support the Board, Catherine State has undertaken interviews with Board
members to seek their views on the priorities for development. In summary:
e There is a high level of commitment to the Board
e Some people feel there is still a need to discuss what we are trying to
achieve, to be clear where we can add value and to agree the difference
that we will make
e Others feel that we need to be more decisive and to “learn by doing”
e There is a consensus, however, that the HWBB needs to develop at the
same pace as the Clinical Commissioning Group

Membership of the Board

3 Membership of the Board will be kept as currently agreed for the time being,
but will be enhanced by additional Councillor and GP representation later in

97



the year. In addition, others will be invited to attend the Board for specific
items.

Board Development Framework

The discussion paper considered by the Board in April and June 2011 has
been updated to reflect both local discussions (including the second workshop
on 16 July 2011) and the Government’s recent statement on the role of
HWBBs. This will now be used a Framework for the Board’s development
and work planning and will be reviewed from time to time by the Board.

A reminder that the top ten key issues for the Board are:

KEY ISSUE OUTCOMES
1. Defining Health and | = Shared understanding of what “health and
Well Being well being” means
= Shared vision of what we want to achieve for
Herefordshire through the new
arrangements

» Shared understanding of the statutory health
and well being requirements for the Board

2. The Operation of = Right Board membership
the Board = Secretariat in place to support the Board:
clear and effective governance

= Subject matter expertise (capacity and
capability) in place to deliver aims across
many agencies

3. Links with Other = Mapping of relevant stakeholders etc
Parts of the System | = Clear understanding of respective roles and
responsibilities

= Effective communications

4. Integrated Strategic | = Fully integrated assessment of health and

Needs Assessment well being for all ages
= Assessment of the needs of different
localities

= Alignment of needs assessment and
mapping of resources across agencies

5. Health and Well = Comprehensive system wide plan
Being Strategy addressing the broad determinants of health
and well being

» Clear and manageable set of priorities, but
with some quick wins

* Funding aligned to priorities

» Measurable improvements in health and well
being in Herefordshire

6. Public = High profile for health and well being in
Accountability and Herefordshire
Community = Public engagement in the work of the Board

98



10

Engagement * Increase in personal responsibility for health
and well being

7. Delivery * [Integration of health and well being services,
interventions and workforce

» Pooled budgets

» Local delivery teams working in each of the

9 localities
8. Performance = Evidence based performance improvements
Management = Return on investment

» Performance outcomes supported by
qualitative evidence of effective local

delivery
9. Organisational » Shared understanding of what we need to
Development do be successful
=  Workforce is developed to deliver outcomes
10.Roadmap = Comprehensive plan is in place to achieve
our aims

=  Effective communications

Support for the Board

An outline project resource plan has been produced to ensure that roles and
responsibilities are clear in supporting the HWBB. Sarah Aitken is the
corporate lead for the Board and Clare Wichbold is the lead Project Officer.

Community Engagement Events

Planning for community engagement events across the 9 localities on the
theme of health and well being has started, with support from Inlogov. The
aim is to link health and well being engagement with existing community
engagement initiatives on health matters and the wider work on localities.

Herefordshire Public Services

Following consultation with the three partners, a Herefordshire Public Services
Board is being established to oversee the partnership between Herefordshire
Council, Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners and NHS Herefordshire.

The Board will provide a forum for the agreement of integrated structures and
budgets to realise both the strategic vision for Herefordshire and the
implementation of joint commissioning plans agreed by the HWBB; the
promotion of system wide integration within the county and to oversee the
transition through the NHS and public health reforms. The first meeting of the
new board will be on 1 November 2011.

Health and Wellbeing Board Early Implementers: National Learning Sets

National Learning sets are being established as part of the HWBB Early
Implementers programme. The Learning Set themes are:

99



11

12

13

Improving the health of the population

Bringing collaborative leadership to major service reconfiguration
Creating effective governance arrangements

How do we “hard wire” public engagement into the work of the board?
Raising the bar in joint needs assessment and strategies

Making the best use of collective resource

Improving services through more effective joint working

Herefordshire’s participation in this initiative has been accepted and we are
likely to engage, in particular, in the themes of governance and collaboration.
The programme will be launched at a national event on 15 November 2011 by
Minister of State for Care Services, Paul Burstow MP.

Implementation of NHS, Public Health and Social Care Reforms

The NHS Herefordshire Board receives a regular report on the transition plan
for the implementation of the NHS, Public Health and Social Care Reforms,
including the development of the HWBB. An extract from the last report to the
meeting of the Board on 13 September is attached for information as
Appendix A.

Of particular note is the acceleration of the work to transform Public Health.
Chris Bull is chair of the Public Health Engagement Group, which is providing
a focus for the Autumn reform updates covering:

Public Health England Operating Model

Public Health funding

Public Health role of local government, including Directors of Public Health
Public Health outcomes framework

Consultation on the workforce strategy

Work Plan

14

15

A draft outline Work Plan has been produced to support the Board’s
development (Appendix B). The Work Plan picks up the key development
themes agreed by the Board such as Alcohol, developing the HWB Strategy,
Prevention, CCG Commissioning plans, Community Engagement Plan

A guiding principle is that agenda planning for the Board will be undertaken
jointly across a number of key areas, including:

e Strategic planning

e JSNA/Integrated needs assessment

e Commissioning priorities

e Budget consultation, engagement and priority setting
¢ Health and Well Being Board and strategy

100



16 An internal Officer planning group has been established to develop this
common agenda with representation from the Council (Cabinet and Overview
and Scrutiny), PCT, CCG, Herefordshire Partnership and Safeguarding
Boards.

17 Until April 2012, the Board will alternate formal and workshop meetings to
allow space for development.

18 The Board is invited to review and amend the Work Plan as necessary.
Next Steps

19  As part of the Board’s development, a number of actions will be taken forward
over the next few months, including (not exhaustive):

e Developing the joint work plan

e Understanding the role of the HWBB during the shadow period in relation
to CCG commissioning plans

e Engaging other stakeholders in the development of Herefordshire’s
approach to HWB

e Agreeing the health and well being priorities for the next year or so; as a
first stage reviewing current plans and strategies (taking a broad view) that
cover health and well being

e Completing the refresh of the JSNA and starting work on the more
comprehensive Integrated Needs Assessment

e Completing the 9 local engagement exercises on health and well being
priorities

e Asking services/agencies to state their contribution to the health and well
being agenda

e Developing communications actions in conjunction with the joint
communications plan already agreed for health and social care changes,
including the “branding” for the Board

e Producing a scoping paper for a health and well being website/portal and
directory of local services — this is a joint initiative with the CCG

e Ensuring that the Board’s development is aligned with that of the newly
restructured Herefordshire Partnership

e Participating in the Early Implementer Learning Sets

20 The Board may wish to identify other areas for action.

101



c0}

APPENDIX A

NHS HEREFORDSHIRE TRANSITION PLAN (SEPTEMBER 2011)

STRAND OUTCOMES LEAD KEY MILESTONES

HEREFORDSHIRE REFORMS
Mental Health Procurement of a new mental health provider | Ann Donkin All key milestones met
Procurement to meet our agreed service and financial

outcomes Director of

] . Resources &
Update: work is underway on the future .
. o : L Delivery

delivery of learning disability services within

the contract
Integrated Care Creation of the Integrated Care Organisation | Ann Donkin All key milestones met
Organisation to deliver the outcomes agreed by the Board _ Integrated health and social care
(ICO) as part of the recommendations of the Director of commissioning plan and the ICO

" . Resources & . .
Transition Board for the transfer of community Delivery integrated business plan agreed

services

Update:

o Contract signed and new arrangements in
place (Wye Valley NHS Trust) on 1% April
2011

o QIPP Delivery Board meeting to review
delivery of agreed outcomes

by Boards mid February 2011
Transfer agreement signed 1°
April 2011

Heads of Agreement for contract
signed on 1 April 2011

Section 75 (provider) agreement
Adult Social Care signed 1% April
2011




€0l

HEALTH WHITE PAPER REFORMS

Clinical e Establishment of a Clinical Commissioning Chair Herefordshire is a Pathfinder for
gommissioning Group for Herefordshire to deliver clinically ghiﬁf EXG\;\?UﬂVea CCG
rou i cinmi r An atts : :
(HereI:ordshire led com.m/ssmn/ng Directo)r/ of Shadow CCG in place by April
Health-Care * Update: . . Resources & 2011
Commissioners) o Changes required to Consortia Delivery Plan agreed in January/February
membership and governance have largely 2011 to manage the phased
been established locally with the current transfer of responsibilities from
membership April 2011
o Update on work plan on the Board Board agreement for GPC to be a
agenda sub committee of the Board from
o Process for authorisation to be agreed April
Outline Work Plan presented to
the Board in May
Updates to each Board meeting
Clinical e The Clinical Commissioning Group is Deputy Chief Developing an “offer” for the CCG
Commissioning supported by the PCT to develop a structure | Executive to deliver commissioning,
Group _ to deliver its new responsibilities Director of research and business support
(Herefordshire e The Clinical Commissioning Group has the Respurces and A plan for skills and knowledge
Health-Care Delivery

Commissioners)
Support
Requirements

Skills, knowledge and capacity needed to
discharge its new role
Update:

(@)

Weekly meetings taking place to plan

support

Transition Team supporting the CCG

Work underway to align the Transition

transfer and the transfer of
appropriate people to the CCG
over time

Compliance with the Guidance on
assignment

Alignment between the CCG
transition structure and




14

structure with the Organisational Design
Phase 3 proposals

Organisational Design Phase 3

Health and Well | ¢ Health and Well Being Board is established | Deputy Chief Herefordshire Council is an early
Being Board by Herefordshire Council to meet new Executive implementer for the Health and
requirements Director of Well Being Board
e Health and Well Being of residents is Public Health Stakeholder consultation
increased through joint local leadership of Workshop to develop
health, social care and public health Herefordshire’s approach
commissioning February 2011
e Update: HWBB established by the Council
o Fourth (workshop) meeting of the HWBB in March 2011
held on 13 September First meeting of the Shadow
o Development Framework and Work Plan Board held on 14 April 2011
in place Workshop on 16 June on the
o Initial priorities include development of an HWBB development plan
Alcohol Strategy for Herefordshire Proposals for new JSNA agreed in
o 9 local stakeholder events to take place in June 2011
the Autumn Inlogov, University of Birmingham,
appointed to support the
development of health and well
being in Herefordshire Draft HWB
Strategy produced by October
2011
HealthWatch e Establishment of HealthWatch Herefordshire | Assistant Discussion paper on outcomes
building on the LINk and existing Director and options produced January
Customer

engagement

Services and

2011




Gol

e Update:
o New host contract awarded to Shaw
o HealthWatch Pathfinder application
successful
o Discussions with the LINk about the
transition plan

Communication
s

Pathfinder application to be
submitted by 11 May 2011
HealthWatch transition plan to be
agreed by December 2011

PUBLIC HEALTH REFORMS

Public Health e Responsibility for the health of the population
and Director of Public Health is transferred to
Herefordshire Council

e Plan in place to improve health outcomes for
residents

e Update:

o Public Health White Paper Update and
Next Steps published 14 July 2011

o Local transition plan to be revised as part
of Phase 3 of the OD project

o Risks of Public Health transition from NHS
Herefordshire to Herefordshire Council
identified and managed

o Core public health offer to the Clinical
Commissioning Group agreed

Director of
Public Health

Discussion paper about the
outcomes we want to see and the
different models to achieve this by
January 2011

Stakeholder consultation event on
Public Health and HWBB in
February 2011

Herefordshire Public Services
response to the consultation on
the public health white paper
March 2011

Director of Public Health and staff
integrated into structure of new
HPS People Services Directorate
April 2011

Consultant in Public Health on
HHCC Shadow Board

West Mercia Public health




90}

network risk assurance framework
developed and updated quarterly,
most recent update 15 September
2011

Assurance visit by Regional
Director of Public Health arranged
for 24 October 2011

CROSS CUTTING REQUIREMENTS

Governance Governance is in place to oversee the Assistant Establish Task and Finish Group
transition and discharge existing Director Law December 2010
responsibilities and objectives and Refresh of governance January
New structures are in place to meet national Governance 2011
] R Board Secretary
requirements for GP led commissioning and Director of GP Sub Committee of the Board
the Health and Well Being Board Quality and April 2011
Update: Clinical Health and Well Being Board in
o Task and Finish Sub Group established Leadership place April 2011
o Final report to Board 25 May 2011 Cluster level workshop July 2011
o Update on recommendations on Board to discuss Quality and safety at
agenda CCG level and Cluster Level
Organisational PCT employees are supported through the Deputy Chief Local management of change
Development change Executive policies are in place
PCT meets its management costs reduction ggzghor';gg & MARS applications approved
targets Delivery Organisational Design changes
Update: Assistant agreed to reduce management
o Ongoing discussions across the West Director People, costs and share functions across
Mercia Cluster about opportunities for Policy & HPS: Phase 1 December 2010;




L0}

mutual support if capacity reduces in critical
areas
o NHS HR Framework published

Partnerships

Phase 2 March 2011, Phase 3
July 2011

Quality and Standards quality and safety are maintained Director of Action Plan agreed to ensure the
Safety during a time of significant change Respurces and continued focus on quality and
Responsibility for QIPP Outcomes and B?rlel\c/;(tag of safety
Targets is transferred to the GP Consortium Quality and Plan to transfer the QIPP
Update: Clinical Leads from the CCG within Clinical Outcomes and Targets
each workstream are focused on QIPP Leadership
Delivery
Communicatio Stakeholders are fully engaged in and help to | Deputy Chief A Communications and
nand shape the NHS reforms Executive Engagement Plan is woven into
Engagement Employees are fully engaged in and help to | ASsistant each aspect of the Transition Plan
Director . —
shape the NHS reforms Customer Joint Communications Plan
Update: Patient and Public Experience Services and agreed by the Board July 2011
workshops held with CCG and other Communication Regular Stakeholder events are
stakeholders ] held:
o 7 December 2010
o July 2011 (AGM)
o Next one: to be confirmed
Transition A smooth transfer of functions, assets and Director of A plan is in place with the key
Management liabilities of NHSH to the successor bodies Resources and assets and liabilities
achieved Delivery

Update:
o This will be subject national guidance,
particularly for finance and property
e Legacy document updated for

Board Secretary

Draft Legacy document
considered by the Board July 2011




80}

September 2011 Board

Links Links between the Transition process and Deputy Chief Map the links between the
other key activities for NHSH and HPS are Executive Transition process and other key
mapped and co-ordinated activities by January 2011
Update: links being managed by the Transition
Team and HPSLT

Risks Risk are managed and resilience is maintained | Assistant Initial assessment of risks

throughout the transition process

Update: update on risks within the Board

Assurance Framework

Director Law
and
Governance
Board Secretary

reported to Board December 2010
Cluster Resilience plan in place
December 2010

Risk Log for the Transition
process in place by January 2011
Resilience Risk register
incorporated within the BAF




60}



HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD

DRAFT OUTLINE WORK PLAN

APPENDIX B

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS LEAD
22 November | Updates Clare Wichbold
(W) e CCG Update
e HPS Update
e Work Plan

Strategy & Development

Draft Alcohol Strategy

Health and Well Being Strategy — Session 2:

Outcomes

Community Engagement Feedback & Plan
Healthy Herefordshire Workforce Plan
Health and Well Being Portal

Sarah Aitken
Sarah Aitken

Clare Wichbold
Lucy Marder
Simon Colllings

System Leadership

e CCG Authorisation Process Dr Andy Watts
13 December | Updates Clare Wichbold

e CCG Update

e HPS Update

e Work Plan

Public Health Transition Update

Strategy & Development

Draft Health and Well Being Strategy
Alcohol Commissioning Plan

Sarah Aitken
Sarah Aitken

e INA Project Update Alison Talbot-
Smith

System Leadership

e CCG Commissioning Plan Dr Andy Watts
17 January Updates Clare Wichbold
2012 (W) e CCG Update

e HPS Update

e Work Plan

Strategy & Development

e Health and Well Being Strategy: Action Sarah Aitken

Planning

o \Workforce Reform Jenny Lewis

System Leadership

e Service Integration & Pooled Budgets
21February | Updates Clare Wichbold
2012 e CCG Update

110




e HPS Update
e Public Health Transition Update
e Work Plan

Strategy & Development
e Health and Well Being Strategy Approval

Sarah Aitken

¢ INA Project Update Alison Talbot-
Smith

System Leadership

e CCG Commissioning Update Dr Andy Watts
20 Updates Clare Wichbold
March2012 e CCG Update
(W) o HPS Update

e Work Plan

Strategy & Development

e Health and Well Being Strategy: Performance | Sarah Aitken

Management

System Leadership

[ ]
17 April 2012 | Updates Clare Wichbold

e CCG Update

e HPS Update

e Public Health Transition Update

e Work Plan

Strategy & Development

¢ Review of Health and Well Being Strategy Sarah Aitken

e INA Project Update Alison Talbot-

Smith

System Leadership

e First Annual Report Dean Taylor

e CCG Commissioning Update Dr Andy Watts
Notes:

1. (W) Denotes Workshop

2. Scheduling is indicative in some cases and will be firmed up as part of the joint
agenda planning work

3. Work Plan will be updated each month

111




112



	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	5 ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR COMMISSIONING
	JSNA_2011_Key points and Recommendations (V1.2)
	2011 Key findings v1.1 SOH

	6 HEREFORDSHIRE HEALTHCARE COMMISSIONERS - UPDATE
	HHCC Board Paper Sep11
	Appendix 1 McKinsey 7S framework
	Appendix 2- GPC workplan v1.6 Sep

	10 HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD UPDATE AND WORK PROGRAMME
	HWBB Update October 2011


